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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

Honorable Mayor and Cit y Council 

Cit y of  Cordova, Alaska 
 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 
 

We have audit ed t he accompanying f inancial st at ement s of  t he government al act ivit ies,  t he 

business-t ype act ivit ies,  t he aggregat e discret ely present ed component  unit s,  each maj or fund,  

and t he aggregat e remaining fund informat ion of  t he Cit y of  Cordova,  Alaska,  as of  and for t he 

year ended December 31,  2018,  and t he relat ed not es t o t he f inancial  st at ement s,  which 

col lect ively comprise t he Cit y of  Cordova’ s basic f inancial  st at ement s as l ist ed in t he t able of  

cont ent s.  
 

Management ’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management  is responsible for t he preparat ion and fair present at ion of  t hese f inancial  

st at ement s in accordance wit h account ing principles general ly accept ed in t he Unit ed St at es of  

America;  t his includes t he design,  implement at ion,  and maint enance of  int ernal cont rol  

relevant  t o t he preparat ion and fair present at ion of  f inancial  st at ement s t hat  are f ree f rom 

mat erial  misst at ement ,  whet her due t o f raud or error.  
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibil i t y is t o express opinions on t hese f inancial  st at ement s based on our audit .  We 

did not  audit  t he f inancial  st at ement s of  Cordova Cit y School Dist rict  and Cordova Communit y 

Medical Cent er which are report ed as discret ely present ed component  unit s.  Those st at ement s 

were audit ed by ot her audit ors whose report s have been furnished t o us,  and our opinion,  

insofar as it  relat ed t o t he amount s included for t he Cit y of  Cordova,  Alaska,  is based solely on 

t he report s of  t he ot her audit ors.  We conduct ed our audit  in accordance wit h audit ing st andards 

general ly accept ed in t he Unit ed St at es of  America and t he st andards appl icable t o f inancial 

audit s cont ained in Government  Audi t ing St andards,  issued by t he Compt rol ler General of  t he 

Unit ed St at es.  Those st andards require t hat  we plan and perform t he audit  t o obt ain reasonable 

assurance about  whet her t he f inancial  st at ement s are f ree f rom mat erial  misst at ement .  
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An audit  involves performing procedures t o obt ain audit  evidence about  t he amount s and 

disclosures in t he f inancial  st at ement s.  The procedures select ed depend on t he audit or’ s 

j udgment ,  including t he assessment  of  t he risks of  mat erial  misst at ement  of  t he f inancial 

st at ement s,  whet her due t o f raud or error.  In making t hose risk assessment s,  t he audit or 

considers int ernal cont rol  relevant  t o t he ent i t y’ s preparat ion and fair present at ion of  t he 

f inancial  st at ement s in order t o design audit  procedures t hat  are appropriat e in t he 

circumst ances,  but  not  for t he purpose of  expressing an opinion on t he ef fect iveness of  t he 

ent it y’ s int ernal cont rol .  Accordingly,  we express no such opinion.  An audit  also includes 

evaluat ing t he appropriat eness of  account ing pol icies used and t he reasonableness of  signif icant  

account ing est imat es made by management ,  as wel l  as evaluat ing t he overal l  present at ion of  

t he f inancial  st at ement s.  

 

We bel ieve t hat  t he audit  evidence we have obt ained is suf f icient  and appropriat e t o provide a 

basis for our audit  opinions.  
 

Opinions 

 

In our opinion,  based on our audit  and the report  of  the other auditors, the f inancial statements 

referred to above present  fairly,  in all material respects,  the respect ive f inancial posit ion of  the 

governmental act ivit ies,  the business-t ype act ivit ies,  the aggregate discretely presented 

component  unit s,   each maj or fund and the aggregate remaining fund informat ion of  Cit y of  

Cordova, Alaska, as of  December 31, 2018, and the respect ive changes in f inancial posit ion and, 

where applicable, cash f lows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with account ing 

principles generally accepted in the United States of  America.  

 

Change in Account ing Principle 

 

As discussed in Note 16 to the f inancial statements,  in 2018 the Cit y of  Cordova adopted the 

provisions of  Governmental Account ing Standards Board (GASB) Statement  Number 75, Account ing 

and Financial Report ing for Postemployment  Benef it s Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not  

modif ied with respect  t o this mat ter.  

 

Other Mat ters 
 

Required Supplement ary Inf ormat ion 

Account ing principles general ly accept ed in t he Unit ed St at es of  America require t hat  t he 

budget ary comparison informat ion on pages 54-56,  and the schedules of  the cit y’ s informat ion on 

the net  pension and OPEB liabilit y and Cit y cont ribut ions to the pension and OPEB plans on pages 

57-64, be present ed t o supplement  t he basic f inancial  st at ement s.  Such informat ion,  al t hough 

not  a part  of  t he basic f inancial  st at ement s,  is required by t he Government al Account ing 

St andards Board who considers it  t o be an essent ial  part  of  f inancial  report ing for placing t he 

basic f inancial  st at ement s in an appropriat e operat ional,  economic,  or hist orical  cont ext .  We 

have appl ied cert ain l imit ed procedures t o t he required supplement ary informat ion in 

accordance wit h audit ing st andards general ly accept ed in t he Unit ed St at es of  America,  which 

consist ed of  inquiries of  management  about  t he met hods of  preparing t he informat ion and 

comparing t he informat ion for consist ency wit h management ’ s responses t o our inquiries,  t he 

basic f inancial  st at ement s,  and ot her knowledge we obt ained during our audit  of  t he basic 

f inancial  st at ement s.  We do not  express an opinion or provide any assurance on t he informat ion 

because t he l imit ed procedures do not  provide us wit h suf f icient  evidence t o express an opinion 

or provide any assurance.  
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Management  has omit t ed t he Management ’ s Discussion and Analysis t hat  account ing principles 

general ly accept ed in t he Unit ed St at es of  America require t o be present ed t o supplement  t he 

basic f inancial  st at ement s.  Such missing informat ion,  al t hough not  a part  of  t he basic f inancial 

st at ement s,  is required by t he Government al Account ing St andards Board who considers it  t o be 

an essent ial  part  of  f inancial  report ing for placing t he basic f inancial  st at ement s in an 

appropriat e operat ional,  economic,  or hist orical  cont ext .  Our opinion on t he basic f inancial 

st at ement s is not  af fect ed by t his missing informat ion.  

 

Supplement ary Inf ormat ion 
Our audit  was conduct ed for t he purpose of  forming opinions on t he f inancial  st at ement s t hat  

col lect ively comprise Cit y of  Cordova’ s basic f inancial  st at ement s.  The accompanying combining 

and individual fund f inancial  st at ement s,  schedules l ist ed in t he t able of  cont ent s,  Schedule of  

Expendit ures of  Federal Awards as required by t he Tit le 2 U.S.  Code of  Federal  Regulat ions 

(CFR) Part  200,  Unif orm Administ rat ive Requirement s,  Cost  Pr inciples,  and Audi t  Requirement s 

f or  Federal  Awards and t he Schedule of  St at e Financial  Assist ance as required by t he St at e of  

Alaska Audi t  Guide and Compl iance Supplement  f or  St at e Single Audi t s are present ed for 

purposes of  addit ional analysis and are not  a required part  of  t he basic f inancial  st at ement s.   

 

The accompanying Schedule of  Expendit ures of  Federal Awards,  t he Schedule of  St at e Financial  

Assist ance,  and t he combining and individual fund f inancial  st at ement s and schedules are t he 

responsibil i t y of  management  and were derived f rom and relat e direct ly t o t he underlying 

account ing and ot her records used t o prepare t he basic f inancial  st at ement s.   Such informat ion 

has been subj ect ed t o t he audit ing procedures appl ied in t he audit  of  t he basic f inancial  

st at ement s and cert ain addit ional procedures,  including comparing and reconcil ing such 

informat ion direct ly t o t he underlying account ing and ot her records used t o prepare t he basic 

f inancial  st at ement s or t o t he basic f inancial  st at ement s t hemselves,  and ot her addit ional 

procedures in accordance wit h audit ing st andards general ly accept ed in t he Unit ed St at es of  

America.   In our opinion,  t he accompanying supplement ary informat ion is fair ly st at ed,  in al l  

mat erial  respect s,  in relat ion t o t he basic f inancial  st at ement s as a whole.  

  

Other Reporting Required by Government  Audit ing Standards 

 

In accordance wit h Government  Audi t ing St andards,  we have also issued our report  dat ed 

Sept ember 3,  2019 on our considerat ion of  Cit y of  Cordova’ s int ernal cont rol over f inancial  

report ing and on our t est s of  i t s compliance wit h cert ain provisions of  laws,  regulat ions,  

cont ract s,  and grant  agreement s and ot her mat t ers.  The purpose of  t hat  report  is solely t o 

describe t he scope of  our t est ing of  int ernal cont rol  over f inancial  report ing and compliance and 

t he result s of  t hat  t est ing,  and not  t o provide an opinion on t he ef fect iveness of  t he Cit y of  

Cordova’ s int ernal cont rol  over f inancial  report ing or on compl iance.  That  report  is an int egral 

part  of  an audit  performed in accordance wit h Government  Audi t ing St andards in considering 

t he Cit y of  Cordova’ s int ernal cont rol  over f inancial  report ing and compliance.  
 

 
 

Anchorage,  Alaska 

Sept ember 3,  2019 
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Exhibit  A-1

Cordova Cordova Cordova

Business- Cit y Communit y Volunt eer

Government al t ype School Medical Fire

December 31,  2018 Act ivit ies Act ivit ies Tot al Dist rict Cent er Depart ment

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Assets

Cash and invest ment s 11,458,399$  2,887,190$   14,345,589$   1,773,901$  524,608$     52,046$      

Receivables:

   Taxes 556,100        -                   556,100          -                 -                  -                 

   Account s -                   494,297        494,297          62,792        1,659,347    -                 

   Grant s and shared revenues 10,612          -                   10,612            147,777       -                  -                 

   Ot her 114,133        -                   114,133          -                 111,372       -                 

Al lowance for doubt ful  account s -                   (214,318)       (214,318)         -                 -                  -                 

Third-part y payor set t lement s -                   -                   -                     -                 525,974       

Due f rom CCMC 75,000          -                   75,000            -                 -                  

Prepaid it ems 185,743        90,247          275,990          220,852       46,662         -                 

Deposit s -                   6,500           6,500             -                 -                  -                 

Invent ory -                   -                   -                     50,814        306,888       -                 

Rest rict ed cash and invest ment s -                   890,196        890,196          -                 -                  529             

Lease receivable 751,000        -                   751,000          -                 -                  -                 

Capit al  asset s:

   Land and const ruct ion in progress 1,523,343     5,596,343     7,119,686       -                 131,532       -                 

   Ot her capit al  asset s,  

     net  of  depreciat ion 51,386,234    28,265,367   79,651,601     105,691       4,222,820    -                 

Total Assets 66,060,564    38,015,822   104,076,386   2,361,827    7,529,203    52,575        

Deferred Outflows of Resources

  Relat ed t o pensions 399,278        134,220        533,498          381,202       798,598       -                 

  Relat ed t o ot her 

    post employment  benef it s 278,934        98,571          377,505          109,520       434,761       -                 

  Relat ed t o goodwil l -                   -                   -                     -                 135,000       -                 

  Deferred loss on bonds 1,182,467     -                   1,182,467       -                 -                  -                 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,860,679     232,791        2,093,470       490,722       1,368,359    -                 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 

  of Resources 67,921,243$  38,248,613$ 106,169,856$ 2,852,549$  8,897,562$  52,575$      

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Statement of Net Position

Primary Government Component  Unit s
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Exhibit  A-1,  cont inued

Cordova Cordova Cordova

Business- Cit y Communit y Volunt eer

Government al t ype School Medical Fire

December 31,  2018 Act ivit ies Act ivit ies Tot al Dist r ict Cent er epart ment

Liabilities,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Liabilities

Account s payable                          173,420$     72,691$       246,111$       262,000$     1,168,184$ -$         

Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabi l i t ies 197,435       35,354         232,789         51,132        1,442,294   -           

Healt h claims payable 95,000         -                  95,000           -                 -                -           

Cust omer deposit s -                  36,566         36,566           -                 -                -           

Accrued int erest  payable 182,488       55,283         237,771         -                 -                -           

Unearned revenue 77,150         461,061       538,211         -                 -                -           

Noncurrent  l iabi l i t ies:

   Due wit hin one year:

      Accrued vacat ion and sick leave 292,599       111,397       403,996         -                 214,553      -           

      Bonds and loans 1,282,000    162,044       1,444,044      -                 -                -           

      Capit al lease -                  -                   -                 124,914      -           

   Due in more t han one year:

      Loans -                  3,107,426    3,107,426      -                 75,000        -           

      General obligat ion bonds 13,790,000   -                  13,790,000    -                 -                -           

      Capit al lease -                  -                  -                   -                 428,365      -           

      Net  pension l iabi l i t y 4,866,221    1,559,584    6,425,805      3,087,978   5,175,441   -           

      Net  ot her post employment  benef it s l iabi l i t y 970,902       343,095       1,313,997      349,681      1,061,999   -           

      Unamort ized bond premium 1,861,783    -                  1,861,783      -                 -                -           

      Landf i l l  closure cost s -                  761,381       761,381         -                 -                -           

Total Liabilities 23,788,998   6,705,882    30,494,880    3,750,791   9,690,750   -           

Deferred Inflows of Resources

  Relat ed t o pensions 128,643       32,838         161,481         537,307      129,893      -           

  Relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 351,948       124,372       476,320         278,824      504,551      -           

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 480,591       157,210       637,801         816,131      634,444      -           

Total Liabilities and Deferred 

  Inflows of Resources 24,269,589   6,863,092    31,132,681    4,566,922   10,325,194 -        

Net Position

Net  invest ment  in capit al asset s 37,158,261   30,592,240   67,750,501    105,691      3,801,073   -           

Rest r ict ed:

  E-911 64,396         -                  64,396           -                 -                -           

  Refuse -                  890,196       890,196         -                 -                -           

  School Dist r ict -                  -                  -                   198,312      -                -           

Unrest r ict ed (def icit ) 6,428,997    (96,915)        6,332,082      (2,018,376)  (5,228,705)  52,575  

Total Net Position (Deficit) 43,651,654   31,385,521   75,037,175    (1,714,373)  (1,427,632)  52,575  

Total Liabilities,  Deferred Inflows

  of Resources and Net Position 67,921,243$ 38,248,613$ 106,169,856$ 2,852,549$  8,897,562$ 52,575$ 

See accompanying not es t o basic f inancial  st at ement s.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Statement of Net Position,  continued

Primary Government Component  Unit s
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Exhibit  A-2

 Fees,  

 Fines  Operat ing  Capit al  

 and  Grant s  Grant s 

 Charges  and  and 

 for  Cont ri-  Cont ri- 

Act ivit ies  Expenses  Services  but ions  but ions 

Primary Government

  Government al :

    General  government 1,872,044$      614,165$       29,063$         -$                  

    Publ ic safet y 1,600,182        236,476         155,989         12,968           

    Informat ion and recreat ion 1,535,301        122,170         -                   -                    

    Publ ic works 2,183,354        736               -                   174,862         

    Educat ion 2,297,784        -                   632,093         -                    

    Healt h 770,134           -                   -                   -                    

    Communit y service 118,017           -                   -                   -                    

    Int erest 627,571           -                   952,265         -                    

    Capit al  out lay 6,340              -                   -                   -                    

  Tot al  government al  act ivit ies 11,010,727      973,547         1,769,410      187,830         

  Business-t ype:

    Port 2,039,549        1,351,102      7,504            -                    

    Wat er 1,320,016        675,719         3,726            -                    

    Sewer 1,163,549        760,180         3,726            -                    

    Refuse 918,727           1,074,365      6,950            -                    

    Camper Park 66,821            75,985          690               -                    

  Tot al  business-t ype act ivit ies 5,508,662        3,937,351      22,596          -                    

Total Primary Government 16,519,389$    4,910,898$    1,792,006$    187,830$       

Component Units

  Cordova Cit y School Dist r ict 6,848,781$      52,596$         756,034$       -$                  

  Cordova Communit y Medical  Cent er 12,163,408$    9,645,717$    462,727$       -$                  

  Volunt eer Fire Depart ment 22,012$           4,485$          4,385$          -$                  

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31,  2018

 Program Revenues 

8



Exhibit  A-2,  cont inued

 Cordova  Cordova Cordova

 Govern-  Business-  Cit y  Communit y Volunt eer 

 ment al   t ype  School  Medical  Fire 

Act ivit ies  Act ivit ies  Act ivit ies  Tot al   Dist rict   Cent er Depart ment

Primary Government

  Government al :

    General  government (1,228,816)$   -$                  (1,228,816)$   

    Publ ic safet y (1,194,749)     -                   (1,194,749)     

    Informat ion and recreat ion (1,413,131)     -                   (1,413,131)     

    Publ ic works (2,007,756)     -                   (2,007,756)     

    Educat ion (1,665,691)     -                   (1,665,691)     

    Healt h (770,134)        -                   (770,134)        

    Communit y service (118,017)        -                   (118,017)        

    Int erest 324,694         -                   324,694         

    Capit al  out lay (6,340)           -                   (6,340)           

  Tot al  government al  act ivit ies (8,079,940)     -                   (8,079,940)     

  Business-t ype:

    Port -                   (680,943)        (680,943)        

    Wat er -                   (640,571)        (640,571)        

    Sewer -                   (399,643)        (399,643)        

    Refuse -                   162,588         162,588         

    Camper Park -                   9,854            9,854            

  Tot al  business-t ype act ivit ies -                   (1,548,715)     (1,548,715)     

Total Primary Government (8,079,940)     (1,548,715)     (9,628,655)     

Component Units

  Cordova Cit y School Dist rict (6,040,151)$   

  Cordova Communit y Medical  Cent er (2,054,964)$   

  Volunt eer Fire Depart ment (13,142)$    

General Revenues

   Sales t axes 3,111,480      -                   3,111,480      -                   -                   -                

   Propert y t axes 2,551,853      -                   2,551,853      -                   -                   -                

   Payment s in l ieu of  t axes 442,001         -                   442,001         -                   -                   -                

   Ot her t axes 314,492         -                   314,492         -                   -                   -                

   Cont ribut ions f rom primary

     government -                   -                   -                   1,602,052      866,814         18,025       

   Grant s and ent it lement s not  rest rict ed

      t o a specif ic purpose 1,836,611      1,836,611      4,685,853      968,323         -                

   Invest ment  income (loss) (250,094)        1,630            (248,464)        404               86                 -                

   Gain on sale of  building 614,557         -                   614,557         -                   -                   -                

   Ot her -                   -                   -                   35,129          -                   -                

Transfers 38,984           (38,984)         -                   -                   -                   -                

Tot al  General  Revenues

   and Transfers 8,659,884      (37,354)         8,622,530      6,323,438      1,835,223      18,025       

Change in net  posit ion 579,944         (1,586,069)     (1,006,125)     283,287         (219,741)       4,883         

Net Posit ion,  beginning,  rest at ed 43,071,710    32,971,590    76,043,300    (1,997,660)    (1,207,891)    47,692       

Net Posit ion,  ending 43,651,654$  31,385,521$  75,037,175$  (1,714,373)$   (1,427,632)$   52,575$     

See accompanying not es t o basic f inancial  st at ement s.

 Primary Government   Unit s 

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Statement of Activit ies,  continued

Year Ended December 31,  2018

 Net  (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net  Posit ion 

 Component  
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Exhibit  B-1

General Tot al

Reserve Govern-

 Special Nonmaj or ment al

December  31,  2018 General Revenue Funds Funds

Assets

Cash and invest ment s 1,258,188$   9,525,343$   674,868$     11,458,399$   

Receivables:

  Taxes 556,100        -                   -                  556,100          

  Grant s and shared revenues -                   -                   10,612         10,612            

  Ot her 91,990          -                   22,143         114,133          

Prepaid insurance 185,743        -                   -                  185,743          

Due f rom CCMC 75,000          -                   -                  75,000            

Lease receivable 751,000        -                   -                  751,000          

Total Assets 2,918,021$   9,525,343$   707,623$     13,150,987$   

Liabilities,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances

Liabilities

  Account s payable 127,906$      -$                 45,514$       173,420$        

  Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabil i t ies 197,435        -                   -                  197,435          

  Healt h claims payable 95,000          -                   -                  95,000            

  Unearned revenue 77,150          -                   -                  77,150            

Total Liabilit ies 497,491        -                   45,514         543,005          

Deferred Inflows of Resources

  Deferred propert y t axes 54,172          -                   -                  54,172            

  Deferred ambulance revenue -                   -                   11,305         11,305            

  Deferred lease revenue 751,000        -                   -                  751,000          

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 805,172        -                   11,305         816,477          

Fund Balances

  Nonspendable - prepaid insurance 185,743        -                   -                  185,743          

  Rest rict ed - enhanced 911 services -                   -                   64,396         64,396            

  Assigned:

    Capit al  proj ect s and land -                   9,525,343     248,012       9,773,355       

    Publ ic safet y -                   -                   338,396       338,396          

  Unassigned 1,429,615     -                   -                  1,429,615       

Total Fund Balances 1,615,358     9,525,343     650,804       11,791,505     

Total Liabilit ies,  Deferred Inflows 

  of Resources,  and Fund Balances 2,918,021$   9,525,343$   707,623$     13,150,987$   

See accompanying not es t o basic f inancial  st at ement s.

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Maj or Funds
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Exhibit  B-2

Tot al  fund balances for government al  funds 11,791,505$    

Tot al  net  posit ion report ed for government al  act ivit ies in t he

   St at ement  of  Net  Posit ion is dif ferent  because:

      Capit al  asset s used in government al  act ivit ies are not  

         f inancial  resources and,  t herefore,  are not  report ed 

         in t he funds.   These asset s and relat ed accumulat ed 

         depreciat ion are as fol lows:

            Land and land improvement s 1,410,419$     

            Art work 112,924          

            Buildings 61,893,431     

            Inf rast ruct ure 3,862,882       

            Machinery and equipment 7,744,817       

            Accumulat ed depreciat ion (22,114,896)    

      Tot al  capit al  asset s 52,909,577     

      Ot her long-t erm asset s are not  available t o pay for current  

         period expendit ures and,  t herefore,  are deferred in t he funds.  

         These asset s consist  of :

            Lease receivable 751,000          

            Del inquent  propert y t axes receivable 54,172           

            Deferred ambulance revenue 11,305           

      Tot al  ot her long-t erm asset s 816,477          

     Cert ain i t ems report ed as immediat e expendit ures in t he funds,  are

         amort ized over t ime on t he St at ement  of  Net  Posit ion.   This is

         t he deferred loss on bond refunding. 1,182,467       

      Long-t erm l iabi l i t ies are not  due and payable in t he current  

         period and,  t herefore,  are not  report ed as fund l iabi l i t ies.  

         These l iabi l i t ies consist  of :

            General  obl igat ion bonds payable (15,072,000)    

            Unamort ized bond premium (1,861,783)     

            Accrued int erest  on bonds (182,488)        

            Accrued leave (292,599)        

            Net  pension l iabi l i t y (4,866,221)     

            Net  ot her post employment  benef it s l iabi l i t y (970,902)        

      Tot al  long-t erm l iabi l i t ies (23,245,993)    

       

Cert ain changes in net  pension  and ot her post employment  benef it  l iabi l i t ies are

 deferred rat her t han recognized immediat ely.  These are amort ized over t ime.

Deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions 399,278          

Deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions (128,643)        

Deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 278,934          

Deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s (351,948)        

Tot al  deferred pension and ot her post employment  benef it s i t ems 197,621          

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities 43,651,654$    

See accompanying not es t o basic f inancial  st at ement s.

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to Statement of Net Position

City of Cordova,  Alaska

December 31,  2018
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Exhibit  B-3

 General Tot al

Reserve Govern-

Special Nonmaj or ment al

Year Ended December 31,  2018 General Revenue Funds Funds

Revenues

  Taxes                               6,416,822$     -$                   -$                   6,416,822$     

  Licenses and permit s 31,235            -                     -                     31,235            

  Federal government 639,586          -                     12,968            652,554          

  St at e of  Alaska 3,074,413       -                     16,000            3,090,413       

  Invest ment  income (loss) 40,583            (290,677)         -                     (250,094)         

  Land sales -                     121,950          -                     121,950          

  Charges for services 1,036,936       -                     -                     1,036,936       

  Ot her revenues 336,453          736                56,506            393,695          

Total Revenues 11,576,028     (167,991)         85,474            11,493,511     

Expenditures

  Current :

     General government                   1,730,723       -                     -                     1,730,723       

     Publ ic safet y                       1,412,986       -                     21,636            1,434,622       

     Informat ion and recreat ion 1,354,835       -                     18,000            1,372,835       

     Publ ic works 1,694,051       -                     230,509          1,924,560       

     Educat ion 1,628,710       -                     75,738            1,704,448       

     Healt h 770,134          -                     -                     770,134          

     Communit y service 118,017          -                     -                     118,017          

  Debt  service:

     Principal 1,194,000       -                     -                     1,194,000       

     Int erest  761,167          -                     -                     761,167          

  Capit al  out lay -                     -                     6,340             6,340             

Total Expenditures 10,664,623     -                     352,223          11,016,846     

Excess of  revenues over 

  (under) expendit ures 911,405          (167,991)         (266,749)         476,665          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

   Transfers in -                     38,984            1,755,434       1,794,418       

   Transfers out (1,634,002)      -                     (121,432)         (1,755,434)      

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,634,002)      38,984            1,634,002       38,984            

Net  change in fund balances (722,597)         (129,007)         1,367,253       515,649          

Fund Balances (Deficit),  beginning 2,337,955       9,654,350       (716,449)         11,275,856     

Fund Balances (Deficit),  ending 1,615,358$     9,525,343$     650,804$        11,791,505$   

See accompanying not es t o basic f inancial  st at ement s.

Statement of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Maj or Funds
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Exhibit  B-4

Net  change in fund balances - t ot al government al funds 515,649$          

The change in net  posit ion report ed for government al act ivi t ies in t he 

   St at ement  of  Act ivi t ies is dif ferent  because:

    Government al funds report  capit al out lays as expendit ures.   However,  

      on t he St at ement  of  Act ivi t ies,  depreciat ion expense is recognized t o 

      al locat e t he cost  of  t hese i t ems over t heir est imat ed useful l ives.   

      This is t he amount  by which depreciat ion ($1,713,967) exceeds

      capit al out lays ($79,338) and gain on sale of  bui lding ($614,557) (1,156,515)        

    Sale of  bui lding relat ed t o direct  f inancing lease.  This is t he amount  of  t he sales price

      of  t he lease ($751,000) which exceeds t he gain on t he sale of  t he bui lding ($614,557) 136,443            

    Revenues in t he St at ement  of  Act ivi t ies t hat  do not  provide current

      f inancial resources are not  report ed as revenues in t he funds.   This 

      is t he amount  of  increase in deferred t axes,  assessment s,  and

      ambulance revenue. 6,877               

    The issuance of  long-t erm debt  (e.g. ,  bonds) provides current  

      f inancial resources t o government al funds,  whi le t he repayment  of  

      t he principal of  long-t erm debt  consumes current  f inancial resources 

      of  government al funds.   Neit her t ransact ion,  however,  has any ef fect  

      on net  posit ion.   Also,  government al funds report  t he ef fect  of  premiums,

      discount s,  and similar i t ems when debt  is f i rst  issued,  whereas t hese

      amount s are deferred and amort ized in t he St at ement  of  Act ivi t ies.

      This amount  is t he net  ef fect  of  t hese dif ferences in t he t reat ment  of

      long-t erm debt  and relat ed i t ems:

          Principal payment s on long-t erm debt 1,194,000$       

          Net  decrease in deferred loss on bond refunding (107,496)          

          Net  decrease in unamort ized bond premium 198,914            

1,285,418         

     Some expenses report ed in t he St at ement  of  Act ivi t ies do not  require 

      t he use of  current  f inancial resources and,  t herefore,  are not  report ed 

      as expendit ures in government al funds.   This amount  represent s t he 

      net  decrease (increase) in t he fol lowing:

           Accrued int erest  payable 42,178             

           Accrued leave 11,347             

  Net  pension obl igat ion and relat ed account s 106,768            

  Net  ot her post employment  benef i t s and relat ed account s (368,221)          

(207,928)          

Change in Net Posit ion of Governmental Activit ies 579,944$          

See accompanying not es t o basic f inancial  st at ement s.

Reconciliation of Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to Statement of Activities

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Year Ended December 31,  2018
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Exhibit  C-1

Nonmaj or

Fund Tot al 

Odiak Ent erprise

December 31,  2018 Port Wat er Sewer Refuse Park Funds

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Assets

  Cash and invest ment s                 1,753,775$      4,928$            601,105$       382,135$        145,247$    2,887,190$      

  Account s receivable 351,448           23,356            55,106           64,387            -                 494,297           

  Al lowance for doubt ful  account s (213,757)          -                     -                   (561)               -                 (214,318)          

  Prepaid expenses 42,075             15,176            15,176           15,176            2,644          90,247             

  Deposit s -                      -                     6,500            -                    -                 6,500               

Total Current Assets                   1,933,541        43,460            677,887         461,137          147,891      3,263,916        

Restricted Assets - landf i l l  closure cash -                      -                     -                   890,196          -                 890,196           

Property,  Plant and Equipment 26,468,682      23,225,737     18,524,769    5,114,998       90,080        73,424,266      

Less accumulat ed depreciat ion                   (15,201,894)     (10,107,302)    (11,136,807)   (3,055,179)     (61,374)       (39,562,556)     

Net Property,  Plant and Equipment 11,266,788      13,118,435     7,387,962      2,059,819       28,706        33,861,710      

Total Assets                      13,200,329      13,161,895     8,065,849      3,411,152       176,597      38,015,822      

Deferred Out f lows of  Resources -

  relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 33,759             16,765            16,765           31,282            -                 98,571             

Deferred Out f lows of  Resources - relat ed t o pensions 57,958             17,606            17,606           41,050            -                 134,220           

Total Defered Outflows of Resources 91,717             34,371            34,371           72,332            -                 232,791           

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 13,292,046$     13,196,266$   8,100,220$    3,483,484$     176,597$    38,248,613$     

Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Maj or Funds
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Exhibit  C-1,  cont inued

Nonmaj or

Fund Tot al 

Odiak Ent erprise

December 31, 2018 Port Wat er Sewer Refuse Park Funds

Liabilities,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Current Liabilities

  Account s payable                              38,158$           5,774$            8,810$          8,501$           118$           61,361$           

  Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabil it ies 12,741             5,507             5,507            11,017           582            35,354             

  Accrued vacat ion and sick leave 41,498             22,957            22,957          23,985           -                111,397           

  Cust omer deposit s                     -                     36,566            -                   -                    -                36,566             

  Accrued int erest  payable                 -                     49,678            5,225            380                -                55,283             

  Unearned revenue                              461,061           -                    -                   -                    -                461,061           

  Current  port ion of  bonds and loans payable -                     69,044            55,000          38,000           -                162,044           

  Ot her l iabil it ies -                     -                    -                   -                    11,330        11,330             

Total Current Liabilities              553,458           189,526          97,499          81,883           12,030        934,396           

Noncurrent Liabilities,  net  of  current  port ion

  Loans payable t o ADEC, net  of  current  port ion -                     2,117,426       990,000         -                    -                3,107,426        

  Net  ot her post employment  benef it s l iabil it y 117,507           58,352            58,352          108,884         -                343,095           

  Net  pension l iabil it y 608,510           224,464          224,464         502,146         -                1,559,584        

  Landf il l  closure cost s -                     -                    -                   761,381         -                761,381           

Total Noncurrent Liabilities              726,017           2,400,242       1,272,816      1,372,411      -                5,771,486        

Total Liabilities                      1,279,475        2,589,768       1,370,315      1,454,294      12,030        6,705,882        

Deferred Inf lows of  Resources - relat ed t o pensions 13,424             4,072             3,864            11,478           -                32,838             

Deferred Inf lows of  Resources - ot her post employment  benef it s 42,596             21,153            21,153          39,470           -                124,372           

Deferred Inflow of Resources 56,020             25,225            25,017          50,948           -                157,210           

Net Position

  Net  invest ment  in capit al asset s 11,266,788      10,931,965     6,342,962      2,021,819      28,706        30,592,240       

  Rest rict ed -                     -                    -                   890,196         -                890,196           

  Unrest rict ed (def icit ) 689,763           (350,692)         361,926         (933,773)        135,861      (96,915)            

Total Net Position 11,956,551      10,581,273     6,704,888      1,978,242      164,567      31,385,521       

Total Liabilities,  Deferred Inflow of Resources,  and Net Position 13,292,046$     13,196,266$    8,100,220$    3,483,484$     176,597$    38,248,613$     

See accompanying not es t o basic f inancial  st at ement s.

Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position,  continued

Maj or Funds

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  C-2

Enterprise Funds

Nonmaj or

                                                    Fund Tot al

Odiak Ent erprise

Year Ended December 31,  2018 Port Wat er Sewer Refuse Park Funds

Operating Revenues

  Charges for services       1,351,102$   675,719$      760,180$    1,074,365$ 75,985$    3,937,351$   

Operating Expenses   

  Salaries and benef it s 542,376        268,444        267,855      511,273      26,783     1,616,731     

  Ot her operat ing expenses 734,464        401,302        418,687      237,940      38,000     1,830,393     

  Depreciat ion 762,709        620,353        410,383      128,933      2,038       1,924,416     

Total Operating Expenses 2,039,549     1,290,099     1,096,925   878,146      66,821     5,371,540     

Income (loss) f rom operat ions              (688,447)       (614,380)      (336,745)     196,219      9,164       (1,434,189)    

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

  Invest ment  income             845              -                  -                785             -              1,630           

  Int erest  expense                               -                  (36,803)        (16,210)      (2,365)        -              (55,378)        

  In-kind cont ribut ions -                  (15,614)        (35,014)      (38,216)       -              (88,844)        

  St at e of  Alaska PERS rel ief 7,504           3,726           3,726         6,950          690          22,596          

  Loss on disposal  of  equipment -                  -                  (15,400)      -                 -              (15,400)        

  Ot her income -                  22,500         -                -                 -              22,500          

Net Nonoperating Revenues 

  (Expenses) 8,349           (26,191)        (62,898)      (32,846)       690          (112,896)       

Income (loss) before t ransfers (680,098)       (640,571)      (399,643)     163,373      9,854       (1,547,085)    

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in -                  5,000           -                -                 -              5,000           

Transfers out  (25,328)        (1,164)          (11,164)      (2,328)        (4,000)      (43,984)        

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (25,328)        3,836           (11,164)      (2,328)        (4,000)      (38,984)        

Change in net  posit ion (705,426)       (636,735)      (410,807)     161,045      5,854       (1,586,069)    

Net Position,  beginning of  

  year,  as rest at ed 12,661,977   11,218,008   7,115,695   1,817,197   158,713    32,971,590   

Net Position,  ending 11,956,551$ 10,581,273$ 6,704,888$ 1,978,242$ 164,567$  31,385,521$ 

See accompanying not es t o basic f inancial  st at ement s.

Statement of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Maj or Funds
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Exhibit  C-3

Enterprise Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

Nonmaj or

Fund Tot al  

Odiak Ent erprise

Year Ended December 31,  2018 Port Wat er Sewer Refuse Park Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activit ies

    Receipt s f rom cust omers and users 1,396,957$  674,908$   742,601$   1,052,636$  75,985$     3,943,087$   

    Payment s for int erfund services used (180,706)     (78,868)     (99,650)     (144,248)      (9,750)       (513,222)       

    Payment s t o suppl iers (579,808)     (353,360)    (330,907)   (182,064)      (31,018)     (1,477,157)    

    Payment s t o employees (504,271)     (241,493)    (241,706)   (475,133)      (23,199)     (1,485,802)    

Net  cash f lows f rom

  operat ing act ivit ies     132,172       1,187        70,338      251,191       12,018       466,906        

Cash Flows from (for) Noncapital Financing 

  Activit ies

    Transfers in -                 5,000        -               -                  -               5,000           

    Transfers out (25,328)       (1,164)       (11,164)     (2,328)         (4,000)       (43,984)        

Net  cash f lows f rom (for)

  noncapit al  f inancing act ivit ies     (25,328)       3,836        (11,164)     (2,328)         (4,000)       (38,984)        

Cash Flows for Capital and Related 

  Financing Activit ies

    Addit ions t o propert y,  plant  

       and equipment              -                 (59,461)     -               (14,425)        -               (73,886)        

    Capit al  cont ribut ions received -                 150,743     -               -                  -               150,743        

    Increase (decrease) in due t o ot her funds (11,652)       (49,953)     (3,908)       (9,311)         (1,155)       (75,979)        

    Principal  and int erest  paid on long-t erm debt -                 (41,424)     -               (38,960)        -               (80,384)        

    Proceeds f rom ADEC loan -                 -               (227,965)   -                  -               (227,965)       

Net  cash f lows for capit al  and 

  relat ed f inancing act ivit ies         (11,652)       (95)            (231,873)   (62,696)        (1,155)       (307,471)       

Cash Flows from Investing Activit ies

  Invest ment  income received 845             -               -               785              -               1,630           

Net  increase (decrease) in cash and invest ment s  96,037        4,928        (172,699)   186,952       6,863        122,081        

Cash and Investments,  beginning 1,657,738    -               773,804     1,085,379    138,384     3,655,305     

Cash and Investments,  ending 1,753,775$  4,928$       601,105$   1,272,331$  145,247$   3,777,386$   

Reconciliation of Cash and Investments 

  to Statement of Net Position

    Cash and invest ment s 1,753,775$  4,928$       601,105$   382,135$     145,247$   2,887,190$   

    Rest rict ed asset s -                 -               -               890,196       -               890,196        

Total Cash and Investments 1,753,775$  4,928$       601,105$   1,272,331$  145,247$   3,777,386$   

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Maj or Funds
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Exhibit  C-3,  cont inued

Nonmaj or

Fund Tot al 

Odiak Ent erprise

Year  Ended December  31,  2018 Port Wat er Sewer Refuse Park Funds

Reconciliation of Income (Loss) from Operations to Net 

  Cash Flows from Operating Activities

    Income (loss) f rom operat ions                                    (688,447)$ (614,380)$ (336,745)$ 196,219$  9,164$     (1,434,189)$   

     Adj ust ment s t o reconci le income (loss) 

      f rom operat ions t o net  cash f lows f rom 

      operat ing act ivi t ies:

        Depreciat ion                                      762,709    620,353    410,383    128,933   2,038       1,924,416      

        Decrease in al lowance for doubt ful account s -               -               (428)         -              -             (428)              

        Noncash expense - PERS rel ief 7,504        3,726        3,726        6,950       690         22,596          

        Ot her income -               22,500      -               -              -             22,500          

        Increase (decrease) in al lowance for 

          doubt ful account s 73,928      (987)         -               (789)        -             72,152          

        In-kind cont ribut ions -               (15,614)     (35,014)     (38,216)    -             (88,844)         

        (Increase) decrease in asset s and 

          deferred out f lows of  resources

            Account s receivable (60,838)     6,923        17,863      17,276     -             (18,776)         

            Prepaid expenses (15,350)     (1,701)       (1,701)       (204)        (2,644)     (21,600)         

            Deferred out f lows relat ed t o pensions (9,477)       (4,706)       (4,706)       (8,781)      -             (27,670)         

            Deferred out f lows relat ed t o ot her 

             post employment  benef i t s (33,759)     (16,765)     (16,765)     (31,282)    -             (98,571)         

        Increase (decrease) in l iabi l i t ies and 

         deferred  inf lows of  resources

            Account s payable                                (10,700)     (29,225)     (10,169)     2,661       (124)        (47,557)         

            Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabi l i t ies 1,051        (318)         (912)         (819)        44           (954)              

            Accrued vacat ion and sick leave (2,092)       7,622        7,622        689          -             13,841          

            Unearned revenue 32,765      -               -               -              -             32,765          

            Cust omer deposit s -               (13,633)     -               -              -             (13,633)         

            Landf i l l  closure cost s payable -               -               -               (90,829)    -             (90,829)         

            Ot her l iabi l i t ies -               -               -               -              2,850       2,850            

            Net  pension l iabi l i t y 22,799      11,322      11,322      21,126     -             66,569          

            Net  ot her post employment  benef i t s l iabi l i t y 35,728      17,742      17,742      33,106     -             104,318         

            Deferred inf lows relat ed t o pensions (26,245)     (12,825)     (13,033)     (24,319)    -             (76,422)         

            Deferred inf lows relat ed t o ot her

             post employment  benef i t s 42,596      21,153      21,153      39,470     -             124,372         

Net Cash Flows from Operating 

  Activities 132,172$   1,187$      70,338$    251,191$  12,018$   466,906$       

See accompanying not es t o basic f inancial  st at ement s.

Statement of Cash Flows,  continued

Enterprise Funds

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Maj or Funds
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Report ing Ent ity 

 

The Cit y of  Cordova (the Cit y) was incorporated in 1909 as a home rule municipalit y under the laws of  

the State of  Alaska. The Cit y operates under a council-manager form of  government  and performs 

municipal dut ies allowed by Alaska statutes and as directed by it s residents.  

 

These f inancial statements present  the Cit y of  Cordova (the primary government ) and it s component  

unit s,  the Cordova Cit y School Dist rict ,  Cordova Community Medical Center (Medical Center),  and 

Cordova Volunteer Fire Department .  The component  unit s are included in the Cit y's report ing ent it y 

because of  t he signif icance of  t heir operat ional or f inancial relat ionships with the Cit y.  Each 

discretely presented component  unit  is reported in a separate column in the government -wide 

f inancial statements to emphasize that  it  is legally separate f rom the Cit y.  

 

Discretely presented component  unit  - Cordova Communit y Medical Center 

Cordova Communit y Medical Center provides healthcare,  including long-term care,  in the 

Cordova area. The members of  the board of  directors are elected by the voters.   

 

Discretely presented component  unit  - Cordova Cit y School Dist rict  

Cordova Cit y School Dist rict  is responsible for elementary and secondary educat ion within the 

Cit y.  The members of  t he School Board are elected by the voters;  however,  t he School 

Dist rict  is f iscally dependent  upon the Cit y because the Cit y Council approves the total annual 

budget  of  t he School Dist rict ,  levies the necessary taxes, and provides signif icant  operat ing 

subsidies to t he School Dist rict .  

 

Discretely presented component  unit  - Cordova Volunteer Fire Department  

The Cordova Volunteer Fire Department  assist s the Cit y’ s f ire department  with f ire 

prevent ion,  t raining, and f ight ing f ires in the Cordova area.  

 

In accordance with Alaska statutes, t he Cordova Cit y School Dist rict  maintains a June 30 f iscal year 

end. Cordova Communit y Medical Center previously operated on a June 30 f iscal year end and 

changed it s f iscal year end to December 31, beginning with December 31, 2013. The Cit y has 

established a December 31 year end.  For this report ,  t he June 30, 2018 year-end f inancial 

statements of  t he School Dist rict  have been included with the Cit y of  Cordova. 

 

Complete f inancial statements of  individual component  unit s can be obtained f rom their respect ive 

administ rat ive of f ices at  t he addresses below: 

 

Cordova Cit y School Dist rict  

Cordova Communit y Medical 

Center 

Cordova Volunteer Fire 

Department  

P.O. Box 140 P.O. Box 160 P.O. Box 1210 

Cordova, AK 99574 Cordova, AK 99574 Cordova, AK 99574 
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Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 

The government -wide f inancial statements (i.e. ,  t he statement  of  net  posit ion and the statement  of 

act ivit ies) report  informat ion on all of  t he act ivit ies of  the Cit y and it s component  unit s.  In general,  

t he ef fect  of  interfund act ivit y has been removed from these statements to minimize the double-

count ing of  internal act ivit ies.  Government al  act ivit ies,  which normally are supported by taxes and 

intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately f rom business-t ype act ivi t ies,  which rely 

primarily on fees and charges to external part ies.  

 

The statement  of  act ivit ies demonst rates the degree to which the direct  expenses of  a given funct ion 

or segment  are of fset  by program revenues. Direct  expenses are t hose that  are clearly ident if iable 

with a specif ic funct ion or segment .  Program revenues include 1) fees, f ines and charges to 

customers or applicants who purchase, use, or direct ly benef it  f rom goods, services, or privileges 

provided by a given funct ion or segment  and 2) grants and cont ribut ions that  are rest ricted to 

meet ing the operat ional or capital requirements of  a part icular funct ion or segment .  Taxes and other 

it ems not  properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general  revenues.  

 

Separate f inancial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  Maj or 

individual governmental funds and maj or individual enterprise funds are reported as separate 

columns in the fund f inancial statements.   

 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Account ing, and Financial Statement Presentat ion 

 

The government -wide and proprietary fund f inancial statements are reported using the economic 

resources measurement  focus and the accrual  basis of  account ing. Revenues are recorded when 

earned and expenses are recorded when a l iabil it y is incurred, regardless of  t he t iming of  the related 

cash f lows. Propert y taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants 

and similar it ems are recognized as revenue as soon as all el igibil it y requirements imposed by the 

provider have been met .  

 

Governmental fund f inancial statements are reported using the current  f inancial resources 

measurement  focus and the modif ied accrual  basis of  account ing.  Revenues are recognized as soon as 

they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are 

collect ible within the current  period or soon enough thereaf ter t o pay l iabil it ies of  the current  

period.  For this purpose, the Cit y considers al l  revenues, except  reimbursement  grants,  to be 

available if  t hey are collected within 60 days af ter year end. Reimbursement  grants are considered 

available if  t hey are collected within one year of  the end of  t he current  f iscal period. Expenditures 

generally are recorded when a l iabil it y is incurred, as under accrual account ing.  However, debt  

service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded only t o 

the extent  they have matured.  

 

 

 

 

The remainder  of  t his page int ent ional ly lef t  blank.  
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Propert y and sales taxes, charges for services, leases, and interest  associated with the current  f iscal 

period are all considered to be suscept ible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of  the 

current  f iscal period. All other revenue it ems are considered to be measurable and available only 

when received by the government .  The Cit y report s t he following maj or funds:  

 

Maj or governmental funds:  

 

The General  Fund is the government ’ s primary operat ing fund. It  accounts for all f inancial 

resources of  t he general government ,  except  those required to be reported in another fund. 

The General  Reserve Special  Revenue Fund accounts for f inancial act ivit ies related to land 

purchases and sales and serves as the Cit y’ s emergency reserves fund.  

Maj or proprietary funds:  

 

The Port  Ent erprise Fund is used to account  for t he operat ions of  t he port  and harbor.  

The Wat er Ent erprise Fund is used to account  for t he operat ions of  t he Cit y water system. 

The Sewer Ent erprise Fund is used to account  for t he operat ions of  t he Cit y sewer system. 

The Refuse Ent erprise Fund is used to account  for the Refuse Ut il it y and the solid waste 

landf il l .  

As a general rule,  the ef fect  of  interfund act ivit y has been eliminated from the government -wide 

f inancial statements. Except ions to t his general rule are allocated administ rat ion fees and charges 

between the enterprise funds and the various other funds and departments. Eliminat ion of  these 

charges would distort  t he direct  costs and program revenues reported for t he various funct ions 

concerned. 

 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,  

services, or privileges provided, 2) operat ing grants and cont ribut ions, and 3) capital grants and 

cont ribut ions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general  revenues rather than as 

program revenues. In addit ion, general revenues include all t axes, investment  income, and federal 

and State of  Alaska ent it lement  revenues. 

 

Proprietary funds dist inguish operat ing revenues and expenses f rom nonoperat ing it ems. Operat ing 

revenues and expenses generally result  f rom providing services and producing and delivering goods in 

connect ion with a proprietary fund’ s principal ongoing operat ions. The principal operat ing revenues 

of  the Enterprise Funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operat ing expenses for the 

Enterprise Funds include the costs of  sales and services, administ rat ive expenses and depreciat ion on 

capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not  meet ing this def init ion are reported as nonoperat ing 

revenues and expenses.  

 

 

 

 

The remainder  of  t his page int ent ional ly lef t  blank.  
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Budgets 

 

An operat ing budget  is adopted each year for the General Fund and General Reserve Special Revenue 

Fund on the same modif ied accrual basis used to ref lect  actual revenues and expenditures in the fund 

f inancial statements. Appropriat ions lapse at  year end to the extent  t hat  they have not  been 

expended or encumbered. Budgetary cont rol is exercised at  t he department  level.  The Cit y Manager 

is authorized to t ransfer budget  amounts between line it ems within any department ;  however, any 

supplemental appropriat ions that  amend the total expenditures of  any department  or fund require 

Council approval.  Budgets are not  adopted for the other governmental funds.  

 

Central Treasury 

 

A cent ral t reasury is used to account  for cash f rom most  funds of  the Cit y to maximize interest  

income. Investments are stated at  fair value.  Investment  earnings are allocated to most  funds based 

on their respect ive cash balances. The School Dist rict ,  Medical Center and Volunteer Fire Department  

maintain separate cash accounts f rom the Cit y.  

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

For purposes of  t he statements of  cash f lows, t he Enterprise Funds consider all cash accounts t o be 

cash and cash equivalents. The cent ral t reasury, which holds cash and investments, is used essent ially 

as a cash management  pool by each fund.  

 

Prepaid Items 

 

Certain payments to vendors ref lect  costs applicable t o future account ing periods and are recorded 

as prepaid it ems when purchased and charged to operat ions when used in both government -wide and 

fund f inancial statements.  

 

Inventory 

 

Inventories are valued at  t he lower of  cost  or market  in the proprietary funds. Cost  is determined by 

the f irst -in,  f irst -out  method. The cost  is recorded as an expense at  t he t ime individual inventory 

it ems are consumed. 

 

Receivables and Payables 

 

Act ivit y between funds that  are representat ive of  lending/ borrowing arrangements outstanding at  t he 

end of  the year are referred to as either “ due to/ f rom other funds”  (i.e. ,  t he current  port ion of  

interfund loans) or “ advances to/ f rom other funds”  (i.e. ,  t he noncurrent  port ion of  interfund loans).  

All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “ due to/ f rom other funds.”  Any 

residual balances outstanding between the governmental act ivit ies and business-t ype act ivit ies are 

reported in the government -wide f inancial statements as “ internal balances.”  
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Property taxes 

 

Propert y taxes are a l ien on the assessed value of  t axable propert y as of  January 1.  Pursuant  t o 

Alaska Statute, Tit le 29.45.240, the Cit y establishes the mill  rate levy by June 15. Tax bil ls are mailed 

prior to July 1 and may be paid in two equal installments.  The f irst  installment  is due by August  31 

and the second installment  is due by October 31.  Cit y propert y t ax revenues in the fund f inancial 

statements are recognized in the f iscal year in which they are collect ible and available to f inance 

expenditures of  the f iscal period.  

 

Any real or personal propert y taxes st il l due the Cit y at  December 31 are delinquent .   Any amount  not  

collected within 60 days following year end are considered unavailable and are ref lected as deferred 

inf lows in the General Fund. 

 

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues 

 

In applying the measurable and available concepts t o grants and intergovernmental revenues, the 

legal and cont ractual requirements of  t he numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There 

are, however,  essent ially two t ypes of  these revenues. In one, monies must  be expended on t he 

specif ic purpose or proj ect  before any amounts are considered “ earned” ;  therefore,  revenues are 

recognized based upon expenditures recorded. In the other,  monies are virtually unrest ricted as to 

purpose of  expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed 

compliance requirements.  These resources are ref lected as revenues at  the t ime of  receipt  or earlier 

if  t he measurable and available crit eria are met .  

 

Interfund Transact ions 

 

During the course of  normal operat ions,  the Cit y has numerous t ransact ions between funds,  including 

expenditures and t ransfers of  resources to provide services,  const ruct  assets,  and service debt .  The 

accompanying f inancial statements generally ref lect  such t ransact ions as t ransfers.  Operat ing 

subsidies are also recorded as t ransfers.  

 

Compensated Absences 

 

The Cit y allows employees to accumulate earned but  unused vacat ion and sick leave benef it s.  All 

vacat ion and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government -wide and proprietary fund 

f inancial statements. A l iabil it y for t hese amounts is reported in the governmental fund f inancial 

statements only if  t hey have matured (e.g.  the employee has terminated employment ).  

 

Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets,  which include propert y,  plant ,  and equipment ,  are reported in t he applicable 

governmental or business-t ype act ivit ies columns in the government -wide f inancial statements.  

Inf rast ructure assets (e.g. roads, sidewalks, et c.) have been capitalized on a prospect ive basis 

beginning January 1, 2004. Capital assets are def ined by the Cit y as assets with an init ial,  individual 

cost  of  more than $5,000 and an est imated useful l ife in excess of  one year.  Such assets are recorded 

at  historical cost  or est imated historical cost  if  purchased or const ructed. Donated capital assets are 

recorded at  est imated fair market  value at  the date of  donat ion.  
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Maj or out lays for capital assets and improvements are capital ized as proj ects are const ructed.  

Interest  incurred during the const ruct ion phase of  capital assets of  business-t ype act ivit ies is included 

as part  of  t he capitalized value of  t he assets const ructed. The costs of  normal maintenance and 

repairs t hat  do not  add to the value of  t he asset  or materially extend the useful l ife of  t he asset  are 

not  capitalized. 

 

Propert y,  plant ,  and equipment  of  t he Cit y is depreciated using the st raight  l ine method over the 

following est imated useful l ives:  

 

  

Buildings and improvements 50-60 years 

Infrast ructure 50 years 

Improvements 20-50 years 

Machinery and equipment  3-20 years 

 

Unearned Grant  Revenue 

 

Amounts received from grantor agencies, which are rest ricted as to use and have not  been expended 

for the intended uses are shown as unearned revenue. 

 

Long-term Debt  

 

In the government -wide and the proprietary fund f inancial statements,  long-term debt  and other 

long-term obligat ions are reported as liabil it ies in the applicable governmental act ivit ies,  business-

t ype act ivit ies,  or proprietary fund t ype statement  of  net  posit ion.   Bond premiums and discounts are 

deferred and amort ized over t he l ife of  the bonds using the st raight -l ine method. 

 

Fund Balances 

 

In t he fund f inancial  st at ement s,  government al funds report  aggregat e amount s for f ive 

classif icat ions of  fund balances based on t he const raint s imposed on t he use of  t hese resources.  

 

Nonspendable f und balance.  This classif icat ion includes amount s t hat  cannot  be spent  because 

t hey are eit her (a) not  in spendable form—prepaid it ems or inventories;  or (b) legal ly or 

cont ract ual ly required t o be maint ained int act .   

 

Rest r ict ed f und balance.  This classif icat ion ref lect s t he const raint s imposed on resources eit her 

(a) ext ernal ly by credit ors,  grant ors,  cont ribut ors,  or laws or regulat ions of  ot her government s;  or 

(b) imposed by law t hrough const it ut ional provisions or enabl ing legislat ion.   

 

Commit t ed f und balance.  These amount s can only be used for specif ic purposes pursuant  t o 

const raint s imposed by formal ordinances of  t he Cit y Council—t he government ’ s highest  level of  

decision making aut horit y.  Those commit t ed amount s cannot  be used for any ot her purpose unless 

t he Cit y Council  removes t he specif ied use by t aking t he same t ype of  act ion imposing t he 

commit ment .  This classif icat ion also includes cont ract ual obl igat ions t o t he ext ent  t hat  exist ing 

resources in t he fund have been specif ical ly commit t ed for use in sat isfying t hose cont ract ual 

requirement s.   
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Assigned f und balance.  This classif icat ion ref lect s t he amount s const rained by t he Cit y’ s “ int ent ”  

t o be used for specif ic purposes,  but  are neit her rest rict ed nor commit t ed.  The Cit y Council  or 

t heir designee has t he aut horit y t o assign amount s t o be used for specif ic purposes.  Assigned fund 

balances include al l  remaining amount s (except  negat ive balances) t hat  are report ed in 

government al funds,  ot her t han t he General Fund,  t hat  are not  classif ied as nonspendable and are 

neit her rest rict ed nor commit t ed.   

 

Unassigned f und balance.  This fund balance is t he residual classif icat ion for t he General Fund.  It  is 

also used t o report  negat ive fund balances in ot her government al funds.  

 

When bot h rest rict ed and unrest rict ed resources are available for use,  it  is t he Cit y’ s pol icy t o use 

ext ernal ly rest rict ed resources f irst ,  t hen unrest rict ed resources—commit t ed,  assigned,  and 

unassigned—in order as needed.  

 

Pension and Other Postemployment  Benefits (OPEB)  

 

Substant ial ly all employees of  the Cit y part icipate in the Public Employees' Ret irement  System (PERS) 

administered by the State of  Alaska.  For purposes of  measuring the net  pension and OPEB liabil it ies,  

deferred out f lows of  resources and deferred inf lows of  resources related to pensions and OPEB, and 

pension and OPEB expense, informat ion about  the f iduciary net  posit ion of  t he Public Employees’  

Ret irement  System (PERS) and addit ions to/ f rom PERS’ s f iduciary net  posit ion have been determined 

on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benef it  payments (including 

refunds of  employee cont ribut ions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 

benef it  t erms. Investments are reported at  fair value.  

 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

 

In addit ion to assets,  the f inancial statements also present  deferred out f lows of  resources. This 

separate f inancial statement  element  represents a consumpt ion of  net  posit ion that  applies t o a 

future period(s) and wil l not  be recognized as an out f low of  resources (expense/ expenditures) unt il 

t hen. Generally,  t he Cit y report s pension,  OPEB and deferred loss on bond related it ems as deferred 

out f lows of  resources. These it ems are amort ized to expense over t ime. 

 

In addit ion to liabil it ies,  t he f inancial statements also present  deferred inf lows of  resources. Deferred 

inf lows of  resources represent  an acquisit ion of  net  posit ion that  applies t o a future period and will  

not  be recognized unt il later.  The Cit y report s certain pension and OPEB related it ems as deferred 

inf lows of  resources. These it ems are amort ized as a reduct ion of  expense over varying periods of  

t ime. 

 

Est imates 

 

The preparat ion of  f inancial statements in conformit y with account ing principles generally accepted 

in the United States of  America requires management  to make est imates and assumpt ions that  af fect  

the reported amounts of  assets, deferred out f lows, l iabil it ies, and deferred inf lows and disclosure of  

cont ingent  assets and liabil it ies at  the date of  the f inancial statements and the reported amounts of  

revenues and expenditures /  expenses during the report ing period.  Actual result s could dif fer f rom 

those est imates. 
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2. Cash and Investments 
 

The Cit y of  Cordova ut il izes a cent ral t reasury that  is available for use by all funds. Each fund's 

port ion of  the cent ral t reasury is displayed on the balance sheet  as "cash and investments" or in the 

case of  “ negat ive cash,”  is included in "due to other funds." 

 

Reconcil iat ion of  Deposit  and Invest ment  Balances 

 

The following is a reconcil iat ion of  the Cit y’ s deposit  and investment  balances to t he f inancial 

statements as of  December 31, 2018. 

 

Pooled Cash and 

Investments

 

Bank deposit s $ 5,917,500

Investments 9,318,285

 

Total Cash and Investments $ 15,235,785

 

 

Pooled Cash and 

Invest ment s

 

Cash and investments $ 14,345,589

Rest ricted cash and investments 890,196

 

Total Cash and Investments $ 15,235,785

 

Rest r ict ed Cash and Invest ment s 

 

The Cit y maintains rest ricted cash for future landf il l  closure costs as required by Alaska Department  

of  Environmental Conservat ion. The rest ricted cash balance is comprised of  a cert if icate of  deposit  at  

December 31, 2018 totaling $485,188, with the remaining rest ricted funds in the amount  of  $405,008 

being held in the cent ral t reasury.   Total rest ricted cash is $890,196 at  December 31, 2018. 
 

Invest ment  Pol icy 

 

The investment  policy authorizes the Cit y to invest  in U.S. Treasury obligat ions, U.S. government  

agency securit ies and inst rumentalit ies of  government -sponsored corporat ions, State of  Alaska 

obligat ions, cert if icates of  deposit  wit h commercial banks, repurchase agreements, and investments 

through the Alaska Municipal League Investment  Pool.  Investments are carried at  fair value.  

 

 

 

 

The remainder  of  t his page int ent ional ly lef t  blank.  
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In 2010, the Cit y passed an ordinance authorizing investments in dif ferent  securit ies than those listed 

above in the following rat io:  

 

  

Fixed income securit ies 50% 

Equit y securit ies 40% 

Alternat ive securit ies 10% 

 

Int erest  Rat e Risk 

 

Interest  rate risk is the risk that  changes in the market  interest  rates wil l adversely af fect  the fair 

value of  an investment .  The Cit y minimizes it s exposure to interest  rate risk by limit ing the 

investment  horizon to eit her seven or t en years depending on t he investment  obj ect ive.  
 
The Cit y’ s investment  balances as of  December 31, 2018, are as follows: 

 

 Investment  Maturit ies (in Years)  

Investments by Type Fair Value

Less than 

1  year 1 to 5 years

Over 5 

years 

  

Investments subj ect  t o interest  rate risk -  

    cert if icates of  deposit  $ 750,738 $ 485,188 $ 265,550 $ - 

  

Investments not  subj ect  t o interest  rate risk:  

 

    Cash and money market  funds 217,743  

    Mutual funds 8,349,804  

  

Total Investments $ 9,318,285  

 

Credit  Risk 

 

Generally,  credit  risk is t he risk that  an issuer of  an investment  wil l not  fulf il l  it s obligat ion to the 

holder of  t he investment .  This is measured by the assignment  of  a rat ing by a nat ionally recognized 

stat ist ical rat ing organizat ion. It  is t he Cit y’ s policy to l imit  it s investments to the following rat ings:  

investment  grade corporate securit ies and Yankee Bonds must  be rated BBB-/ Baa3 or bet ter by 

Standard & Poor’ s,  Moody’ s Investors Services (“ Moody’ s” ),  Fit ch, or another nat ionally recognized 

stat ist ical rat ings organizat ion (“ NSRO” ).   State and local government  obligat ions must  have an 

underlying rat ing of  at  least  A-/ A3. Securit ized Assets must  be rated AAA/ Aaa by Standard & Poor’ s,  

Moody’ s,  Fit ch, or NSRO. Money Market  Funds shall contain securit ies having a rat ing of  at  least  A-

1/ P-1.  For the General Reserve Special Revenue Fund, securit ies in a suit ably diversif ied bond mutual 

fund need not  meet  these rat ing requirements.  
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The Cit y’ s exposure to credit  risk as of  December 31, 2018, is as follows: 

 

Investment  Rat ing Fair Value 

  

AA $ 687,574 

A 1,573 

BBB 1,120,761 

BB 835,033 

B 198,729 

Not  Rat ed:   

  Cash and money market  funds 217,743 

  Mut ual funds 5,506,134 

  Cert if icat es of  deposit  750,738 

  

Total Investments $ 9,318,285 

 

Cust odial  Credit  Risk – Deposit s 

 

In the case of  deposit s,  t his is the risk that  in the event  of  a bank failure, t he government ’ s deposit s 

may not  be returned to it .  The Cit y’ s policy is that  deposit -t ype securit ies shall be collateralized for 

any amount  exceeding FDIC or any other federal deposit  insurance l imit s.  

 

Cust odial  Credi t  Risk - Invest ment s 

 

For an invest ment ,  t his is t he risk t hat ,  in t he event  of  t he failure of  t he count erpart y,  t he Cit y 

wil l  not  be able t o recover t he value of  i t s invest ment  or col lat eral securit ies t hat  are in t he 

possession of  an out side part y.   As of  December 31,  2018,  none of  t he Cit y’ s invest ment s were 

subj ect  t o cust odial  credit  r isk.  

 

3. Lease Receivable 

 
The Cit y ent ered int o a 30-year lease of  a building t o a developer under a lease on May 10,  2016.  

Annual lease payment s are $50,500 for t he f irst  t hree years and af t er t hat  are adj ust ed annual ly 

by t he CPI.  The lessee has t he opt ion of  purchasing t he propert y f rom t he Cit y for $505,000 if  t he 

const ruct ion of  t he proj ect  is subst ant ial ly complet e by May 20,  2019.  If  t he lessee exercises t he 

opt ion by May 10,  2023 t he purchase price wil l  equal t he purchase price reduced by al l  rent s paid 

t o t he Cit y.  The lease qual if ies as a direct  f inancing lease.  Fut ure minimum lease payment s were 

discount ed at  a 5 percent  rat e.  The balance of  t he lease receivable at  December 31,  2018 was 

751,000.  

 
 

 

 

The remainder  of  t his page int ent ional ly lef t  blank.  
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Future minimum lease receipt s for t he next  5 years are as follows: 

 
Governmental Activities 

  

Lease

Receipts 

  

Year Ending December 31,   

2019 $ 50,400 

2020 50,400 

2021 50,400 

2022 50,400 

2023 50,400 

 

4.  Capital Assets 
 

Capital asset  act ivit y for t he year ended December 31, 2018 was as follows: 

 

Governmental Activities 

Balance

January 1,

2018 Addit ions Delet ions

Balance 

December 31, 

2018

  

Capit al  asset s not  being depreciat ed:   

Land and land improvements $ 1,410,419 $ - $ - $ 1,410,419 

Artwork 112,924 - - 112,924 

Const ruct ion in progress 194,160 - 194,160 - 

   

Total capital assets not  being depreciated 1,717,503 - 194,160 1,523,343 

  

Capit al  asset s being depreciat ed:   

Buildings 63,019,770 43,172 1,169,511 61,893,431 

Infrast ructure 3,709,621 153,262 - 3,862,882 

Machinery and equipment  7,667,747 77,070 - 7,744,817 
  

Total assets being depreciated 74,397,138 273,504 1,169,511 73,501,130 

  

Less accumulated depreciat ion for:   

Buildings 16,014,428 1,181,079 1,033,068 16,162,440 

Infrast ructure 517,451 160,572 - 678,024 

Machinery and equipment  4,902,113 372,316 - 5,274,432 
   

Total accumulated depreciat ion 21,433,992 1,713,967  1,033,068 22,114,896 
   

Total capital assets being depreciated,  net  52,963,146 (1,440,463)  136,443 51,386,234 
   

Governmental Activity Capital Assets, net  $ 54,680,649 $ (1,440,463) $ 330,603 $ 52,909,577 
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Business-type Activities  

Balance

January 1,

2018

Addit ions/

Transfers

Delet ions/

Transfers

Balance 

December 31, 

2018  

   

Capit al  asset s not  being depreciat ed:    

Land and land improvements $ 5,566,333 $ - $ - $ 5,566,333 

Const ruct ion in progress 15,400 30,010 15,400 30,010 

   

Total capital assets not  being depreciated 5,581,733 30,010 15,400 5,596,343 

   

Capit al  asset s being depreciat ed:    

Buildings and improvements 8,025,288 - - 8,025,288 

Improvements other than buildings 52,369,301 - - 52,369,301 

Machinery and equipment  7,058,890 43,875 132,187 6,970,578 

Landf il l  462,756 - - 462,756 

   

Total assets being depreciated 67,916,235 43,875 132,187 67,827,923 

   

Less accumulated depreciat ion for:    

Buildings and improvements 671,512 199,274 - 870,786 

Improvements other than buildings 32,238,429 1,443,037 - 33,681,466 

Machinery and equipment  4,466,964 258,967 132,192 4,593,739 

Landf il l  393,427 23,138 - 416,565 

   

Total accumulated depreciat ion 37,770,332 1,924,416 132,192 39,562,556 

   

Total capital assets being depreciated,  net  30,145,903 (1,880,541) (5) 28,265,367 

   

Business-type Activity Capital Assets, net  $ 35,727,636 $(1,850,531) $ 15,395 $ 33,861,710 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The remainder  of  t his page int ent ional ly lef t  blank.  
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Depreciat ion expense was charged to t he funct ions as follows for the year ended December 31, 2018: 

 

Governmental Activities  

  

General government  $ 628,721 

Public safet y 105,392 

Informat ion and recreat ion 151,420 

Public works 235,098 

Educat ion 593,336 

  

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 1,713,967 

 

 

Business-type Activities  

  

Port  $ 762,709 

Water 620,353 

Sewer 410,383 

Refuse 128,933 

Camper Park 2,038 

  

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities $ 1,924,416 

 

5.  Long-term Debt 
 

The following is a summary of  long-term debt  t ransact ions of  t he Cit y for t he year ended December 

31, 2018: 

 

  

Governmental Activities 

Balance

January 1,

2018 Addit ions Reduct ions

Balance 

December 31, 

2018

Due 

Within 

One Year 

  

General Obligat ion Bonds:  
  

$16,615,000 2009 school bonds,

part ially refunded in 2015, due in 

one f inal installment  of  $765,000

on February 1,  2019; plus interest

at  4.50% $ 1,495,000 $ - $ 730,000 $ 765,000 $ 765,000 
  

$210,000 2010 Series B bonds,  

due in annual installments of

$45,000 through August  1,  2020;

plus interest  at  4.66% to 4.76% 

payable semiannually 130,000 - 40,000 90,000 45,000 



City of Cordova,  Alaska 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

 

32 

 

 

  

  

Governmental Activities, 

continued 

Balance

January 1,

2018 Addit ions Reduct ions 

Balance 

December 31, 

2018

Due 

Within 

One Year 

  

$445,000 2011 Series Three school

bonds, due in annual installments

of  $50,000 to $55,000 through

2021; plus interest  at  4.00% to

5.00%  payable semiannually $ 200,000 $ - $ 45,000 $ 155,000 $ 50,000 
  

$1,805,000 2015 Series One A

Road bonds, due in annual

installments of  $65,000 to

$130,000 through 2034: plus 

interest  at  3.25% to 5.0% payable

semiannually 1,630,000 - 65,000 1,565,000 65,000 

$700,000 2015 Series One road

refunding bonds, due in one f inal 

installment  of  $152,000 in 2019; 

plus interest  at  4.0% payable 

semiannually 296,000 - 144,000 152,000 152,000 

  

$10,065,000 2015 Series One C

school refunding bonds,  due in

annual installments of  $105,000 

to $1,295,000 through 2028; plus 

interest  at  4.0% to 5.0% payable

semiannually  9,905,000 - 75,000 9,830,000 105,000 

  

$2,790,000 2015 Series One D

bonds (Cordova Center),  due in

annual installments of  $100,000 

to $205,000 through 2035; plus 

interest  at  4.0% to 5.0% payable

semiannually 2,610,000 - 95,000 2,515,000 100,000 

  

Accrued vacat ion and sick leave 303,946 221,580 232,927 292,599 292,599 

  

Total Governmental Activities $ 16,569,946 $ 221,580 $ 1,426,927 $ 15,364,599 $ 1,574,599 
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Revenues of  the Water Enterprise Fund and the Sewer Enterprise Fund are pledged as securit y for the 

loans f rom the Alaska Department  of  Environmental Conservat ion.   

Business-type Activities 

Balance

January 1,

2018 Addit ions Ret ired

Balance 

December 31, 

2018

Due 

Within 

One Year 

  

General Obligat ion Bonds:  

  

$175,000 2015 Series One B

landf il l  refunding bonds, due in 

one f inal installment  of  $38,000 

in 2019; plus interest  at  5.0% $ 74,000 $ - $ 36,000 $ 38,000 $ 38,000 

  

Alaska Department  of  

Environmental Conservat ion 

Loans:  

  

$1,380,884 Drinking Water loan,

due in annual installments of

$69,044 through February 1,

2020; plus interest  at  1.50% 207,136 - 69,046 138,090 69,044 
  

$4,081,500 (maximum) Drinking

Water loan, t erms not  yet

established; interest  at  1.5% 2,017,651 30,729 - 2,048,380 - 

  

$1,100,000 (maximum) Clean

Water loan, t erms not  yet

established; interest  at  1.50% 1,100,000 - 55,000 1,045,000 55,000 

  

Accrued vacat ion and sick leave 97,556 97,011 83,170 111,397 111,397 

  

Landf il l  closure costs payable 852,210 - 90,829 761,381 - 

  

Total Business-type Activities $ 4,348,553 $ 127,740 $ 334,045 $ 4,142,248 $ 273,441 
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The annual debt  service requirements of  t he general obligat ion bonds and loans outstanding at  

December 31, 2018 that  are in repayment  status fol low: 

 

Governmental Activities 

General Obligat ion Bonds  Principal Interest

Total 

Requirements 

  

Year Ending December 31,   

2019 $ 1,282,000 $ 718,553 $ 2,000,553 

2020 1,160,000 666,491 1,826,491 

2021 1,165,000 608,475 1,773,475 

2022 1,165,000 550,100 1,715,100 

2023 1,225,000 493,525 1,718,525 

2024-2028 7,065,000 1,494,500 8,559,500 

2029-2033 1,475,000 270,875 1,745,875 

2034-2035 535,000 20,525 555,525 

  

 $ 15,072,000 $ 4,823,044 $ 19,895,044 

 
Business-type Activities 

General Obligat ion Bond  Principal  Interest

Total 

Requirements 

   

Year Ending December 31,    

2019 $ 38,000 $ 1,520 $ 39,520 

 

ADEC Loans  Principal Interest

Total 

Requirements 

  

Year Ending December 31,   

2019 $ 124,044 $ 17,746 $ 141,790 

2020 124,046 15,886 139,932 

2021 55,000 14,025 69,025 

2022 55,000 13,200 68,200 

2023 55,000 12,375 67,375 

2024-2028 275,000 49,500 324,500 

2029-2033 275,000 28,875 303,875 

2034-2037 220,000 8,250 228,250 

  

 $ 1,183,090 $ 159,857 $ 1,342,947 
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6. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Liability 
 

St at e and federal laws and regulat ions require t he Cit y t o place a f inal cover on it s landf il l  sit e 

when it  st ops accept ing wast e and t o perform cert ain maint enance and monit oring funct ions at  

t he sit e for 30 years af t er closure.  Alt hough closure and post closure care cost s wil l  be paid only 

near or af t er t he dat e t he landf i l l  st ops accept ing wast e,  account ing principles general ly accept ed 

in t he Unit ed St at es of  America require t hat  t he Cit y report  a port ion of  t hese closure and 

post closure care cost s each period based on landf i l l  capacit y used as of  each balance sheet  dat e.  

 

There are current ly two cells available for use at  the Cit y’ s landf il l at  Mile 17, and an addit ional cell 

for const ruct ion waste.   The total est imated future closure cost  of  t hese two cells and the 

const ruct ion pit  is $1,701,502. The $761,381 reported as landf il l closure costs payable at  December 

31, 2018 for the landf il l represents the cumulat ive amount  reported to date based on the use of  t he 

expected usage of  t he two cells and const ruct ion pit .  The Cit y will  recognize the remaining est imated 

cost  of  closure and postclosure care of  $940,121 as the remaining expected usage is f il led.  These 

amounts are based on what  it  would cost  t o perform all closure and postclosure care in 2018. Actual 

costs may be higher due to inf lat ion, changes in t echnology or changes in regulat ions.  Cell 1 is 

expected to be closed in 2020.  Cell 2 and the const ruct ion pit  are est imated to have a life of  

approximately 16 and 25 years, respect ively.  

 

7.  Fund Balances 

 

Fund balances,  report ed for t he maj or funds and t he nonmaj or funds in t he aggregat e on t he 

government al funds balance sheet  are subj ect  t o t he fol lowing const raint s:  

 

 

  

 

Maj or 

Funds  

 General

General 

Reserve 

Special  

Revenue 

Nonmaj or 

Funds 

Tot al  

Government al 

Funds 

  

Nonspendable:   

  Prepaid insurance $ 185,743 $ - $ - $ 185,743 

  

Rest ricted -  

  Enhanced 911 services - - 64,396 64,396 

  

Assigned:  

  Capital proj ects and land - 9,525,343 248,012 9,773,355 

  Public safet y - - 338,396 338,396 

  

Unassigned 1,429,615 - - 1,429,615 

Total Fund Balances $1,615,358 $ 9,525,343

 

  $ 650,804 $ 11,791,505 
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8.  Defined Benefit (DB) Pension Plan 
 
General Information About the Plan 
 

The Cit y part icipat es in t he Alaska Publ ic Employees’  Ret irement  Syst em (PERS).   PERS is a cost -

sharing mult iple-employer plan which covers el igible St at e and local government  employees,  ot her 

t han t eachers.   The Plan was est abl ished and is administ ered by t he St at e of  Alaska Depart ment  of  

Administ rat ion.  Benef it  and cont ribut ion provisions are est abl ished by St at e law and may be 

amended only by t he St at e Legislat ure.    
 

The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual f inancial  report  t hat  includes f inancial st at ement s 

and ot her required supplement al informat ion.   That  report  is available via t he int ernet  at  

ht t p: / / doa.alaska.gov/ drb/ pers.   Act uarial  valuat ion report s,  audit ed f inancial  st at ement s,  and 

ot her det ailed plan informat ion are also available on t his websit e.  They may be obt ained by 

writ ing t o t he St at e of  Alaska,  Depart ment  of  Administ rat ion,  Division of  Ret irement  and Benef it s,  

P.O.  Box 110203 Juneau,  Alaska,  99811-0203 or by phoning (907) 465-4460.  
 

The Plan provides for ret irement ,  deat h and disabi l i t y,  and post employment  healt hcare benef it s.   

There are t hree t iers of  employees,  based on ent ry dat e.   For al l  t iers wit hin t he Def ined Benef i t  

(DB) plan,  ful l  ret irement  benef it s are general ly calculat ed using a formula comprised of  a 

mult ipl ier t imes t he average mont hly salary (AMS) t imes t he number of  years of  service.   The 

mult ipl ier is increased at  longevit y milest one markers for most  employees.   Pol ice/ Fire employees 

accrue benef it s at  an accelerat ed rat e.  The t iers wit hin t he Plan est abl ish dif fering crit eria 

regarding normal ret irement  age,  early ret irement  age,  and t he cr it eria for calculat ion of  AMS,  

COLA adj ust ment s,  and ot her OPEB benef it s.   A complet e benef it  comparison chart  is available at  

t he websit e not ed above.  

 

The PERS I-III DB Plan was closed t o new ent rant s ef fect ive June 30,  2006.   New employees hired 

af t er t hat  dat e part icipat e in t he PERS IV Def ined Cont ribut ion (DC) Plan described lat er in t hese 

not es.   
 

Historical Context  and Special Funding Situat ion 
 

In Apri l  2008,  t he Alaska Legislat ure passed legislat ion convert ing t he previously exist ing PERS plan 

f rom an agent -mult iple-employer plan t o a cost -sharing plan wit h an ef fect ive dat e of  July 1,  

2008.  In connect ion wit h t his conversion,  t he St at e of  Alaska passed addit ional legislat ion which 

st at ut ori ly capped t he employer cont ribut ion rat e,  est abl ished a st at e funded “ on-behalf ”  

cont ribut ion (subj ect  t o funding availabil i t y),  and required t hat  employer cont ribut ions be 

calculat ed against  al l  PERS el igible wages,  including wages paid t o part icipant s of  t he PERS Tier IV 

def ined cont ribut ion plan described lat er in t hese not es.    

 

Alaska St at ut e 39.35.255 requires t he St at e of  Alaska t o cont ribut e t o t he Plan an amount  such 

t hat ,  when combined wit h t he employer cont ribut ion,  is suf f icient  t o pay t he Plan’ s past  service 

l iabil i t y cont ribut ion rat e as adopt ed by t he Alaska Ret irement  Management  Board.  As such,  t he 

Plan is considered t o be in a special  funding sit uat ion as def ined by GASB,  and management  has 

recorded al l  pension relat ed l iabil i t ies,  deferred inf lows and out f lows of  resources,  and disclosures 

on t his basis.   
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It  is import ant  t o not e t hat  t he Alaska Legislat ure has t he power and aut horit y t o change t he 

aforement ioned st at ut e t hrough t he legislat ive process.   
 

The Cit y records t hese on-behalf  cont ribut ions as revenue and expense/ expendit ures as dict at ed 

by t he governing GAAP for each basis of  account ing depending on fund t ype.  

 

Employee Cont ribut ion Rates 

 

Regular employees are required t o cont ribut e 6.75% of  t heir annual covered salary.   Pol ice and 

f iref ight ers are required t o cont ribut e 7.50% of  t heir annual covered salary.      

 

Employer and Other Cont ribut ion Rates 

 

There are several cont ribut ion rat es associat ed wit h t he pension and healt hcare cont ribut ions and 

relat ed l iabil i t ies.   These amount s are calculat ed on an annual basis.  

 

Employer Ef fect ive Rat e:   This is the cont ractual employer pay-in rate.  Under current  legislat ion, 

this rate is statutorily capped at  22% of  el igible wages, subj ect  t o a wage f loor,  and other terminat ion 

events.  This 22% rate is calculated on al l  PERS part icipat ing wages, including those wages 

at t ributable to employees in the def ined cont ribut ion plan.  Cont ribut ions derived f rom the def ined 

cont ribut ion employees are referred to as t he Def ined Benef it  Unfunded Liabil it y (DBUL) 

cont ribut ion. 

 

ARM Board Adopt ed Rat e:   This is t he rat e formal ly adopt ed by t he Alaska Ret irement  

Management  Board.   This rat e is act uarial ly det ermined and used t o calculat e annual Plan funding 

requirement s,  wit hout  regard t o t he st at ut ory rat e cap or t he GASB account ing rat e.   Ef fect ive 

July 1,  2015,  t he Legislat ure requires t he ARM Board t o adopt  employer cont ribut ion rat es for past  

service l iabil i t ies using a level percent  of  pay met hod over a closed 25-year t erm which ends in 

2039.   This wil l  result  in lower ARM Board Rat es in fut ure years (as demonst rat ed in t he 

cont ribut ion rat e t ables below).  
 

On-behal f  Cont r ibut ion Rat e:   This is t he rat e paid in by t he St at e as an on-behalf  payment  under 

t he current  st at ut e.   The st at ut e requires t he St at e t o cont ribut e,  based on funding availabil i t y,  

an on-behalf  amount  equal t o t he dif ference bet ween t he ARM Board Rat e and t he Employer 

Ef fect ive Rat e.  In t he government al fund f inancial  st at ement s,  on-behalf  cont ribut ion amount s 

have been recognized as addit ional revenues and expendit ures.   In t he propriet ary fund and 

government -wide f inancial  st at ement s,  t he on-behalf  amounts ref lect  revenue and expense only 

during t he measurement  period in which t he Plan recognizes t he payment s,  result ing in a 

signif icant  t iming dif ference bet ween t he cash t ransfers and revenue and expense recognit ion.  
 

GASB Rat e:   This is t he rat e used t o det ermine t he long-t erm pension and healt hcare l iabil i t y for 

plan account ing purposes in accordance wit h general ly accept ed account ing principles as 

est abl ished by GASB.   Cert ain act uarial  met hods and assumpt ions for t his rat e calculat ion are 

mandat ed by GASB.   Addit ional ly,  t he GASB Rat e disregards al l  fut ure Medicare Part  D payment s.   

For f iscal  year 2018 and 2017,  t he rat e uses an 8% pension discount  rat e and an 8% and 4.55% 

percent  healt hcare discount  rat e,  respect ively.    
 

The GASB Rat e and t he ARM Board Adopt ed Rat e dif fer signif icant ly as a direct  result  of  variances 

in t he act uarial  met hods and assumpt ions used.   
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Cont ribut ion rat es for t he year ended June 30,  2018 were det ermined in t he June 30,  2016 

act uarial  valuat ions.   Cit y cont ribut ion rat es for t he 2018 calendar year were as fol lows:  
 

January 1,  2018 t o June 30,  2018 

Employer

Ef fect ive

Rat e 

ARM Board 

Adopt ed 

Rat e

St at e

Cont ribut ion

Rat e

GASB

 Rat e 

  

Pension 17.12% 21.90% 3.01% 29.07% 

Post employment  healt hcare (see       

Not e 10) 4.88% 3.11% 0.00% 66.85% 

   

Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 25.01% 3.01% 95.92% 

 

July 1,  2018 t o December  31,  2018 

Employer

Ef fect ive

Rat e 

ARM Board 

Adopt ed 

Rat e

St at e

Cont ribut ion

Rat e

GASB

 Rat e 
  

Pension 16.17% 23.21% 5.58% 32.11% 

Post employment  healt hcare (see 

Not e 10) 5.83% 4.37% 0.00% 87.90% 
  

Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 27.58% 5.58% 120.01% 

 

Plan Cont ribut ions 

 

In 2018,  t he Cit y was credit ed wit h t he fol lowing cont ribut ions int o t he pension plan.    
 

 

Measurement  Period

July 1,  2017

t o

June 30,  2018

Cit y Fiscal Year

 January 1,  2018

 t o

 December 31,  2018
 

Employer cont ribut ions (including DBUL) $ 435,790 $ 416,908

Nonemployer cont ribut ions (on-behalf ) 114,558 155,555
 

Total Contributions $ 550,348 $ 572,463

 

In addit ion,  employee cont ribut ions t o t he Plan t ot aled $90,382 for t he year ended December 31,  

2018.  during t he Cit y’ s f iscal year.  

 

Pension Liabilit ies,  Pension Expense,  and Deferred Out flows of Resources and Deferred 

Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions.    
 

At  December 31,  2018,  t he Cit y report ed a l iabil i t y for i t s proport ionat e share of  t he net  pension 

l iabil i t y (NPL) t hat  ref lect ed a reduct ion for St at e pension support  provided t o t he Cit y.   The 

amount  recognized by t he Cit y for i t s proport ional share,  t he relat ed St at e proport ion,  and t he 

t ot al  were as fol lows:  
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  Cit y

 

Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  NPL $ 6,425,805

St at e’ s proport ionat e share of  NPL associat ed wit h t he Cit y 1,862,446

 

Total Net Pension Liability $ 8,288,251

 

The t ot al  pension l iabil i t y for t he June 30,  2018 measurement  dat e was det ermined by an 

act uarial  valuat ion as of  June 30,  2017 rol led forward t o June 30,  2018 t o calculat e t he net  

pension l iabil i t y as of  t hat  dat e.   The Cit y’ s proport ion of  t he net  pension l iabil i t y was based on a 

proj ect ion of  t he Cit y’ s long-t erm share of  cont ribut ions t o t he pension plan relat ive t o t he 

proj ect ed cont ribut ions of  al l  part icipat ing ent it ies,  including t he St at e,  act uarial ly det ermined.   

At  t he June 30,  2018 measurement  dat e,  t he Cit y’ s proport ion was 0.12932 percent ,  which was an 

increase of  0.00995 f rom it s proport ion measured as of  June 30,  2017.   

 

For t he year ended December 31,  2018,  t he Cit y recognized pension expense of  $276,561.  Of  t his 

amount ,  $114,558 was recorded as on-behalf  revenue and expense for addit ional cont ribut ions 

paid by t he St at e for 2018.   

 

At  December 31,  2018,  t he Cit y report ed deferred out f lows of  resources and deferred inf lows of  

resources relat ed t o pensions f rom t he fol lowing sources:  

Measurement  Per iod June 30,  2018 

Deferred 

Out f lows

 of  Resources

Deferred

 Inf lows

 of  Resources 

   

Dif ference bet ween expect ed and act ual experience $ - $ (161,481) 

Net  dif ference bet ween proj ect ed and act ual earnings  

  on pension plan invest ment s 141,917 - 

Changes in proport ion and dif ferences bet ween Cit y     

  cont ribut ions and proport ionat e share of  cont ribut ions 192,689 - 

Cit y cont ribut ions subsequent  t o t he measurement  dat e 198,892 - 
  

Total Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows Related 

to Pensions $ 533,498 $ (161,481) 

 

The $198,892 report ed as deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions result ing f rom 

cont ribut ions subsequent  t o t he measurement  dat e wil l  be recognized as a reduct ion in t he net  

pension l iabil i t y in t he year ended December 31,  2019.  Other amount s report ed as deferred 

out f lows of  resources and deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions wil l  be recognized in 

pension expense as fol lows:  

 

Year Ending December 31,   
  

2019 $ 211,912 

2020 77,599 

2021 (109,959) 

2022 (6,428) 
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Actuarial Assumpt ions  
 

The t ot al  pension l iabil i t y for t he measurement  period ended June 30,  2018 was det ermined by an 

act uarial  valuat ion as of  June 30,  2017,  using t he fol lowing act uarial  assumpt ions,  appl ied t o al l  

periods included in t he measurement ,  and rol led forward t o t he measurement  dat e of  June 30,  

2018.  The act uarial  assumpt ions used in t he June 30,  2017 act uarial  valuat ion (lat est  available) 

were based on t he result s of  an actuarial  experience st udy for t he period f rom July 1,  2010 t o 

June 30,  2014,  result ing in changes in act uarial  assumpt ions adopt ed by t he Alaska Ret irement  

Management  Board t o bet t er ref lect  expect ed fut ure experience.     
 

  

Act uarial  cost  met hod Ent ry age normal;  level dol lar normal cost  basis 

Amort izat ion met hod Level dol lar,  closed 

Inf lat ion 3.12% 

  

Salary increases Graded by service,  f rom 9.66% t o 4.92% for peace of f icer/

f iref ight er 

Graded by age and service,  f rom 8.55% t o 4.34% for al l  ot hers 

 

Al locat ion Met hodology Amount s for FY18 were al locat ed t o employers based on t he

proj ect ed present  value of  cont ribut ions for FY2020-FY2039.  

The l iabil i t y is expect ed t o go t o $0 at  2039.  
 

 

Invest ment  Ret urn /  Discount  

Rat e  

8.00%,  net  of  pension plan invest ment  expenses.  This is based on

an average inf lat ion rat e of  3.12% and a real rat e of  ret urn of

4.88%.  

 

Mort al it y Pre-t erminat ion – Based on t he 2010-2013 act ual mort al it y 

experience,  60% of  male and 65% of  female post -t erminat ion 

rat es.  Deat hs are assumed t o be occupat ional 70% of  t he t ime for

peace of f icers/ f iref ight ers,  50% of  t he t ime for ot hers.  Post -

t erminat ion – 96% of  al l  rat es of  t he RP-2000 t able,  2000 base 

year proj ect ed t o 2018 wit h proj ect ion scale BB.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

The remainder  of  t his page int ent ional ly lef t  blank.  
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The long-t erm expect ed rat e of  ret urn on pension plan invest ment s was det ermined using a 

building-block met hod in which best -est imat e ranges of  expect ed fut ure real rat es of  ret urn 

(expect ed ret urns,  net  of  pension plan invest ment  expense and inf lat ion) are developed for each 

maj or asset  class.  These ranges are combined t o produce t he long-t erm expect ed rat e of  ret urn by 

weight ing t he expect ed fut ure real rat es of  ret urn by t he t arget  asset  al locat ion percent age and 

by adding expect ed inf lat ion.  Best  est imat es of  arit hmet ic real  rat es of  ret urn for each maj or 

asset  class are summarized in t he fol lowing t ables (not e t hat  t he rat es shown below exclude t he 

inf lat ion component ).  Those est imat es for t he year ending December 31,  2018 are as fol lows:  

 

Asset  Class 

Long-t erm 

Expect ed Real

Rat e of  Ret urn Al locat ion Range

   

Domest ic equit y 8.90% 24% +/ -6%

Global ex-U.S.  equit y 7.85% 22% +/ -4%

Int ermediat e Treasuries 1.25% 10% +/ -5%

Opport unist ic 4.76% 10% +/ -5%

Real asset s 6.20% 17% +/ -8%

Absolut e ret urn 4.76% 7% +/ -4%

Privat e equit y 12.08% 9% +/ -5%

Cash equivalent s 0.66% 1% +/ -1%

 

Discount  Rate 
 

The discount  rat e used t o measure t he t ot al  pension l iabil i t y was 8.00% in 2018.  The proj ect ion of  

cash f lows used t o det ermine t he discount  rat e assumed t hat  employer and St at e cont ribut ions 

wil l  cont inue t o fol low t he current  funding pol icy,  which meet s St at e st at ut es.  Based on t hose 

assumpt ions,  t he pension plan's f iduciary net  posit ion was proj ect ed t o be available t o make al l  

proj ect ed fut ure benef it  payment s of  current  plan members.  Therefore,  t he long-t erm expect ed 

rat e of  ret urn on pension plan invest ment s was appl ied t o al l  periods of  proj ect ed benef i t  

payment s t o det ermine t he t ot al  pension l iabil i t y.   

 

Discount  Rate Sensit ivity  

 

The fol lowing present s t he Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  t he net  pension l iabil i t y calculat ed using 

t he discount  rat e of  8.00%, as wel l  as what  t he Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  t he net  pension 

l iabil i t y would be if  i t  were calculat ed using a discount  rat e t hat  is 1-percent age-point  lower (7.00 

percent ) or 1-percent age-point  higher (9.00 percent ) t han t he current  rat e:  

 

Proport ional

Share

1% Decrease 

(7.00%) 

Current  

Discount  Rate 

(8.00%)

1% Increase 

(9.00%) 

  

Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  t he 

net  pension l iabil i t y 0.12932% $ 8,509,389 $ 6,425,805 $ 4,663,347 
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net  Posit ion  

 
Det ailed informat ion about  t he pension plan’ s f iduciary net  posit ion is available in t he separat ely 

issued PERS f inancial  report .   

 

9.  Defined Contribution (DC) Pension Plan 
 

Employees hired af ter July 1, 2006 part icipate in PERS Tier IV, a def ined cont ribut ion plan.  This Plan 

is administered by the State of  Alaska,  Department  of  Administ rat ion in conj unct ion with the def ined 

benef it  plan noted above. Benef it  and cont ribut ion provisions are established by State law and may 

be amended only by the State Legislature.   The Alaska Ret irement  Management  Board may also 

amend cont ribut ion requirements.  Included in t he Plan are individual pension accounts, ret iree 

medical insurance plan and a separate Health Reimbursement  Arrangement  account  that  wil l help 

ret ired members pay medical premiums and other eligible medical expenses not  covered by the 

medical plan.  This Plan is included in t he comprehensive annual f inancial report  for PERS,  and at  

t he fol lowing websit e:  ht t p: / / doa.alaska.gov/ drb/ pers.  Act uarial  valuat ion report s,  audit ed 

f inancial st at ement s,  and ot her det ailed plan informat ion are also available on t his websit e.  They 

may be obt ained by writ ing t o t he St at e of  Alaska,  Depart ment  of  Administ rat ion,  Division of  

Ret irement  and Benef it s,  P.O.  Box 110203,  Juneau,  Alaska,  99811-0203 or by phoning (907) 465-

4460.  

 

Cont ribut ions t o t he DC plan consist  solely of  employer and employee cont ribut ions wit h no 

special  funding or ot her nonemployer cont ribut ions.   In addit ion,  act ual remit t ances t o t he PERS 

syst em require t hat  t he Cit y cont ribut e at  22%.   Af t er deduct ing t he DC plan cont ribut ions (and 

relat ed OPEB cont ribut ions),  t he remaining remit t ance (t he DBUL) is deposit ed int o t he DB plan as 

not ed earl ier.  
 

Benefit  Terms 

 

Employees are immediately vested in their own cont ribut ions and vest  25% with two years of  service, 

plus an addit ional 25% per year thereaf ter for full  vest ing at  f ive years of  service.   
 

Employee Cont ribut ion Rate 

 

Employees are required to cont ribute 8.0% of  t heir annual covered salary.   This amount  goes direct ly 

t o the individual’ s account .  

 

Employer Cont ribut ion Rate 

 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Cit y were required to cont ribute 5% of  covered salary 

into the Plan.   

 

The Cit y and employee cont ribut ions to PERS for pensions for the year ended December 31, 2018 

were $104,909 and $167,853, respect ively.  The Cit y employer cont ribut ion amounts were recognized 

as pension expense/ expenditures.  
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10.  Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Plans 
 

(a) Defined Benefit  OPEB 
 

As part  of  i t s part icipat ion in t he PERS DB Plan (Tiers I,  II,  III),  which is a cost -sharing mult iple 

employer plan,  t he Cit y and Medical Cent er part icipat es in t he Alaska Ret iree Healt hcare Trust  

(ARHCT),  Ret iree Medical Plan (RMP),  and Occupat ional Deat h and Disabil i t y Plan (ODD).  The 

ARHCT is self -funded and provides maj or medical coverage t o ret irees of  t he DB Plan.   Benef it s 

vary by Tier level .  The RMP provides maj or medical  coverage t o ret irees of  t he PERS DC Plan (Tier 

IV).  The ODD provides deat h benef it s for benef iciaries of  plan part icipant s and long-t erm disabil i t y 

benef it s t o al l  act ive members wit hin PERS.  The Plan is administ ered by t he St at e of  Alaska,  

Depart ment  of  Administ rat ion.   They may be obt ained by writ ing t o t he St at e of  Alaska 

Depart ment  of  Administ rat ion,  Division of  Ret irement  and Benef it s,  P.O.  Box 110203,  Juneau,  

Alaska,  99811-0203 or by phoning (907) 465-4460.  

 

Employer Cont ribut ion Rate 

 

For t he year ended December 31,  2018,  t he Cit y was required t o cont ribut e 8.75% of  covered 

payrol l  int o t he OPEB plan.  Employees do not  cont ribut e.    

 

 

Measurement  

Period Cit y 

FY18 Cit y FY18

 

Employer cont ribut ions $ 150,683 $ 159,848

Nonemployer cont ribut ions (on-behalf ) - -

 

Total Contributions $ 150,683 $ 159,848

 

 

OPEB Liabilit ies,  OPEB Expense,  and Deferred Out flows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to OPEB Plans 

 

At  December 31,  2018,  t he Cit y report ed a l iabil i t y for i t s proport ionat e share of  t he net  OPEB 

l iabil i t ies (NOL) t hat  ref lect ed a reduct ion for St at e OPEB support  provided t o t he Cit y.  The 

amount  recognized by t he cit y for i t s proport ional share,  t he relat ed St at e proport ion,  and t he 

t ot al  were as fol lows:  

 

 

Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  NOL – ARCHT $ 1,326,818

Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  NOL – RMP (37,182) 

Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  NOL – ODD 24,361

St at e’ s proport ionat e share of  t he NOL  

associat ed wit h t he Cit y 384,626  

 

Total Net OPEB Liabilit ies $ 1,698,623
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The t ot al  OPEB l iabil i t ies for t he June 30,  2018 measurement  dat e was det ermined by an act uarial  

valuat ion as of  June 30,  2017 rol led forward t o June 30,  2018 t o calculat e t he net  OPEB l iabil i t ies 

as of  t hat  dat e.  The Cit y’ s proport ion of  t he net  OPEB l iabil i t ies were based on a proj ect ion of  t he 

Cit y’ s long-t erm share of  cont ribut ions t o t he OPEB plans relat ive t o t he proj ect ed cont ribut ions 

of  al l  part icipat ing ent it ies,  act uarial ly det ermined.  

 

 

June 30,  2017

Measurement

Dat e Employer

Proport ion

June 30,  2018 

Measurement  

Dat e Employer 

Proport ion Change 

  

Cit y’ s proport ionate    

share of  the net  OPEB liabil it ies:    

ARHCT 0.11940% 0.12928% 0.00988 % 

RMP 0.21483% 0.19144% (0.02339)% 

ODD 0.21483% 0.19144% (0.02339)% 

 

As a result  of  i t s requirement  t o cont ribut e t o t he Plan,  t he Cit y recognized OPEB expense of  

$210,943 and on-behalf  revenue of  $50,493 for support  provided by t he St at e.  At  December 31,  

2018,  t he Cit y report ed deferred out f lows of  resources and deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed 

t o OPEB plans f rom t he fol lowing sources:  

 

 

Deferred 

Out f lows of  

Resources

Deferred 

Inf lows of  

Resources 

  

Dif ference between expected and actual experience $ - $ (153,567) 

Changes in assumpt ions 212,578 - 

Net  dif ference between proj ected and actual earnings   

on OPEB plan investments - (286,025) 

Changes in proport ion and dif ference between City   

cont ribut ions and proport ionate share of  cont ribut ions 80,024 (36,728) 

Cit y cont ribut ions subsequent  to the measurement  date 84,903 - 

  

Total Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of  

Resources Related to OPEB Plans $ 377,505 $ (476,320) 

 

The $84,903 report ed as deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o OPEB result ing f rom 

cont ribut ions subsequent  t o t he measurement  dat e wil l  be recognized as a reduct ion in t he net  

OPEB l iabil i t y in t he year ended June 30,  2019.  Ot her amount s report ed as deferred out f lows of  

resources and deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o OPEB wil l  be recognized in OPEB expense as 

fol lows:  

 

  



City of Cordova,  Alaska 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

 

45 

Year Ending December 30,   

  

2019 $ (45,731) 

2020  (39,020) 

2021  (93,233) 

2022  (6,094) 

2023  58 

Thereaf t er  302 

 

Actuarial Assumpt ions 

 

The t ot al  OPEB l iabil i t y for t he measurement  period ended June 30,  2018 was det ermined by an 

act uarial  valuat ion as of  June 30,  2017,  using t he fol lowing act uarial  assumpt ions,  appl ied t o al l  

periods included in t he measurement ,  and rol led forward t o t he measurement  dat e of  June 30,  

2018.  The act uarial  assumpt ions used in t he June 30,  2017 act uarial  valuat ion (lat est  available) 

were based on t he result s of  an actuarial  experience st udy for t he period f rom July 1,  2009 t o 

June 30,  2013,  result ing in changes in act uarial  assumpt ions adopt ed by t he Alaska Ret irement  

Management  Board t o bet t er ref lect  expect ed fut ure experience.  

 
  

Act uarial  cost  met hod Ent ry age normal;  level percent age of  payrol l  

  

Amort izat ion met hod Level dol lar,  closed 

  

Inf lat ion 3.12% 

  

Salary increases Graded by service f rom 9.66% t o 4.92% for peace of f icer/  

 Firef ight er 

 Graded by service f rom 8.55% t o 4.34% for al l  ot hers 

  

Al locat ion Met hodology Amount s for FY18 were al locat ed t o employers based on t he 

 proj ect ed present  value of  cont ribut ions for FY2019-FY2039.  

 The l iabil i t y is expect ed t o go t o zero at  2039.  

  

Invest ment  Ret urn /  Discount  8.00%,  net  of  post employment  healt hcare plan invest ment   

Rat e Expenses.  This is based on an average inf lat ion rate of  3.12%  

 and a real rat e of  ret urn of  4.88%. 

  

Healt hcare cost  t rend rat es Pre-65 medical;  8.0% grading down t o 4.0% 

 Post -65 medical;  5.5% grading down t o 4.0% 

 Prescript ion drug;  9.0% grading down t o 4.0% 

  

Mort al it y Pre-t erminat ion – Based on t he 2010-2013 act ual mort al it y 

 experience,  60% of  male and 65% of  female post -t erminat ion 

 rat es.  Deat hs are assumed t o be occupat ion 70% of  t he t ime 

 for peace of f icers/ f iref ight ers,  50% of  t he t ime for al l  

 ot hers.  

 Post -t erminat ion – 96% of  al l  rat es of  t he RP-2000 t able,   

 2000 base year proj ect ed t o 2018 wit h proj ect ion scale BB.  
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The long-t erm expect ed rat e of  ret urn on OPEB plan invest ment s was det ermined using a building-

block met hod in which best -est imat e ranges of  expect ed fut ure real rat es of  ret urn (expect ed 

ret urns,  net  of  post -ret irement  healt hcare plan invest ment  expense and inf lat ion) are developed 

for each maj or asset  class.  These ranges are combined t o produce t he long-t erm expect ed rat e of  

ret urn by weight ing t he expect ed fut ure real rat es of  ret urn by t he t arget  asset  al locat ion 

percent age and by adding expect ed inf lat ion.  The best  est imat es of  arit hmet ic real rat es of  ret urn 

for each maj or asset  class are summarized in t he fol lowing t able (not e t hat  t he rat es shown below 

exclude t he inf lat ion component ):  

 

Asset  Class 

Long-t erm 

Expect ed Real

Rat e of  Ret urn Al locat ion Range

   

Domest ic equit y 8.90% 24% +/ -6%

Global ex-U.S.  equit y 7.85% 22% +/ -4%

Int ermediat e Treasuries 1.25% 10% +/ -5%

Opport unist ic 4.76% 10% +/ -5%

Real asset s 6.20% 17% +/ -8%

Absolut e ret urn 4.76% 7% +/ -4%

Privat e equit y 12.08% 9% +/ -5%

Cash equivalent s 0.66% 1% +/ -1%

 

Discount  Rate 

 

The discount  rat e used t o measure t he t ot al  OPEB l iabil i t y was 8.00%.  The proj ect ion of  cash f lows 

used t o det ermine t he discount  rat e assumed t hat  employer and St at e cont ribut ions wil l  cont inue 

t o fol low t he current  funding pol icy which meet s St at e st at ut es.  Based on t hose assumpt ions,  t he 

OPEB plan’ s f iduciary net  posit ion was proj ect ed t o be available t o make al l  proj ect ed fut ure 

benef it  payment s of  current  plan members.  Therefore,  t he long-t erm expect ed rat e of  ret urn on 

OEPB plan invest ment s was appl ied t o al l  periods of  proj ect ed benef it  payment s t o det ermine t he 

t ot al  OPEB l iabil i t y.  

 

Discount  Rate Sensit ivity 

 

The fol lowing present s t he Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  t he net  OPEB l iabil i t ies calculat ed using 

t he discount  rat e of  8.00%, as wel l  as what  t he Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  t he net  OPEB 

l iabil i t ies would be if  i t  were calculat ed using a discount  rat e t hat  is 1-percent age-point  lower 

(7.00%) or 1-percent age-point  higher (9.00%) t han t he current  rat e:  

 

 

Proport ional

Share

1% Decrease 

(7.00%)

Current  

Discount  Rate 

(8.00%)

 

1% Increase 

(9.00%)

    

Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  t he    

net  OPEB liabil it ies:      

ARCHT 0.12928% $ 2,686,141 $ 1,326,818 $ 187,427 

RMP 0.19144% $ (34,915) $ (37,182)  $ (39,046) 

ODD 0.19144% $ 72,748 $ 24,361 $ (13,380) 
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Healthcare Cost  Trend Rates Sensit ivity 

 

The fol lowing present s t he Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  t he net  OPEB l iabil i t ies calculat ed using 

t he healt hcare cost  t rend rat e,  as wel l  as what  t he Cit y’ s and Medical Cent er’ s proport ionat e 

share of  t he net  OPEB l iabil i t ies would be if  i t  were calculat ed using healt hcare cost  t rend rat es 

t hat  are 1-percent age-point  lower or 1-percent age-point  higher t han t he current  healt hcare cost  

t rend rat es:  
 

 

Proport ional

Share

1% Decrease 

(7.00%)

Current  

Discount  Rate 

(8.00%)

 

1% Increase 

(9.00%)

    

Cit y’ s proport ionat e share of  t he    

net  OPEB liabil it ies:      

ARCHT 0.12928% $ 25,756 $ 1,326,818 $ 2,894,073 

RMP 0.19144% $ - $ (37,182 ) $ - 

ODD 0.19144% $ (20,712) $ 24,361 $ 84,682 

 

(b) Defined Cont ribut ion OPEB Plans 

 

Def ined Cont ribut ion Pension Plan part icipant s (PERS Tier IV) part icipat e in t he Occupat ional 

Deat h and Disabil i t y Plan (ODD),  and t he Ret iree Medical Plan.  Informat ion on t hese plans is 

included in t he comprehensive annual f inancial  report  for t he PERS Plan not ed above.   These plans 

provide for deat h,  disabil i t y,  and post -employment  healt hcare benef it s.    

 

Employer Cont ribut ion Rates 

 

Employees do not  cont ribut e t o t he DC OPEB plans.   Employer cont ribut ion rat es for t he year 

ended June 30,  2018 were as fol lows:  

 

 

Ot her

 Tier IV

Pol ice/ Fire 

Tier IV 

  

Ret iree medical plan 1.03% 1.03% 

Occupat ional death and disabil it y benef it s 0.16% 0.43% 

  

Total Contribution Rates 1.19% 1.46% 

 

In addit ion,  PERS def ined cont ribut ion members also part icipate in the Health Reimbursement  

Arrangement .   AS 39.30.370 establishes this cont ribut ion amount  as “ t hree percent  of  the average 

annual employee compensat ion of  all employees of all employers in the plan” .   As of  July 1, 2018, 

for actual remit tance, this amount  is calculated as a f lat  rate for each full-t ime or part -t ime 

employee per pay period and approximates $2,103 per year for each full-t ime employee, and $1.35 

per hour for part -t ime employees. 

 

Annual Postemployment  Healthcare Cost  

 

In 2018,  t he Cit y cont ribut ed $70,432 in DC OPEB cost s.   These amount s have been recognized as 

expense/ expendit ures.   
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11. Deferred Compensation Plan 
 

The Cit y of fers it s employees deferred compensat ion plans creat ed in accordance wit h Int ernal 

Revenue Code Sect ion 457.  The plans are available t o al l  employees and permit s t hem t o defer a 

port ion of  t heir salary unt i l  fut ure years.  The deferred compensat ion is not  available t o employees 

unt i l  t erminat ion,  ret irement ,  deat h,  or unforeseeable emergency.  The provisions of  t he plans 

require t hat  al l  asset s and income of  t he plans be held in t rust  for t he exclusive benef it  of  

part icipant s and t heir benef iciaries.  

 

12. Risk Management 
 

The Cit y is exposed to various risks of  loss including (a) damage to and loss of  buildings and contents,  

(b) employee tort s,  (c) professional l iabil it y;  i.e. ,  errors and omissions, (d) workers’  compensat ion; 

i.e. ,  employee inj uries,  and (e) medical insurance costs of  employees.   

 

The Cit y is self -insured for i t s cost s of  providing medical insurance.   Stop-loss coverage l imit s 

claims t o $55,000 each occurrence and $1,218,276 in aggregat e for al l  medical claims during t he 

year.   The Cit y cont ract s wit h a t hird-part y administ rat or for healt h claims servicing.   Claims and 

premium cost s are al locat ed t o each depart ment  based on budget ed amount s.   Claims payable is 

report ed in t he General Fund.   The Cit y accrues a l iabil i t y for claims incurred but  not  report ed at  

year end.  

 

A schedule of  the changes in the claims liabilit y for t he year ended December 31,  2018 follows.  
 

 

Balance at

Beginning of  Year

Claims 

Expense Claims Paid

Balance at  

End of  Year 

  

December 31,  2018 $ 349,000 $ 123,883 $ (377,883) $ 95,000 

 

The Cit y is a member of  Alaska Public Ent it y Insurance (APEI),  a governmental insurance pool.   APEI 

provides the Cit y coverage for propert y,  including building and contents,  automobiles,  mobile 

equipment  and data processing equipment ;  casualt y,  including general l iabil it y,  and public of f icials,  

law enforcement  professional l iabil it y,  auto l iabil it y and employee benef it  l iabilit y;  and workers’  

compensat ion, including employer’ s l iabil it y.   The Cit y has no coverage for potent ial losses f rom 

environmental damages. 
 

APEI is a public ent it y risk pool organized to share risks among it s members.   The bylaws provide for 

the assessment  of  supplemental cont ribut ions f rom members in the event  t hat  losses and expenses 

for any coverage year exceed the annual cont ribut ions and income earned on such cont ribut ions for 

the year.   Such supplemental cont ribut ions shall be based upon each member’ s deposit  cont ribut ion 

in comparison to the aggregate deposit  cont ribut ions of  all members.   There were no supplemental 

assessments during the year ended December 31,  2018.  The amount  of  set t lements for the past  

t hree years did not  materially exceed the Cit y’ s insurance coverage. 
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13. Interfund Transfers 
 

A schedule of  int erfund t ransfers for t he year ended December 31,  2018,  fol lows:  
 

Transfers  
  

To General Reserve Special Revenue Fund for “ permanent  fund replacement ”  f rom:  

Port  Enterprise Fund $ 20,328 

Sewer Enterprise Fund 11,164 

Wat er Ent erprise Fund 1,164 

Refuse Enterprise Fund 2,328 

Odiak Park Enterprise Fund 4,000 

  

Total t ransfers to t he General Reserve Special Revenue Fund 38,984 

  

To General Capital Proj ects Fund f rom nonmaj or governmental funds 121,432 

  

To Wat er Ent erprise Fund f rom t he Port  Ent erprise Fund 5,000 

  

From the General Fund to:   

      Cordova Center Capital Proj ect  Fund 1,225,455 

      General Capital Proj ects Fund 408,547 

  

Total Transfers to Other Funds $ 1,799,418 

 
General Fund Note Receivable from the Cordova Community Medical Center (CCMC) 

Component  Unit  

 

In 2017, the General Fund had a note receivable f rom CCMC totaling $3,093,127. In 2017 the Cit y 

determined that  repayment  was not  to be expected in a reasonable amount  of  t ime. Accordingly,  t he 

Cit y reduced the note receivable t o $0 and recorded the ent ire note receivable balance as an 

interfund t ransfer f rom the General Fund to CCMC. Future repayments, if  any, on the note receivable 

wil l  be recorded as cont ribut ion revenue as the payments are made.  

 

14.  Contingencies 
 

Grants 

 

Amount s received or receivable f rom grant or agencies are subj ect  t o audit  and adj ust ment  by t he 

grant or agencies,  principal ly t he federal and st at e government s.  Any disal lowed claims,  including 

amount s already col lect ed,  would become a l iabil it y.  

 

Lit igat ion 

 

The Cit y is involved in various claims and pending lit igat ion as part  of  t he normal course of  it s 

act ivit ies.  In the opinion of  management ,  t he disposit ion of  t hese mat ters is not  expected to have a 

material adverse ef fect  on the Cit y’ s f inancial statements.  

  



City of Cordova,  Alaska 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

 

50 

15.  New Accounting Pronouncements 
 

The Governmental Account ing Standards Board has passed several new account ing standards with 

upcoming implementat ion dates.  Management  has not  fully evaluated the potent ial ef fects of  these 

statements.  

 

GASB 83 – Cert ain Asset  Ret i rement  Obl igat ions – Ef fect ive for year-end December 31,  2019,  wit h 

earl ier appl icat ion encouraged – This st at ement  addresses account ing and f inancial  report ing for 

cert ain asset  ret irement  obl igat ions t hat  are legal ly enforceable l iabil i t ies associat ed wit h t he 

ret irement  of  a t angible capit al  asset .  

 

GASB 84 – Fiduciary Act ivi t ies – Ef fect ive for year-end December 31,  2019,  wit h earl ier appl icat ion 

encouraged – This st at ement  addresses crit eria for ident ifying and report ing f iduciary act ivit ies.   

 

GASB 87 – Leases – Ef fect ive for year-end December 31,  2020, with earlier applicat ion encouraged – 

This statement  addresses account ing and f inancial report ing for certain lease assets and l iabil it ies for 

leases that  previously were classif ied as operat ing leases. This statement  establishes a single model 

for lease account ing based on the foundat ional principle that  leases are f inancings of  the right  to use 

an underlying asset .  

 

GASB 88 – Cert ain Disclosures Relat ed t o Debt ,  including Direct  Borrowings and Direct  Placement s 

-  Ef fect ive for year-end December 31,  2019,  wit h earl ier appl icat ion encouraged – This st at ement  

addresses not e disclosures relat ed t o debt ,  clarif ies which l iabil i t ies t o include when disclosing 

informat ion relat ed t o debt ,  and def ines debt  for t he purpose of  disclosure.  It  requires addit ional  

essent ial  informat ion relat ed t o debt  be disclosed in t he notes,  as wel l  as informat ion for direct  

borrowings and direct  placement s.  

 

GASB 89 – Account ing f or  Int erest  Cost  Incurred bef ore t he end of  a Const ruct ion Per iod – 

Ef fect ive for year-end December 31,  2020,  wit h earl ier appl icat ion encouraged – This st at ement  

addresses account ing requirement s relat ed t o int erest  cost  incurred before t he end of  a 

const ruct ion period.  It  requires t hat  int erest  cost  incurred before t he end of  a const ruct ion period 

be recognized as an expense in t he period in which t he cost  is incurred for f inancial st at ement s 

prepared using t he economic resources measurement  focus.  

 

GASB 90 – Maj or i t y Equi t y Int erest s,  an Amendment  of  GASB St at ement s No.  14 and No.  16 – 

Ef fect ive for year-end December 31,  2019,  wit h earl ier appl icat ion encouraged – This st at ement  

addresses t he consist ency and comparabil i t y of  report ing a government ’ s maj orit y equit y int erest  

in a legal ly separat e organizat ion.  

 

GASB 91 – Condui t  Debt  Obl igat ions - Ef fect ive for year-end December 31,  2021,  wit h earl ier 

appl icat ion encouraged – This st at ement  provides a single met hod of  report ing conduit  debt  

obl igat ions by issuers and el iminat es diversit y in pract ice associat ed wit h commit ment s ext ended 

by issuers,  arrangement s associat ed wit h conduit  obl igat ions,  and relat ed not e disclosures.  This 

st at ement  clarif ies t he def init ion of  a conduit  debt  obl igat ion and est abl ishes st andards for 

relat ed account ing and f inancial  report ing.    
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16.  Change in Accounting Principle 
 

As discussed in Not e 9 t o t he f inancial  st at ement s,  t he Cit y part icipat es in t he Alaska Publ ic 

Employees’  Ret irement  Syst em (PERS) plans.  In 2018 t he Cit y adopt ed t he provisions of  GASB 

St at ement  No.  75 Account ing and Financial  Report ing f or  Post employment  Benef i t s Ot her  t han 

Pensions,  which,  among ot her account ing and report ing crit eria,  requires t he Cit y t o recognize it s 

proport ional share of  t he Net  Ot her Post employment  Benef it s Liabil i t y (and relat ed deferred 

inf low/ out f low account s),  as of  t he beginning of  t he Cit y’ s f iscal year.  As a result  of  t he 

implement at ion of  t his st at ement ,  t he cit y has recorded an opening balance adj ust ment  t o ref lect  

opening balance OPEB l iabil i t ies and relat ed account s and t o decrease opening net  posit ion as 

fol lows:   

 

      

Opening Net  

Posit ion,  as 

Original ly 

Present ed

 Change in 

Account ing 

Principle 

Adj ust ment

 

Opening Net  

Posit ion,  as 

Rest at ed

     

Government al Act ivit ies $ 43,747,405   $ (675,695)    $ 43,071,710

Business-t ype Act ivit ies 33,210,367 (238,777) 32,971,590

   

Port  Ent erprise Fund 12,743,756 (81,779) 12,661,977

Wat er Ent erprise Fund 11,258,618 (40,610) 11,218,008

Sewer Ent erprise Fund 7,156,305 (40,610) 7,115,695

Refuse Enterprise Fund 1,892,975 (75,778) 1,817,197

 
17.  Subsequent Events 
 

On March 5,  2019,  t he Cit y of  Cordova aut horized revenue bonds in t he principal amount  not  t o 

exceed $5,000,000 t o f inance t he planning,  design,  const ruct ion and acquisit ion of  harbor and 

relat ed capit al  improvement s in t he cit y.   
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Exhibit  D-1

Original Final  Variance wit h 

Year  Ended December  31,  2018 Budget Budget Act ual  Final Budget  

Revenues

  Taxes                               6,801,751$      6,801,751$      6,416,822$       (384,929)$        

  Licenses and permit s 28,600            28,600            31,235             2,635               

  Federal government 6,725              6,725              639,586            632,861           

  St at e of  Alaska 2,231,756        2,231,756        3,074,413         842,657           

  Invest ment  income 60,000            60,000            40,583             (19,417)            

  Charges for services 1,023,554        1,023,554        1,036,936         13,382             

  Ot her revenues 382,149          382,149          336,453            (45,696)            

Total Revenues             10,534,535      10,534,535      11,576,028       1,041,493        

Expenditures

  Current :

    General government :                   

      Cit y council 2,000              2,000              5,025               (3,025)             

      Cit y clerk 252,869          252,869          258,878            (6,009)             

      Management 315,530          315,530          315,312            218                 

      Finance 397,483          397,483          394,596            2,887               

      Planning and zoning 230,019          230,019          202,618            27,401             

      Nondepart ment al services 440,300          440,300          554,294            (113,994)          

    Tot al general government 1,638,201        1,638,201        1,730,723         (92,522)            

    Public safet y:                        

      Police depart ment 875,591          875,591          834,134            41,457             

      Jai l  operat ions 226,604          226,604          203,021            23,583             

      Fire depart ment 306,026          306,026          300,547            5,479               

      Disast er management 6,000              6,000              6,142               (142)                

      Depart ment  of  mot or vehicles 58,207            58,207            69,142             (10,935)            

    Tot al public safet y 1,472,428        1,472,428        1,412,986         59,442             

    Informat ion and recreat ion

     Library 732,864          732,864          770,583            (37,719)            

     Ski hi l l 92,012            92,012            90,989             1,023               

     Bidarki Cent er 283,300          283,300          274,223            9,077               

     Pool 235,182          235,182          219,040            16,142             

   Tot al informat ion and recreat ion 1,343,358        1,343,358        1,354,835         (11,477)            

City of Cordova,  Alaska

General Fund

 Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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Exhibit  D-1,  cont inued

Original Final  Variance wit h 

Year Ended December 31,  2018 Budget Budget Act ual  Final  Budget  

Expenditures,  cont inued

  Current ,  cont inued:

    Publ ic works:

     Publ ic works administ rat ion 166,775$         166,775$         160,400$          6,375$             

     Facil i t y ut i l i t ies 130,400           130,400           156,675            (26,275)            

     Facil i t y maint enance 278,423           278,423           258,525            19,898             

     St reet  maint enance 639,657           639,657           673,682            (34,025)            

     Snow removal 35,925            35,925            27,537             8,388               

     Equipment  maint enance 329,005           329,005           321,325            7,680               

     Parks maint enance 81,496            81,496            87,498             (6,002)             

     Cemet ery maint enance 7,188              7,188              8,409               (1,221)             

    Tot al  publ ic works 1,668,869        1,668,869        1,694,051         (25,182)            

  Cont ribut ions:

    Cordova Cit y School Dist r ict 1,604,136        1,604,136        1,618,710         (14,574)            

    Cordova Communit y Medical  Cent er -                     653,134           770,134            (117,000)          

    Cordova Communit y Col lege 10,000            10,000            10,000             -                     

    Family Resource Cent er 20,000            20,000            20,000             -                     

    Cordova Chamber of  Commerce 98,017            98,017            98,017             -                     

    Tot al  cont ribut ions 1,732,153        2,385,287        2,516,861         (131,574)          

  Debt  service:

    Principal 1,194,000        1,194,000        1,194,000         -                     

    Int erest  755,245           755,245           761,167            (5,922)             

    Tot al  debt  service 1,949,245        1,949,245        1,955,167         (5,922)             

Total Expenditures         9,804,254        10,457,388      10,664,623       (207,235)          

Excess of  revenues over expendit ures 730,281           77,147            911,405            1,248,728        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

  Transfers in -                     282,146           -                      (282,146)          

  Transfers out (730,281)         (359,293)         (1,634,002)       (1,274,709)       

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (730,281)         (77,147)           (1,634,002)       (1,556,855)       

Net  change in fund balance -$                   -$                   (722,597)          (308,127)$        

Fund Balance,  beginning 2,337,955         

Fund Balance,  ending 1,615,358$       

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

 Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual,  continued

City of Cordova,  Alaska

General Fund
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Exhibit  D-2

Original Final Variance wit h

Year  Ended December  31,  2018 Budget Budget Act ual Final Budget

Revenues

  Invest ment  income (loss) 225,000$       225,000$       (290,677)$        (515,677)$        

  Land sales 200,000         200,000         121,950           (78,050)           

  Special assessment s 1,200            1,200             736                 (464)                

Total Revenues             426,200         426,200         (167,991)          (594,191)          

Other Financing Sources

  Transfers in 38,984           38,984           38,984            -                     

Net  change in fund balance 465,184$       465,184$       (129,007)$        (594,191)$        

Fund Balance,  beginning -                     

Fund Balance,  ending (129,007)$        

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

General Reserve Special Revenue Fund

 Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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Exhibit  D-3

Cit y's

St at e of Proport ionat e Plan Fiduciary

Cit y's Cit y's Alaska Share of  t he Net  Posit ion as

Proport ion Proport ionat e Proport ionat e Net  Pension  a Percent age

Plan of  t he Net Share of  t he Share of  t he Tot al Cit y's Liabil it y as a of  t he Tot al

Year Ended Pension Net  Pension Net  Pension Net  Pension Covered Percent age of Pension

December 31,  Liabil it y Liabil it y Liabil it y Liabil it y Payrol l Payrol l Liabil it y

2018 0.12932% 6,425,806$   1,862,446$     8,288,252$  3,446,735$    186.43% 65.19%

2017 0.11937% 6,170,856$   2,299,134$     8,469,990$  3,385,723$    182.26% 63.37%

2016 0.13277% 7,421,446$   935,836$        8,357,282$  3,399,956$    218.28% 59.55%

2015 0.11051% 5,359,777$   1,436,622$     6,796,399$  3,176,623$    168.73% 63.96%

2014 * * * * * * *

2013 * * * * * * *

2012 * * * * * * *

2011 * * * * * * *

2010 * * * * * * *

2009 * * * * * * *

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

*GASB requires t en years of  informat ion be present ed.  However,  unt il  a ful l  10-year t rend is compiled,  t he Cit y wil l  

present  informat ion for t hose years for which informat ion is available.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Public Employees' Retirement System Pension Plan

Schedule of the City's Information on the Net Pension Liability
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Exhibit  D-4

Cont ribut ions

Relat ive t o t he Cont ribut ions

Cont ract ual ly Cont ract ual ly Cont ribut ion Cit y's as a

Year Ended Required Required Def iciency Covered Percent age of

December 31,  Cont ribut ion Cont ribut ion (Excess) Payrol l Covered Payrol l

2018  $          416,908  $          416,908  $                  -    $       3,420,191 12.19%

2017  $          400,397  $          400,397  $                  -    $       3,473,278 11.53%

2016  $          370,083  $          370,083  $                  -    $       3,501,744 10.57%

2015  $          307,165  $          307,165  $                  -    $       3,298,167 9.31%

2014 * * * * *

2013 * * * * *

2012 * * * * *

2011 * * * * *

2010 * * * * *

2009 * * * * *

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

*GASB requires t en years of  informat ion be present ed.  However,  unt i l  a ful l  10-year t rend is compiled,  t he 

Cit y wil l  present  informat ion for t hose years for which informat ion is available.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Public Employees' Retirement System Pension Plan

Schedule of City Contributions
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Exhibit D-5

Cit y's

St at e of Proport ionat e Plan Fiduciary

Cit y's Cit y's Alaska Share of  t he Net  Posit ion as

Proport ion Proport ionat e Proport ionat e Net  OPEB  a Percent age

Plan of  t he Net Share of  t he Share of  t he Tot al Cit y's Liabil it y as a of  t he Tot al

Year Ended OPEB Net  OPEB Net  OPEB Net  OPEB Covered Percent age of OPEB

December 31,  Liabil it y Liabil it y Liabil it y Liabil it y Payrol l Payrol l Liabil it y

2018 0.12928% 1,326,818$   384,626$        1,711,444$  3,420,191$    38.79% 88.12%

2017 * * * * * * *

2016 * * * * * * *

2015 * * * * * * *

2014 * * * * * * *

2013 * * * * * * *

2012 * * * * * * *

2011 * * * * * * *

2010 * * * * * * *

2009 * * * * * * *

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Public Employees' Retirement System OPEB Plan

Schedule of the City's Information on the Net OPEB Liability - ARHCT

*GASB requires t en years of  informat ion be present ed.  However,  unt il  a ful l  10-year t rend is compiled,  t he Cit y wil l  

present  informat ion for t hose years for which informat ion is available.
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Exhibit D-6

Cont ribut ions

Relat ive t o t he Cont ribut ions

Cont ract ually Cont ract ually Cont ribut ion Cit y's as a

Year Ended Required Required Def iciency Covered Percent age of

December 31,  Cont ribut ion Cont ribut ion (Excess) Payrol l Covered Payrol l

2018  $          133,854  $          133,854  $                   -    $       3,420,191 3.91%

2017 * * * * *

2016 * * * * *

2015 * * * * *

2014 * * * * *

2013 * * * * *

2012 * * * * *

2011 * * * * *

2010 * * * * *

2009 * * * * *

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Public Employees' Retirement System OPEB Plan

Schedule of City Contributions - ARHCT

*GASB requires t en years of  informat ion be present ed.  However,  unt i l  a ful l  10-year t rend is compiled,  t he 

Cit y wil l  present  informat ion for t hose years for which informat ion is available.

60



Exhibit D-7

Cit y's

St at e of Proport ionat e Plan Fiduciary

Cit y's Cit y's Alaska Share of  t he Net  Posit ion as

Proport ion Proport ionat e Proport ionat e Net  OPEB  a Percent age

Plan of  t he Net Share of  t he Share of  t he Tot al Cit y's Liabil it y as a of  t he Tot al

Year Ended OPEB Net  OPEB Net  OPEB Net  OPEB Covered Percent age of OPEB

December 31,  Liabil it y Liabil it y Liabil it y Liabil it y Payrol l Payrol l Liabil it y

2018 0.19144% (37,182)$       384,626$        347,444$     3,420,191$    -1.09% 93.98%

2017 * * * * * * *

2016 * * * * * * *

2015 * * * * * * *

2014 * * * * * * *

2013 * * * * * * *

2012 * * * * * * *

2011 * * * * * * *

2010 * * * * * * *

2009 * * * * * * *

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Public Employees' Retirement System OPEB Plan

Schedule of the City's Information on the Net OPEB Liability - RMP

*GASB requires t en years of  informat ion be present ed.  However,  unt il  a ful l  10-year t rend is compiled,  t he Cit y wil l  

present  informat ion for t hose years for which informat ion is available.
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Exhibit D-8

Cont ribut ions

Relat ive t o t he Cont ribut ions

Cont ract ually Cont ract ually Cont ribut ion Cit y's as a

Year Ended Required Required Def iciency Covered Percent age of

December 31,  Cont ribut ion Cont ribut ion (Excess) Payrol l Covered Payrol l

2018  $            20,702  $            20,702  $                   -    $       3,420,191 0.61%

2017 * * * * *

2016 * * * * *

2015 * * * * *

2014 * * * * *

2013 * * * * *

2012 * * * * *

2011 * * * * *

2010 * * * * *

2009 * * * * *

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Public Employees' Retirement System OPEB Plan

Schedule of City Contributions - RMP

*GASB requires t en years of  informat ion be present ed.  However,  unt i l  a ful l  10-year t rend is compiled,  t he 

Cit y wil l  present  informat ion for t hose years for which informat ion is available.
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Exhibit D-9

Cit y's

St at e of Proport ionat e Plan Fiduciary

Cit y's Cit y's Alaska Share of  t he Net  Posit ion as

Proport ion Proport ionat e Proport ionat e Net  OPEB  a Percent age

Plan of  t he Net Share of  t he Share of  t he Tot al Cit y's Liabil it y as a of  t he Tot al

Year Ended OPEB Net  OPEB Net  OPEB Net  OPEB Covered Percent age of OPEB

December 31,  Liabil it y Liabil it y Liabil it y Liabil it y Payrol l Payrol l Liabil it y

2018 0.19144% 24,361$        384,626$        408,987$     3,420,191$    0.71% 212.97%

2017 * * * * * * *

2016 * * * * * * *

2015 * * * * * * *

2014 * * * * * * *

2013 * * * * * * *

2012 * * * * * * *

2011 * * * * * * *

2010 * * * * * * *

2009 * * * * * * *

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Public Employees' Retirement System OPEB Plan

Schedule of the City's Information on the Net OPEB Liability - ODD

*GASB requires t en years of  informat ion be present ed.  However,  unt il  a ful l  10-year t rend is compiled,  t he Cit y wil l  

present  informat ion for t hose years for which informat ion is available.
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Exhibit D-10

Cont ribut ions

Relat ive t o t he Cont ribut ions

Cont ract ually Cont ract ually Cont ribut ion Cit y's as a

Year Ended Required Required Def iciency Covered Percent age of

December 31,  Cont ribut ion Cont ribut ion (Excess) Payrol l Covered Payrol l

2018  $              5,292  $              5,292  $                   -    $       3,420,191 0.15%

2017 * * * * *

2016 * * * * *

2015 * * * * *

2014 * * * * *

2013 * * * * *

2012 * * * * *

2011 * * * * *

2010 * * * * *

2009 * * * * *

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Public Employees' Retirement System OPEB Plan

Schedule of City Contributions - ODD

*GASB requires t en years of  informat ion be present ed.  However,  unt i l  a ful l  10-year t rend is compiled,  t he 

Cit y wil l  present  informat ion for t hose years for which informat ion is available.
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1.  Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
 

The Municipal Charter lays out  the process for annual budget  adopt ion.   

 

At  least  f ive weeks before the beginning of  the f iscal year,  t he Cit y Manager shall prepare and submit  

a budget  to t he Cit y Council.   Public hearings shall be held.  The Council may amend the budget ,  but  

proposed expenditures may never exceed the ant icipated revenues.  The Council must  adopt  t he 

budget  not  later than the third day before the start  of  the new f iscal year.   If  t he Council does not  

adopt  the budget ,  the original proposed budget  shall go into ef fect .  

 

The cit y manager may t ransfer unencumbered appropriat ions within a department ,  of f ice,  or agency.  

However,  Council approval is required to t ransfer appropriat ions between departments or agencies.  

 

The Cit y publ ishes it s annual budget  document  and it  is available on t he Cit y’ s websit e at :   

www.cit yofcordova.net  

 

Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations 
 

Expendit ures exceeded appropriat ions by t he fol lowing amount s in depart ment s of  t he General 

Fund.  

  

  

General Government  $ 92,522 

Informat ion and recreat ion 11,477 

Publ ic works 25,182 

Cont ribut ions 131,574 

Debt  Service 5,922 

 
2.  Public Employees’  Retirement System Pension Plan – Schedule of the City’s Information on 

the Net Pension Liability 

 
This t able is present ed based on t he Plan measurement  dat e.   For December 31,  2018,  t he Plan 

measurement  dat e is June 30,  2018.  

 

There were no changes in benef it  t erms f rom t he prior measurement  period.  

 

There were no changes in assumpt ions f rom t he prior measurement  period.  

 

There were no changes in al locat ion met hodology.  

 
3.  Public Employees’  Retirement System Pension Plan - Schedule of the City Contributions 

 

This t able is based on t he Cit y’ s cont ribut ions for each f iscal year present ed.   These cont ribut ions 

have been report ed as a deferred out f low of  resources on t he St at ement  of  Net  Posit ion.  
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4.  Public Employees’  Retirement System OPEB Plan – Schedule of the City’s Information on 

the Net OPEB Liability – ARHCT,  RMP and ODD Plans 

 

These t ables are present ed based on t he Plan measurement  dat e.   For December 31,  2018,  t he 

Plan measurement  dat es were June 30,  2018.  

 
5.  Public Employees’  Retirement System OPEB Plan - Schedule of City Contributions – ARHCT,  

RMP and ODD Plans 

 

These t ables are based on t he Cit y’ s cont ribut ions for each f iscal year present ed.   These 

cont ribut ions have been report ed as deferred out f low of  resources on t he St at ement  of  Net  

Posit ion.  
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General Fund 
 

 

The General Fund was established to account  for t he revenues and expenditures necessary to carry 

out  basic governmental act ivit ies of  t he Cit y such as police and f ire protect ion, public works,  

planning,  legal services,  administ rat ive services, etc.  Appropriat ions are made from the fund 

annually.  The fund will cont inue to exist  indef init ely.  

 

Revenue, for this and other funds, is recorded by source, i.e. ,  t axes, State of  Alaska, etc.  

Expenditures are recorded f irst  by funct ion, then by act ivit y and obj ect  of  t he expenditure.  

 

General Fund expenditures are made primarily for current  day-to-day operat ing expenditures and 

operat ing equipment .   Capital expenditures for large-scale public improvements, such as buildings, 

are accounted for elsewhere in the Capital Proj ect  or Enterprise Funds. 

 

 



Exhibit  E-1

General Fund

Balance Sheet

December  31, 2018

Assets

Cash and invest ment s 1,258,188$    

Receivables:

  Sales t ax                                         485,474         

  Del inquent  propert y t axes                          70,626           

  Due f rom CCMC 75,000           

  Ot her 91,990           

Tot al  Receivables                           723,090         

Prepaid insurance 185,743         

Lease receivable 751,000         

Total Assets 2,918,021$    

Liabilities,  Deferred Inflows of Resources,  and Fund Balance

Liabilities

  Account s payable                                  127,906$       

  Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabil i t ies                       197,435         

  Healt h claims payable 95,000           

  Unearned revenue                                  77,150           

Total Liabilit ies                           497,491         

Deferred Inflows of Resources

  Deferred propert y t axes 54,172           

  Deferred lease revenue 751,000         

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 805,172         

Fund Balance

  Nonspendable - prepaid insurance 185,743         

  Unassigned 1,429,615      

Total Fund Balance 1,615,358      

Total Liabilit ies,  Deferred Inflows of Resources,  and Fund Balance 2,918,021$    

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  E-2

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual

Year  Ended December  31, 2018

Variance

                                          Final wit h

                                          Budget Act ual Budget

Revenues

  Taxes:

    Propert y t axes                 2,535,433$     2,548,849$    13,416$       

    Sales t axes 3,500,000      3,111,480      (388,520)      

    Public accommodat ions surt ax 117,500         274,789         157,289       

    Vehicle rent al surt ax 18,000           6,894            (11,106)        

    Mot or fuel t ax 175,000         16,654           (158,346)      

    Penalt ies and int erest                 15,000           16,155           1,155           

    Federal payment  in l ieu of  propert y t axes    440,818         442,001         1,183           

  Tot al t axes                     6,801,751      6,416,822      (384,929)      

  Licenses and permit s:

    Business l icenses                     20,000           22,775           2,775           

    Ot her l icenses and permit s            8,600             8,460            (140)             

  Tot al l icenses and permit s      28,600           31,235           2,635           

  Federal government :

    Nat ional forest  receipt s -                    630,721         630,721       

    Bullet proof  Vest  receipt s -                    743               743              

    USDA Dispat ch Services 6,725             6,750            25                

    E-rat e revenue -                    1,372            1,372           

  Tot al federal government     6,725             639,586         632,861       

  St at e of  Alaska:

    Raw f ish t ax                          800,000         1,429,951      629,951       

    Liquor l icenses                       12,000           11,950           (50)              

    Cooperat ive t ax refunds               215,000         310,267         95,267         

    Shared f isheries t ax 20,000           23,144           3,144           

    Communit y assist ance 130,853         -                   (130,853)      

    PERS rel ief 113,342         111,803         (1,539)          

    Dispat ch services 4,725             2,363            (2,362)          

    Mot or vehicle regist rat ion 59,600           60,425           825              

    Driver l icense fees 10,000           6,959            (3,041)          

    Public safet y cont ract  - j ai l          148,236         153,626         5,390           

    Ot her 2,000             11,660           9,660           

    St at e debt  reimbursement  - school bonds 716,000         952,265         236,265       

  Tot al St at e of  Alaska           2,231,756      3,074,413      842,657       

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  E-2,  cont inued

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual,  continued

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance

                                          Final wit h

                                          Budget Act ual Budget

Revenues,  cont inued

  Invest ment  income 60,000$            40,583$         (19,417)$        

  Charges for services:

    Administ rat ive overhead charges 512,754            512,707         (47)                

    Leases                                294,200            281,151         (13,049)          

    Bidarki Cent er 82,500              90,812           8,312             

    Pool 34,000              31,358           (2,642)           

    Fines and forfeit ures                 15,500              13,292           (2,208)           

    Dog impounds and l icenses             1,600                380                (1,220)           

    Airl ine securit y services 80,000              104,371         24,371           

    Finger print ing and case f i le fees 3,000                2,865             (135)              

  Tot al  charges for services 1,023,554         1,036,936      13,382           

  Ot her revenues:

    In-kind f rom School and Medical Cent er 160,287            174,862         14,575           

    Mat erial  and equipment  sales 10,500              3,673             (6,827)           

    Cemet ery lot  sales 1,500                2,050             550                

    Miscel laneous 208,862            155,208         (53,654)          

    Fisherman's Memorial  Park 1,000                660                (340)              

  Tot al  ot her revenues            382,149            336,453         (45,696)          

Total Revenues                  10,534,535       11,576,028    1,041,493      

Expenditures

  General government :

    Cit y council :

      Mat erials and suppl ies              -                       510                (510)              

      Purchased services                  2,000                4,515             (2,515)           

    Tot al  cit y council  2,000                5,025             (3,025)           

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  E-2,  cont inued

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual,  continued

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance

                                          Final wit h

                                          Budget Act ual Budget

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Expenditures,  cont inued

  General government ,  cont inued:

    Cit y clerk:

      Salaries and benef it s               229,944$          226,387$       3,557$           

      Mat erials and suppl ies              500                   1,374             (874)              

      Purchased services                  22,425              31,117           (8,692)           

    Tot al  cit y clerk    252,869            258,878         (6,009)           

    Management :

      Salaries and benef it s               299,430            304,443         (5,013)           

      Mat erials and suppl ies              2,000                436                1,564             

      Purchased services                  14,100              10,433           3,667             

    Tot al  management                 315,530            315,312         218                

    Finance:

      Salaries and benef it s                 393,983            390,703         3,280             

      Mat erials and suppl ies                2,000                2,461             (461)              

      Purchased services                    1,500                1,432             68                 

    Tot al  f inance 397,483            394,596         2,887             

    Planning depart ment :

      Salaries and benef it s 216,019            193,283         22,736           

      Mat erials and suppl ies 250                   408                (158)              

      Purchased services 13,750              8,927             4,823             

    Tot al  planning depart ment 230,019            202,618         27,401           

73



Exhibit  E-2,  cont inued

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual,  continued

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance

                                          Final wit h

                                          Budget Act ual Budget

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Expenditures,  cont inued

  General government ,  cont inued:

    Nondepart ment al services:

      Mat erials and suppl ies              15,500$            9,797$           5,703$           

      Purchased services                  424,800            544,497         (119,697)        

    Tot al  nondepart ment al services 440,300            554,294         (113,994)        

  Tot al  general government 1,638,201         1,730,723      (92,522)          

  Publ ic safet y:

    Pol ice depart ment :

      Salaries and benef it s               779,491            722,581         56,910           

      Mat erials and suppl ies              10,800              12,594           (1,794)           

      Purchased services                  46,900              45,412           1,488             

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     30,000              21,723           8,277             

      Capit al  out lay           8,400                31,824           (23,424)          

    Tot al  pol ice depart ment          875,591            834,134         41,457           

    Jail  operat ions:

      Salaries and benef it s               210,504            191,202         19,302           

      Mat erials and suppl ies              7,500                6,043             1,457             

      Purchased services                  6,800                4,054             2,746             

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     1,800                1,722             78                 

    Tot al  j ail  operat ions 226,604            203,021         23,583           
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Exhibit  E-2,  cont inued

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual,  continued

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance

                                          Final wit h

                                          Budget Act ual Budget

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Expenditures,  cont inued

  Publ ic safet y,  cont inued:

    Fire depart ment :

      Salaries and benef it s               210,526$          203,969$       6,557$           

      Mat erials and suppl ies              26,100              20,702           5,398             

      Purchased services                  48,900              58,092           (9,192)           

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     20,500              17,784           2,716             

    Tot al  f ire depart ment            306,026            300,547         5,479             

    Disast er management :

      Mat erials and suppl ies              3,000                2,618             382                

      Purchased services                  3,000                3,524             (524)              

    Tot al  disast er management           6,000                6,142             (142)              

    Depart ment  of  mot or vehicles:

      Salaries and benef it s 51,727              64,766           (13,039)          

      Mat erials and suppl ies 580                   558                22                 

      Purchased services 5,400                3,101             2,299             

      Capit al  out lay 500                   717                (217)              

    Tot al  depart ment  of  mot or vehicles 58,207              69,142           (10,935)          

  Tot al  publ ic safet y             1,472,428         1,412,986      59,442           

  Informat ion and recreat ion:

    Library:

      Salaries and benef it s               590,834            589,743         1,091             

      Mat erials and suppl ies              24,000              25,176           (1,176)           

      Purchased services                  117,030            155,625         (38,595)          

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     1,000                39                  961                

    Tot al  l ibrary                   732,864            770,583         (37,719)          
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Exhibit  E-2,  cont inued

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual,  continued

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance

                                          Final wit h

                                          Budget Act ual Budget

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Expenditures,  cont inued

  Informat ion and recreat ion,  cont inued:

    Ski hil l :

      Mat erial  and suppl ies 15,000$            15,000$         -$                  

      Purchased services                  77,012              75,989           1,023             

    Tot al  Ski hil l 92,012              90,989           1,023             

    Bidarki Cent er:

      Salaries and benef it s               238,300            221,818         16,482           

      Mat erials and suppl ies              4,000                5,210             (1,210)           

      Purchased services                  36,000              42,264           (6,264)           

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     2,000                2,338             (338)              

      Capit al  out lay 3,000                2,593             407                

    Tot al  Bidarki Cent er 283,300            274,223         9,077             

    Pool:

      Salaries and benef it s               138,982            91,067           47,915           

      Mat erials and suppl ies              9,000                16,560           (7,560)           

      Purchased services                  74,200              101,859         (27,659)          

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     5,000                1,636             3,364             

      Capit al  out lay 8,000                7,918             82                 

    Tot al  pool 235,182            219,040         16,142           

  Tot al  informat ion and recreat ion 1,343,358         1,354,835      (11,477)          

  Publ ic works:

    Administ rat ion:

      Salaries and benef it s               161,975            152,250         9,725             

      Mat erials and suppl ies              600                   2                   598                

      Purchased services                  3,100                6,983             (3,883)           

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     1,100                1,165             (65)                

    Tot al  publ ic works administ rat ion                166,775            160,400         6,375             

    Facil i t y ut i l i t ies - purchased services                  130,400            156,675         (26,275)          
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Exhibit  E-2,  cont inued

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual,  continued

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance

                                          Final wit h

                                          Budget Act ual Budget

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Expenditures,  cont inued

  Publ ic works,  cont inued:

    Facil i t y maint enance:

      Salaries and benef it s               220,023$          196,780$       23,243$         

      Mat erials and suppl ies              12,750              9,824             2,926             

      Purchased services                  15,900              15,212           688                

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     19,250              8,802             10,448           

      Capit al  out lay                     10,500              27,907           (17,407)          

    Tot al  facil i t y maint enance 278,423            258,525         19,898           

    St reet  maint enance:

      Salaries and benef it s               437,557            405,823         31,734           

      Mat erials and suppl ies              80,500              85,381           (4,881)           

      Purchased services                  86,800              85,997           803                

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     34,800              96,481           (61,681)          

    Tot al  st reet  maint enance        639,657            673,682         (34,025)          

    Snow removal:

      Salaries and benef it s               21,925              18,331           3,594             

      Mat erials and suppl ies              14,000              9,056             4,944             

      Purchased services -                       150                (150)              

    Tot al  snow removal              35,925              27,537           8,388             

    Equipment  maint enance:

      Salaries and benef it s               220,105            203,204         16,901           

      Mat erials and suppl ies              24,200              27,141           (2,941)           

      Purchased services                  4,700                10,638           (5,938)           

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     80,000              80,342           (342)              

    Tot al  equipment  maint enance     329,005            321,325         7,680             
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Exhibit  E-2,  cont inued

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual,  continued

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance

                                          Final wit h

                                          Budget Act ual Budget

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Expenditures,  cont inued

  Publ ic works,  cont inued:

    Parks maint enance:

      Salaries and benef it s               54,996$            62,239$         (7,243)$          

      Purchased services                  15,500              12,650           2,850             

      Repairs and vehicle cost s                     7,000                6,460             540                

      Capit al  out lay 4,000                6,149             (2,149)           

    Tot al  parks maint enance     81,496              87,498           (6,002)           

    Cemet ery maint enance:

      Salaries and benef it s               5,688                6,678             (990)              

      Mat erials and suppl ies 1,500                1,731             (231)              

    Tot al  cemet ery maint enance     7,188                8,409             (1,221)           

  Tot al  publ ic works              1,668,869         1,694,051      (25,182)          

  Debt  service:

     General obl igat ion bond principal     1,194,000         1,194,000      -                    

     General obl igat ion bond int erest       755,245            761,167         (5,922)           

  Tot al  debt  service 1,949,245         1,955,167      (5,922)           

  Cont ribut ions:

     Cordova Cit y School Dist rict 1,604,136         1,618,710      (14,574)          

     Cordova Communit y Medical Cent er 653,134            770,134         (117,000)        

     Cordova Communit y Col lege 10,000              10,000           -                    

     Family Resource Cent er 20,000              20,000           -                    

     Cordova Chamber of  Commerce 98,017              98,017           -                    

  Tot al  cont ribut ions 2,385,287         2,516,861      (131,574)        

Total Expenditures              10,457,388       10,664,623    (207,235)        

78



Exhibit  E-2,  cont inued

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual,  continued

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance

                                          Final wit h

                                          Budget Act ual Budget

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Excess of  revenues over expendit ures 77,147$            911,405$       834,258$       

 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

   Transfers in f rom General Reserve Special  

     Revenue Fund 282,146            -                    (282,146)        

   Transfers out :

     Cordova Cent er Capit al  Proj ect  Fund -                       (1,225,455)     (1,225,455)     

     General Capit al  Proj ect s Capit al  Proj ect  Fund (359,293)           (408,547)        (49,254)          

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (77,147)             (1,634,002)     (1,556,855)     

Net  change in fund balance -$                     (722,597)        (722,597)$      

Fund Balance,  beginning 2,337,955      

Fund Balance,  ending 1,615,358$    
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 

The Special Revenue Fund is established to f inance part icular act ivit ies and is created from receipt s 

of  rest ricted revenues.  

 

E-911 

This fund is established to account  for rest rict ed revenues and costs associated with Enhanced 

911 surcharges. 

 

The Capital Proj ect  Funds are established to account  for the resources expended to acquire assets of  

a relat ively permanent  nature. Capital Proj ect  Funds provide a formal mechanism which enables 

administ rators to ensure that  revenues dedicated to a certain purpose are used only for that  purpose 

and further enables them to report  to creditors, and other grantors of  capit al proj ect  fund revenue, 

that  t heir requirements regarding the use of  the revenues were fully sat isf ied.  

  

Ambulance 

This fund accounts for miscellaneous revenues that  have been earmarked for addit ional 

ambulance equipment .  

 

Equipment  Replacement  

This fund accounts for various equipment  purchases.  

 

General Capital Proj ect s 

This fund accounts for various communit y-wide capital proj ects.  

 

School Building 

This fund accounts for t he ILP School Building proj ect .  

 

School Capital Proj ect  

This fund is used to account  for various const ruct ion, maintenance, and repair proj ects for t he 

school.  

 

Chip Seal CIP 

This fund accounts for various chip seal st reet  repair and improvement  proj ect s.  

  

 

 



Exhibit  F-1

General Chip

Equipment Capit al Seal

December 31,  2018 E-911 Ambulance Replacement Proj ect s CIP Tot als

Assets

Cash and invest ment s                         64,396$         336,851$          2,967$            132,490$        138,164$        674,868$      

Grant s receivable -                    -                      -                     10,612            -                    10,612         

Ot her receivable -                    12,996             -                     9,147              -                    22,143         

Total Assets 64,396$         349,847$          2,967$            152,249$        138,164$        707,623$      

Liabilities,  Deferred Inflows 

  of Resources and Fund Balances

Liabilities

   Account s payable -$                  146$                -$                   45,368$          -$                  45,514$        

Deferred Inflows of Resources

  Deferred ambulance revenue -                    11,305             -                     -                     -                    11,305         

Fund Balances

  Rest rict ed:

    Enhanced 911 services 64,396           -                      -                     -                     -                    64,396         

  Assigned:

    Capit al  proj ect s -                    -                      2,967              106,881          138,164         248,012        

    Publ ic safet y -                    338,396           -                     -                     -                    338,396        

Total Fund Balances 64,396           338,396           2,967              106,881          138,164         650,804        

Total Liabilities,  Deferred Inflows

  of Resources and Fund Balances 64,396$         349,847$          2,967$            152,249$        138,164$        707,623$      

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Capit al  Proj ect s FundsSpecial  Revenue Funds
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Exhibit  F-2

General School Chip

Equipment Capit al Cordova School Capit al Seal

Year Ended December 31,  2018 E-911 Ambulance Replacement Proj ect s Cent er Building Proj ect CIP Tot als

Revenues

   Federal  government -$             -$                -$                  12,968$       -$               -$            -$              -$                12,968$       

   St at e of  Alaska -               -                  -                    16,000        -                 -              -                -                 16,000         

   Ot her revenues -               37,561         -                    18,945        -                 -              -                -                 56,506         

Total Revenues -               37,561         -                    47,913        -                 -              -                -                 85,474         

Expenditures

   Publ ic safet y -               3,636           -                    18,000        -                 -              -                -                 21,636         

   Informat ion and recreat ion -               -                  -                    18,000        -                 -              -                -                 18,000         

   Publ ic works -               -                  18,294           212,215       -                 -              -                -                 230,509       

   Cordova Cit y School  Dist rict -               -                  -                    75,738        -                 -              -                -                 75,738         

   Capit al  out lay -               -                  -                    6,340          -                 -              -                -                 6,340           

Total Expenditures -               3,636           18,294           330,293       -                 -              -                -                 352,223       

Excess of  revenues over 

  (under) expendit ures -               33,925         (18,294)          (282,380)     -                 -              -                -                 (266,749)      

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

  Transfers in -               -                  -                    529,979       1,225,455   -              -                -                 1,755,434    

  Transfers out -               -                  -                    -                 -                 (9,669)     (111,763)    -                 (121,432)      

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) -               -                  -                    529,979       1,225,455   (9,669)     (111,763)    -                 1,634,002    

Net  change in fund balances -               33,925         (18,294)          247,599       1,225,455   (9,669)     (111,763)    -                 1,367,253    

Fund Balances,  beginning 64,396      304,471        21,261           (140,718)     (1,225,455)  9,669       111,763     138,164       (716,449)      

Fund Balances (Deficit),  ending 64,396$    338,396$      2,967$           106,881$     -$               -$            -$              138,164$     650,804$     

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues,  Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Capit al  Proj ect  FundsSpecial  Revenue Funds
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Exhibit  G-1

General Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Expenditures by Project 

Year  Ended December  31,  2018

PWS economic analysis 10,980$        

Miscellaneous capit al proj ect s 57,096         

Cordova High School gymnasium f loor 140,240        

Port able generat or 3,968           

Noncapit al informat ion and recreat ion proj ect s 18,000         

Noncapit al Cordova Cit y School Dist rict 75,738         

Noncapit al public works proj ect s 6,272           

Noncapit al public safet y proj ect s 18,000         

Total Expenditures 330,293$      

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Enterprise Funds 
 

 

Enterprise Funds are used to account  for operat ions that  are f inanced and operated in a manner 

similar t o private business enterprise – where the intent  of  the government ’ s council is that  the cost s 

of  providing goods or services to the general public on a cont inuing basis be f inanced or recovered 

primarily through user charges;  or where the government ’ s council has decided that  periodic 

determinat ion of  net  income is appropriate for accountabil it y purposes.  

 

MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

 

Port  

This fund accounts for the operat ions of  the port  and boat  harbor.  

 

Water 

This fund accounts for the operat ions of  the water system. 

 

Sewer 

This fund accounts for the operat ions of  the sewer system. 

 

Refuse 

This fund accounts for the operat ions of  t he baler,  refuse collect ion services, and landf il l .  

 

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND 

 

Odiak Park 

This fund accounts for the operat ions of  the Odiak Camper Park.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit  H-1

December  31, 2018

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Assets

  Cash and invest ment s                             1,753,775$       

  Account s receivable 351,448            

  Al lowance for doubt ful  account s                  (213,757)          

  Prepaid insurance 42,075             

Total Current Assets                     1,933,541         

Property,  Plant and Equipment

  Land 4,395,992         

  Buildings 274,983            

  Machinery and equipment 2,904,790         

  Improvement s                                     18,892,917       

  Tot al  propert y,  plant  and equipment         26,468,682       

  Accumulat ed depreciat ion                           (15,201,894)      

Net Property,  Plant and Equipment 11,266,788       
                                                   

Total Assets 13,200,329       

Deferred out f lows of  resources - relat ed t o pensions 57,958             

Deferred out f lows of  resources - relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 33,759             

Total Defered Outflows of Resources 91,717             

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 13,292,046$     

Liabilit ies,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Posit ion

Current Liabilit ies

  Account s payable 38,158$            

  Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabil i t ies 12,741             

  Accrued vacat ion and sick leave                               41,498             

  Unearned revenue                               461,061            

Total Current Liabilit ies                553,458            

Noncurrent Liabilit ies

Net  pension l iabil i t y 608,510            

Net  ot her post employment  benef it  l iabil i t y 117,507            

Total Noncurrent Liabilit ies 726,017            

Total Liabilit ies 1,279,475         

Deferred inf lows of  resources - relat ed t o pensions 13,424             

Deferred inf lows of  resources - ot her post employment  benef it s 42,596             

Total Defered Inflows of Resources 56,020             

Net Posit ion

  Net  invest ment  in capit al  asset s 11,266,788       

  Unrest rict ed 689,763            

Total Net Posit ion 11,956,551       

Total Liabilit ies,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Posit ion 13,292,046$     

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Port Enterprise Fund

Statement of Net Position
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Exhibit  H-2

Port Enterprise Fund

Statement of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Operating Revenues

  User charges:

    Sl ip fees                               974,881$        

    Wharfage and dockage 88,538            

  Tot al user charges                  1,063,419       

  Rent s,  leases and st orage fees 60,141            

  Travel l i f t  fees 147,415          

  Penalt ies and int erest 16,621            

  Ot her revenues                            63,506            

Total Operating Revenues            1,351,102       

Operating Expenses

  Salaries and benef it s                     542,376          

  Mat erials and suppl ies                    15,764            

  Purchased services                        306,105          

  Vehicle expense                           39,961            

  Insurance                                 58,892            

  Repairs and maint enance                                  133,036          

  Depreciat ion                              762,709          

  Al locat ed administ rat ive and bil l ing expenses 180,706          

Total Operating Expenses            2,039,549       

Loss f rom operat ions                (688,447)         

Nonoperating Revenues

  Invest ment  income 845                 

  St at e of  Alaska PERS rel ief 7,504              

Total Nonoperating Revenues 8,349              

Loss before t ransfers (680,098)         

Transfers out (25,328)           

Change in net  posit ion (705,426)         

Net Position,  beginning,  as rest at ed 12,661,977      

Net Position,  ending 11,956,551$    

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-3

Year  Ended December  31, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

  Receipt s f rom cust omers and users 1,396,957$      

  Payment s for int erfund services used (180,706)         

  Payment s t o suppliers (579,808)         

  Payment s t o employees (504,271)         

Net  cash f lows f rom operat ing act ivi t ies     132,172           

Cash Flows for Noncapital Financing Activities 

  Transfers out (25,328)           

Cash Flows for Capital and Related Financing Activities

  Decrease in due t o ot her funds (11,652)           

                

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

  Invest ment  income received 845                 

Net  increase in cash and invest ment s 96,037            

Cash and Investments,  beginning 1,657,738        

Cash and Investments,  ending 1,753,775$      

Reconciliation of Loss from Operations to Net 

  Cash Flows from Operating Activities

    Loss f rom operat ions                                (688,447)$        

    Adj ust ment s t o reconcile loss f rom operat ions

     t o net  cash f lows f rom operat ing act ivi t ies:

       Depreciat ion                                    762,709           

       Noncash expense - PERS rel ief 7,504              

       Increase in al lowance for doubt ful account s 73,928            

       (Increase) decrease in asset s and deferred out f lows of  resources:

         Account s receivable (60,838)           

         Prepaid insurance (15,350)           

         Deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions (9,477)             

         Deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s (33,759)           

       Increase (decrease) in l iabi l i t ies and deferred inf lows of  resources:

         Account s payable                   (10,700)           

         Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabi l i t ies                   1,051              

         Accrued vacat ion and sick leave (2,092)             

         Net  pension l iabi l i t y 22,799            

         Net  ot her post employment  benef it s l iabi l i t y 35,728            

         Deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions (26,245)           

         Deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 42,596            

         Unearned revenue 32,765            

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 132,172$         

Port Enterprise Fund

Statement of Cash Flows

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-4

Port Enterprise Fund

Combining Schedule of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Port Port

Port Capit al Depreciat ion

Year  Ended December  31,  2018 Operat ing Proj ect s Reserves Tot al

Operating Revenues 1,351,102$     -$                  -$                  1,351,102$     

Operating Expenses

  Salaries and benef it s                               542,376          -                    -                    542,376          

  Mat erials and supplies                              15,764            -                    -                    15,764            

  Purchased services                                  306,105          -                    -                    306,105          

  Vehicle expense                                     39,961            -                    -                    39,961            

  Insurance                                           58,892            -                    -                    58,892            

  Repairs and maint enance 133,036          -                    -                    133,036          

  Depreciat ion                                762,709          -                    -                    762,709          

  Al locat ed administ rat ive and bi l l ing expenses       180,706          -                    -                    180,706          

Total Operating Expenses             2,039,549       -                    -                    2,039,549       

Loss f rom operat ions                       (688,447)         -                    -                    (688,447)         

Nonoperating Revenues 

  St at e of  Alaska PERS rel ief 7,504             -                    -                    7,504             

  Invest ment  income 845                -                    -                    845                

Total Nonoperating Revenues 8,349             -                    -                    8,349             

Loss before t ransfers (680,098)         -                    -                    (680,098)         

Transfers out (25,328)           -                    -                    (25,328)           

El iminat ing t ransfers (148,184)         (1,816)           150,000         -                     

Net  t ransfers (173,512)         (1,816)           150,000         (25,328)           

Change in net  posit ion (853,610)         (1,816)           150,000         (705,426)         

Net Position,  beginning 11,698,863     1,816             961,298         12,661,977     

Net Position,  ending 10,845,253$   -$                  1,111,298$    11,956,551$   

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-5

December  31, 2018

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Assets

  Cash 4,928$            

  Account s receivable    23,356            

  Prepaid insurance 15,176            

Total Current Assets                         43,460            

Property,  Plant and Equipment

  Land 881,531          

  Const ruct ion in progress 30,010            

  Bui ldings 7,130,545        

  Machinery and equipment 379,892          

  Improvement s                                      14,803,759      

  Tot al propert y,  plant  and equipment         23,225,737      

  Accumulat ed depreciat ion                           (10,107,302)     

Net Property,  Plant and Equipment 13,118,435      

Total Assets 13,161,895      

Deferred out f lows of  resources - relat ed t o pensions 17,606            

Deferred rut f lows of  resources - relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 16,765            

Total Defered Outflows of Resources 34,371            

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 13,196,266$    

Liabilities,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Current Liabilities

  Account s payable                                5,774$            

  Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabi l i t ies                     5,507              

  Accrued vacat ion and sick leave 22,957            

  Cust omer deposit s 36,566            

  Accrued int erest  payable 49,678            

  Current  port ion of  loan payable t o ADEC 69,044            

Total Current Liabilities                    189,526          

Noncurrent Liabilities

Loans payable t o ADEC, net  of  current  port ion 2,117,426        

Net  pension l iabi l i t y 224,464          

Net  ot her post employment  benef i t  l iabi l i t y 58,352            

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,400,242        

Total Liabilities 2,589,768        

Deferred inf lows of  resources - relat ed t o pensions 4,072              

Deferred inf lows of  resources - ot her post employment  benef i t s 21,153            

Total Defered Inflows of Resources 25,225            

Net Position

  Net  invest ment  in capit al asset s 10,931,965      

  Unrest rict ed (def ici t ) (350,692)         

Total Net Position 10,581,273      

Total Liabilities,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position 13,196,266$    

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Water Enterprise Fund

Statement of Net Position
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Exhibit  H-6

Water Enterprise Fund

Statement of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year  Ended December  31, 2018

Operating Revenues - user charges 675,719$       

Operating Expenses

  Salaries and benef it s                                268,444         

  Mat erials and supplies                               43,357           

  Purchased services                                   184,103         

  Vehicle expense                                      5,889             

  Insurance                                            31,000           

  Repairs and maint enance 58,085           

  Depreciat ion                                          620,353         

  Al locat ed administ rat ive and bi l l ing expenses        78,868           

Total Operating Expenses 1,290,099      

Loss f rom operat ions                           (614,380)        

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

  Int erest  expense (36,803)          

  In-kind cont ribut ions t o School and Medical Cent er (15,614)          

  St at e of  Alaska PERS rel ief 3,726             

  Ot her income 22,500           

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (26,191)          

Loss before cont ribut ions and t ransfers (640,571)        

Transfers in 5,000             

Transfers out (1,164)           

Net  Transfers 3,836             

Change in net  posit ion (636,735)        

Net Position,  beginning,  as rest at ed 11,218,008    

Net Position,  ending 10,581,273$   

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-7

Year  Ended December  31, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

  Receipt s f rom cust omers and users 674,908$          

  Payment s for int erfund services used (78,868)            

  Payment s t o suppliers (353,360)          

  Payment s t o employees (241,493)          

Net  cash f lows f rom operat ing act ivi t ies     1,187               

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

  Transfers in 5,000               

  Transfers out (1,164)              

Net  cash f lows f rom noncapit al f inancing act ivi t ies 3,836               

Cash Flows for Capital and Related Financing Activities

   Addit ions t o propert y,  plant  and equipment (59,461)            

   Capit al cont ribut ions received 150,743           

   Decrease in due t o ot her funds (49,953)            

   Principal and int erest  paid on ADEC loans (41,424)            

Net  cash f lows for capit al and relat ed f inancing act ivi t ies (95)                  

Net  increase in cash and invest ment s 4,928               

Cash and Investments,  beginning -                      

Cash and Investments,  ending 4,928$             

Reconciliation of Loss from Operations to Net Cash 

 Flows from Operating Activities

    Loss f rom operat ions                                (614,380)$         

    Adj ust ment s t o reconci le loss f rom operat ions

      t o net  cash f lows f rom operat ing act ivi t ies:

        Depreciat ion          620,353           

        Noncash expense - PERS rel ief 3,726               

        Ot her income 22,500             

        Decrease in al lowance for doubt ful account s (987)                 

        In-kind cont ribut ions (15,614)            

 (Increase) decrease in asset s and deferred out f lows of  resources:

          Account s receivable                      6,923               

          Prepaid insurance                 (1,701)              

          Deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions (4,706)              

          Deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef i t s (16,765)            

        Increase (decrease) in l iabi l i t ies and deferred inf lows of  resources:

          Account s payable                              (29,225)            

          Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabi l i t ies                 (318)                 

          Accrued vacat ion and sick leave 7,622               

          Cust omer deposit s (13,633)            

          Net  pension l iabi l i t y 11,322             

          Net  ot her post employment  benef i t s l iabi l i t y 17,742             

          Deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions (12,825)            

          Deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef i t s 21,153             

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 1,187$             

Water Enterprise Fund

Statement of Cash Flows

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-8

Water Enterprise Fund

Combining Schedule of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Wat er

Wat er Wat er Depreciat ion

Year Ended December 31,  2018 Operat ing Compliance Reserves Eliminat ions Tot al

Operating Revenues - user charges                     675,719$      -$              -$                -$                675,719$       

Operating Expenses

  Salaries and benef it s                               268,444        -               -                 -                  268,444         

  Mat erials and suppl ies                              43,357         -               -                 -                  43,357           

  Purchased services                                  184,103        -               -                 -                  184,103         

  Vehicle expense                                     5,889           -               -                 -                  5,889            

  Insurance                                           31,000         -               -                 -                  31,000           

  Repairs and maint enance 58,085         -               -                 -                  58,085           

  Depreciat ion                                620,353        -               -                 -                  620,353         

  Al locat ed administ rat ive and bil l ing expenses       78,868         -               -                 -                  78,868           

Total Operating Expenses             1,290,099     -               -                 -                  1,290,099      

Loss f rom operat ions                       (614,380)      -               -                 -                  (614,380)        

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

  Int erest  expense (36,803)        -               -                 -                  (36,803)         

  In-kind cont ribut ions t o School and Medical Cent er (15,614)        -               -                 -                  (15,614)         

  St at e of  Alaska PERS rel ief 3,726           -               -                 -                  3,726            

  Ot her income 22,500         -               -                 -                  22,500           

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (26,191)        -               -                 -                  (26,191)         

Loss before cont ribut ions and t ransfers (640,571)      -               -                 -                  (640,571)        

Transfers in 5,000           -               -                 -                  5,000            

Transfers out (1,164)          -               -                 -                  (1,164)           

El iminat ing t ransfers 724,463        (774,463)    50,000         -                  -                   

Net  t ransfers 728,299        (774,463)    50,000         -                  3,836            

Change in net  posit ion 87,728         (774,463)    50,000         -                  (636,735)        

Net Position,  beginning,  as rest at ed 5,569,528     879,321     422,236       4,387,533     11,218,008    

Net Position,  ending 5,657,256$   104,858$   472,236$     4,387,533$   10,581,273$   

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-9

December 31, 2018

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Assets

  Cash and invest ment s                                         601,105$         

  Account s receivable 55,106             

  Prepaid insurance 15,176             

  Deposit s                                          6,500               

Total Current Assets                         677,887           

Property,  Plant and Equipment

  Land 32,560             

  Buildings 93,071             

  Machinery and equipment 726,930           

  Improvement s                                      17,672,208      

  Tot al propert y,  plant  and equipment         18,524,769      

  Accumulat ed depreciat ion                           (11,136,807)     

Net Property,  Plant and Equipment 7,387,962        

Total Assets 8,065,849        

Deferred out f lows of  resources - relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 16,765             

Deferred out f lows of  resources - relat ed t o pensions 17,606             

Deferred Outflows of Resources 34,371             

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 8,100,220$      

Liabilit ies,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Current Liabilit ies

  Account s payable                                8,810$             

  Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabil it ies                     5,507               

  Accrued vacat ion and sick leave 22,957             

  Accrued int erest  payable 5,225               

  Current  port ion of  loan payable t o ADEC 55,000             

Total Current Liabilit ies                    97,499             

Noncurrent Liabilit ies

Loan payable t o ADEC,  net  of  current  port ion 990,000           

Net  ot her post employment  benef it s l iabil it y 58,352             

Net  pension l iabil it y 224,464           

Total Noncurrent Liabilit ies 1,272,816        

Total Liabilit ies 1,370,315        

Deferred inf lows of  resources - relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 21,153             

Deferred inf lows of  Resources - relat ed t o pensions 3,864               

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 25,017             

Net Position

  Net  invest ment  in capit al  asset s 6,342,962        

  Unrest rict ed 361,926           

Total Net Position 6,704,888        

Total Liabilit ies,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position 8,100,220$      

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Statement of Net Position
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Exhibit  H-10

Year  Ended December  31, 2018

Operating Revenues - user charges 760,180$       

Operating Expenses

  Salaries and benef it s                                267,855         

  Mat erials and supplies                               51,821           

  Purchased services                                   175,964         

  Vehicle expense                                      11,561           

  Insurance                                            31,000           

  Repairs and maint enance 48,691           

  Depreciat ion                                          410,383         

  Al locat ed administ rat ive and bi l l ing expenses        99,650           

Total Operating Expenses 1,096,925      

Loss f rom operat ions                           (336,745)        

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

  Int erest  expense (16,210)          

  In-kind cont ribut ions t o School and Medical Cent er (35,014)          

  St at e of  Alaska PERS rel ief 3,726             

  Loss on disposal of  equipment (15,400)          

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (62,898)          

Loss before t ransfers (399,643)        

Transfers out (11,164)          

Change in net  posit ion (410,807)        

Net Position,  beginning,  as rest at ed 7,115,695      

Net Position,  ending 6,704,888$    

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Statement of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-11

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activit ies

  Receipt s f rom cust omers and users 742,601$           

  Payment s for int erfund services used (99,650)             

  Payment s t o suppl iers (330,907)           

  Payment s t o employees (241,706)           

Net  cash f lows f rom operat ing act ivit ies     70,338              

Cash Flows for Noncapital Financing Activit ies - t ransfers out (11,164)             

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activit ies -

   Increase in due t o ot her funds (3,908)              

   Principal and int erest  paid on ADEC loans (227,965)           

Net  cash f lows for capit al  and relat ed f inancing act ivit ies     (231,873)           

Net  decrease in cash and invest ment s (172,699)           

Cash and Investments,  beginning 773,804            

Cash and Investments,  ending 601,105$           

Reconciliation of Loss from Operations to Net 

  Cash Flows from Operating Activit ies

    Loss f rom operat ions                                (336,745)$         

    Adj ust ment s t o reconcile loss f rom operat ions

      t o net  cash f lows f rom operat ing act ivit ies:

        Depreciat ion          410,383            

        Decrease in al lowance for doubt ful  account s (428)                 

        Noncash expense - PERS rel ief 3,726                

        In-kind cont ribut ions (35,014)             

        (Increase) decrease in asset s and deferred out f lows of  resources:

          Account s receivable                      17,863              

          Prepaid insurance                 (1,701)              

 Deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions (4,706)              

 Deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s (16,765)             

        Increase (decrease) in l iabil it ies and deferred inf lows of  resources:

          Account s payable                              (10,169)             

          Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabil it ies                 (912)                 

          Accrued vacat ion and sick leave 7,622                

 Net  pension l iabil it y 11,322              

 Net  ot her post employment  benef it s l iabil it y 17,742              

 Deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions (13,033)             

 Deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 21,153              

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activit ies 70,338$            

Statement of Cash Flows

Sewer Enterprise Fund

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-12

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Combining Schedule of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Sewer Sewer

Sewer Capit al Depreciat ion

Year  Ended December  31,  2018 Operat ing Proj ect s Reserves Tot al

Operating Revenues - user charges                     760,180$      -$            -$                 760,180$      

Operating Expenses

  Salaries and benef it s                               267,855        -              -                   267,855        

  Mat erials and supplies                              51,821         -              -                   51,821          

  Purchased services                                  175,964        -              -                   175,964        

  Vehicle expense                                     11,561         -              -                   11,561          

  Insurance                                           31,000         -              -                   31,000          

  Repairs and maint enance 48,691         -              -                   48,691          

  Depreciat ion                                410,383        -              -                   410,383        

  Al locat ed administ rat ive and bi l l ing expenses       99,650         -              -                   99,650          

Total Operating Expenses             1,096,925     -              -                   1,096,925     

Loss f rom operat ions                       (336,745)      -              -                   (336,745)       

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

  Int erest  expense (16,210)        (16,210)         

  In-kind cont ribut ions t o School and Medical Cent er (35,014)        -              -                   (35,014)         

  St at e of  Alaska PERS rel ief 3,726           -              -                   3,726            

  Loss on disposal of  equipment (15,400)        -              -                   (15,400)         

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (62,898)        -              -                   (62,898)         

Loss before t ransfers (399,643)      -              -                   (399,643)       

Transfers out (11,164)        -              -                   (11,164)         

El iminat ing t ransfers (120,881)      20,881     100,000         -                   

Net  t ransfers (132,045)      20,881     100,000         (11,164)         

Change in net  posit ion (531,688)      20,881     100,000         (410,807)       

Net Position,  beginning 6,648,933     (20,881)    487,643         7,115,695     

Net Position,  ending 6,117,245$   -$            587,643$       6,704,888$   

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-13

December 31, 2018

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Assets

  Cash and invest ment s                                         382,135$         

  Account s receivable              64,387            

  Al lowance for doubt ful  account s               (561)                

  Prepaid insurance 15,176            

Total Current Assets                       461,137          

Restricted Assets - landf il l  closure cash 890,196          

Property,  Plant and Equipment

  Land and land improvement s 256,250          

  Buildings 1,437,027       

  Machinery and equipment 2,958,965       

  Landf il l 462,756          
-                     

  Tot al propert y,  plant  and equipment         5,114,998       

  Accumulat ed depreciat ion                           (3,055,179)      

Net Property,  Plant and Equipment 2,059,819       

Total Assets 3,411,152       

Deferred out f lows of  resources - relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 31,282            

Deferred out f lows of  resources - relat ed t o pensions 41,050            

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 72,332            

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,483,484$     

Liabilit ies,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Current Liabilit ies

  Account s payable 8,501$            

  Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabil it ies                      11,017            

  Accrued vacat ion and sick leave 23,985            

  Accrued int erest  payable 380                 

  Current  port ion of  bonds payable 38,000            

Total Current Liabilit ies                  81,883            
-                     

Noncurrent Liabilit ies

  Net  ot her post employment  benef it s l iabil it y 108,884          

  Net  pension l iabil it y 502,146          

  Landf il l  closure cost s                   761,381          

Total Noncurrent Liabilit ies 1,372,411       

Total Liabilit ies                          1,454,294       

Deferred inf lows of  resources - relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef it s 39,470            

Deferred inf lows of  resources - relat ed t o pensions 11,478            

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 50,948            

Net Position

   Net  invest ment  in capit al  asset s 2,021,819       

   Rest rict ed 890,196          

   Unrest rict ed (def icit ) (933,773)         

Total Net Position 1,978,242       

Total Liabilit ies,  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position 3,483,484$     

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Refuse Enterprise Fund

Statement of Net Position
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Exhibit  H-14

Refuse Enterprise Fund

Statement of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year  Ended December  31, 2018

Operating Revenues - user charges                     1,074,365$        

Operating Expenses

  Salaries and benef it s                               511,273            

  Mat erials and supplies                              18,293              

  Purchased services                                  56,464              

  Vehicle expense                                     51,418              

  Insurance                                           31,000              

  Repairs and maint enance 27,346              

  Depreciat ion                                128,933            

  Al locat ed administ rat ive and bi l l ing expenses       144,248            

  Landf i l l  closure and monit oring expense (90,829)             

Total Operating Expenses             878,146            

Income f rom operat ions                       196,219            

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

  Invest ment  income 785                   

  Int erest  expense (2,365)               

  In-kind cont ribut ions t o School and Medical Cent er (38,216)             

  St at e of  Alaska PERS rel ief 6,950                

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (32,846)             

Income before t ransfers 163,373            

Transfers out (2,328)               

Change in net  posit ion 161,045            

Net Position,  beginning,  as rest at ed 1,817,197         

Net Position,  ending 1,978,242$        

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-15

Year  Ended December  31, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activit ies

    Receipt s f rom cust omers and users 1,052,636$      

    Payment  for int erfund services used (144,248)         

    Payment s t o suppl iers (182,064)         

    Payment s t o employees (475,133)         

Net  cash f lows f rom operat ing act ivi t ies     251,191           

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activit ies

    Transfers out (2,328)             

Cash Flows for Capital and Related Financing Activit ies

    Addit ions t o propert y,  plant  and equipment (14,425)           

    Decrease in due t o ot her funds (9,311)             

    Principal and int erest  paid on general obl igat ion bonds (38,960)           

Net  cash f lows for capit al and relat ed f inancing act ivi t ies (62,696)           

Cash Flows from Investing Activit ies

    Invest ment  income received 785                 

Net  increase in cash and invest ment s 186,952           

Cash and Investments,  beginning 1,085,379        

Cash and Investments,  ending 1,272,331$      

Reconciliation of Cash and Investments to Statement of Net Posit ion

    Cash and invest ment s 382,135$         

    Rest rict ed asset s 890,196           

Total Cash and Investments 1,272,331$      

Reconciliation of Loss from Operations to Net 

  Cash Flows from Operating Activit ies

    Loss f rom operat ions                              196,219$         

    Adj ust ment s t o reconci le loss f rom operat ions

      t o net  cash f lows f rom operat ing act ivi t ies:

        Depreciat ion                             128,933           

        Noncash expense - PERS rel ief 6,950              

        Decrease in al lowance for doubt ful account s (789)                

        In-kind cont ribut ions t o School and Medical Cent er (38,216)           

        (Increase) decrease in asset s and deferred out f lows of  resources:

          Account s receivable                         17,276            

          Prepaid insurance                         (204)                

Deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions (8,781)             

Deferred out f lows of  resources relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef i t s (31,282)           

        Increase (decrease) in l iabi l i t ies and deferred inf lows of  resources:

          Account s payable                                2,661              

          Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabi l i t ies                     (819)                

          Accrued vacat ion and sick leave 689                 

          Landf i l l  closure cost s payable (90,829)           

Net  pension l iabi l i t y 21,126            

Net  ot her post employment  benef i t s l iabi l i t y 33,106            

Deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o pensions (24,319)           

Deferred inf lows of  resources relat ed t o ot her post employment  benef i t s 39,470            

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activit ies 251,191$         

Refuse Enterprise Fund

Statement of Cash Flows

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-16

Refuse Enterprise Fund

Combining Schedule of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Refuse

Refuse Depreciat ion Refuse Landf il l

Year Ended December 31,  2018 Operat ing Reserves Proj ect s Closure Tot al

Operat ing Revenues - user charges                     1,074,365$  -$                 -$            -$             1,074,365$  

Operating Expenses

  Salaries and benef it s                               511,273       -                  -              -              511,273       

  Mat erials and suppl ies                              18,293         -                  -              -              18,293         

  Purchased services                                  56,464         -                  -              -              56,464         

  Vehicle expense                                     51,418         -                  -              -              51,418         

  Insurance                                           31,000         -                  -              -              31,000         

  Repairs and maint enance 27,346         -                  -              -              27,346         

  Depreciat ion                                128,933       -                  -              -              128,933       

  Al locat ed administ rat ive and bil l ing expenses       144,248       -                  -              -              144,248       

  Landf i l l  closure and monit oring expense -                  -                  -              (90,829)    (90,829)       

Total Operating Expenses             968,975       -                  -              (90,829)    878,146       

Income f rom operat ions                       105,390       -                  -              90,829     196,219       

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

  Invest ment  income -                  -                  -              785          785             

  St at e of  Alaska PERS rel ief 6,950          -                  -              -              6,950          

  In-kind cont ribut ions t o School and Medical Cent er (38,216)       -                  -              -              (38,216)       

  Int erest  expense (2,365)         -                  -              -              (2,365)         

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (33,631)       -                  -              785          (32,846)       

Income before t ransfers 71,759         -                  -              91,614     163,373       

Transfers out (2,328)         -                  -              -              (2,328)         

El iminat ing t ransfers (127,629)      50,000         27,629     50,000     -                  

Net  t ransfers (129,957)      50,000         27,629     50,000     (2,328)         

Change in net  posit ion (58,198)       50,000         27,629     141,614    161,045       

Net Position,  beginning,  as rest at ed 1,801,130    113,556        (100,774)  3,285       1,817,197    

-                  

Net Position,  ending 1,742,932$  163,556$      (73,145)$  144,899$  1,978,242$  

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-17

December  31, 2018

Assets 

Current Assets

  Cash and invest ment s 145,247$     

  Prepaid Insurance 2,644          

Total Current Assets                       147,891       

Property,  Plant and Equipment

  Buildings 79,362         

  Improvement s 10,718         

  Tot al propert y,  plant  and equipment         90,080         

  Accumulat ed depreciat ion                           (61,374)       

Net Property,  Plant and Equipment 28,706         

Total Assets 176,597$     

Liabilit ies and Net Position

Current Liabilit ies

  Account s payable 118$            

  Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabi l i t ies                      582             

  Ot her l iabi l i t ies 11,330         

Total Current Liabilit ies 12,030         

Net Position

  Net  invest ment  in capit al asset s 28,706         

  Unrest rict ed 135,861       

Total Net Position 164,567       

Total Liabilit ies and Net Position 176,597$     

Odiak Park Enterprise Fund

Statement of Net Position

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-18

Year  Ended December  31, 2018

Operating Revenues              

  Park fees                          75,985$      

Operating Expenses

  Salaries and benef it s                                 26,783           

  Mat erials and supplies                                884                

  Purchased services                                    19,981           

  Repairs and maint enance 1,985             

  Depreciat ion 2,038             

  Insurance 5,400             

  Al locat ed administ rat ive and bi l l ing expenses 9,750             

Total Operating Expenses                  66,821           

Income f rom operat ions                       9,164             

Nonoperating Revenues - 

  St at e of  Alaska PERS rel ief 690                

Income Before Transfers 9,854             

Transfers out (4,000)           

Change in net  posit ion 5,854             

Net Position,  beginning 158,713         

Net Position,  ending 164,567$       

Odiak Park Enterprise Fund

Statement of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  H-19

Year  Ended December  31, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

  Receipt s f rom cust omers and users 75,985$     

  Payment  for int erfund services used (9,750)       

  Payment s t o suppliers (31,018)      

  Payment s t o employees (23,199)      

Net  cash f lows f rom operat ing act ivit ies     12,018       

Cash Flows for Noncapital Financing Activities - t ransfers out (4,000)       

Cash Flows for Capital and Related Financing Activities -

   decrease in due t o ot her funds (1,155)       

Net  increase in cash and invest ment s 6,863        

Cash and Investments,  beginning 138,384     

Cash and Investments,  ending 145,247$   

Reconciliation of Income from Operations to Net 

  Cash Flows from Operating Activities

    Income f rom operat ions 9,164$       

    Adj ust ment s t o reconcile income f rom operat ions 

      t o net  cash f lows f rom operat ing act ivit ies:

        Depreciat ion 2,038        

Noncash expense - PERS rel ief 690           

        Increase (decrease) in asset s:

  Prepaid insurance (2,644)       

        Increase (decrease) in l iabi l i t ies:

          Account s payable (124)          

          Accrued payrol l  and relat ed l iabi l i t ies 44             

          Ot her l iabi l i t ies 2,850        

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 12,018$     

Statement of Cash Flows

Odiak Park Enterprise Fund

City of Cordova,  Alaska
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Exhibit  I-1

Pass-t hrough Provided Tot al

Federal Ent i t y t o Federal

CFDA Ident i f ying Subre- Expend-

Number Number cipient s i t ures

Bureau of Justice Assistance

Bul let proof  Vest  Part nership Program 16.607 -$           743$           

Department of Agriculture

Forest  Service Schools and Roads Clust er

Passed t hrough St at e of  Alaska Depart ment  of  

Commerce,  Communit y and Economic Development  -

  Schools and Roads - Grant s t o St at es 10.665 Program Year 2018 -             630,721      

Department of Interior

Passed t hrough St at e of  Alaska Depart ment  of  

Commerce,  Communit y and Economic Development  -

  Payment  in Lieu of  Taxes 15.226 Program Year 2019 -             442,001      

Environmental Protection Agency

Drinking Wat er St at e Revolving Fund Clust er

Passed t hrough St at e of  Alaska Depart ment

 of  Environment al  Conservat ion - 

 Capit al izat ion Grant s for Drinking Wat er St at e

   Revolving Funds - Loan Port ion 66.468 261141 -             12,948        

Department of Homeland Security

Passed t hrough St at e of  Alaska Depart ment

 of  Mil i t ary and Vet eran Af fairs:

2017 Emergency Management  Performance Grant 97.042 20EMPG-GY17 -             9,000         

2018 Emergency Management  Performance Grant 97.042 20EMPG-GY18 -             9,000         

Tot al  CFDA 97.042 18,000        

2016 Homeland Securit y Grant  Program 97.067 20SHSP-GY16 -             3,968         

Total Department of Homeland Security 21,968        

Total Federal Awards 1,108,381$ 

The accompanying not es are an int egral  par t  of  t his schedule.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

City of Cordova,  Alaska

for the Year Ended December 31,  2018

Federal  Grant or / Pass-Through Grant or /

Program or  Clust er  Ti t le
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Exhibit  I-2

Tot al St at e

Award Grant Share of

Name of  Award Number Award Expendit ures

Department of Commerce,  Community and 

  Economic Development

   Shared Fisheries Business Tax 2018 23,144$          23,144$          

Department of Administration

  *PERS Relief  Funding N/ A 152,247          152,247          

Department of Revenue

   Liquor Licenses N/ A 11,950            11,950           

  *Fisheries Business Taxes N/ A 1,429,951        1,429,951       

  *Elect ric and Telephone Cooperat ive N/ A 310,267          310,267          

Total Department of Revenue 1,752,168       

Department of Education and Early Development

   *Debt  Ret irement  Program 2018 952,265          952,265          

    Public Library Assist ance Grant  2018 PLAG 2018 7,000              7,000             

    Alaska Online wit h Libraries (OWL) FY2018 1,371              1,371             

    Alaska Online wit h Libraries (OWL) FY2019 745                 745                

Total Department of Education and Early Development 961,381          

Total State Financial Assistance                2,888,940$     

 * Maj or program

The accompanying not es are an int egral  par t  of  t his schedule.

City of Cordova,  Alaska

Schedule of State Financial Assistance

Year Ended December 31,  2018
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City of Cordova,  Alaska 
 

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards  

and State Financial Assistance 

for the Year Ended December 31,  2018 
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1.  Basis of Presentation 
 

The accompanying schedule of  expendit ures of  federal awards and schedule of  st at e f inancial  

assist ance (t he “ Schedules” ) include t he federal and st at e award act ivit y of  Cit y of  Cordova under 

programs of  t he federal and st at e government s for t he year ended December 31,  2018.  The 

informat ion in t he Schedules is present ed in accordance wit h t he requirement s of  Tit le 2 U.S.  

Code of  Federal  Regulat ions Part  200,  Unif orm Administ rat ive Requirement s,  Cost  Pr inciples,  and 

Audi t  Requirement s f or  Federal  Awards (Uniform Guidance),  and t he St at e of  Alaska Audi t  Guide 

and Compl iance Supplement  f or  St at e Single Audi t s.  Because t he Schedules present  only a 

select ed port ion of  t he operat ions of  Cit y of  Cordova,  t hey are not  int ended t o and do not  present  

t he f inancial  posit ion,  changes in net  posit ion or cash f lows of  Cit y of  Cordova.  

 
2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Expendit ures report ed on t he Schedules are report ed on t he modif ied accrual basis of  account ing.  

Such expendit ures are recognized fol lowing t he cost  principles cont ained in t he Uniform Guidance,  

wherein cert ain t ypes of  expendit ures are not  al lowable or are l imit ed as t o reimbursement .   The 

Cit y has not  elect ed t o use t he 10% de minimis indirect  cost  rat e as al lowed under t he Uniform 

Guidance.    

 

3.   PERS On-behalf 
 

The Cit y has recorded $152,247 in PERS on-behalf  payments in the schedule of  state f inancial 

assistance.  This represents t he PERS relief  payments appropriated and t ransferred into the plan 

during calendar year 2018 and relates to both pension and OPEB cont ribut ions.  

 

In the governmental fund f inancial statements, on-behalf  revenue and expenditures have been 

recognized in their proport ional share of  PERS payroll within the calendar year under audit .    

 

However,  in the full accrual f inancial statements (t he government -wide and enterprise fund f inancial 

statements),  GASB 68 provisions prescribe that  on-behalf  pension cont ribut ions in a special funding 

situat ion may only be recognized during the measurement  period in which the plan recognizes the 

cont ribut ions.  For the Cit y of  Cordova, t he PERS plan measurement  period is July 1, 2017 through 

June 30, 2018, creat ing a six-month t iming dif ference between the cash cont ribut ion and revenue 

and expense recognit ion for the pension on-behalf  by the Cit y in those funds.  

 

As a result  of  these perspect ive and t iming dif ferences,  amounts reported on the f inancial statements 

do not  agree to t he amount  reported on the schedule of  state f inancial assistance.  

 

4.   Drinking Water Revolving Loan 
 

The Drinking Water Revolving Loan is a program that  is funded through a mix of  federal and state 

funding.   The $4,081,500 (maximum) loan was of fered with a subsidized port ion not  to exceed 

$1,967,375.  The subsidy will  be reported on the state schedule or federal schedule, as applicable,  

when the cash is received.  The Cit y is unable to determine the funding split  unt il t he drawdowns are 

processed by the State.    
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Single Audit Reports 
 

 

 



 

 

BDO USA,  LLP,  a Delaware l imit ed l iabi l it y part nership,  is t he U.S.  member of  BDO Int ernat ional Limit ed,  a UK company l imit ed by guarant ee,  and forms part  of  t he 

int ernat ional BDO net work of  independent  member f irms.   

 

BDO is t he brand name for t he BDO net work and for each of  t he BDO Member Firms.  
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3601 C St reet ,  Suit e 600 

Anchorage,  AK 99503 

 

Tel:   907-278-8878 

Fax:   907-278-5779 

www.bdo.com 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government  Audit ing Standards 
 

Honorable Mayor and Cit y Council 

Cit y of  Cordova, Alaska 
 

We have audit ed,  in accordance wit h t he audit ing st andards general ly accept ed in t he Unit ed 

St at es of  America and t he st andards appl icable t o f inancial  audit s cont ained in Government  

Audi t ing St andards issued by t he Compt rol ler General of  t he Unit ed St at es,  t he f inancial  

st at ement s of  t he government al act ivit ies,  t he business-t ype act ivit ies,  t he aggregat e discret ely 

present ed component  unit s,  each maj or fund,  and t he aggregat e remaining fund informat ion of  

Cit y of  Cordova,  as of  and for t he year ended December 31,  2018,  and t he relat ed not es t o t he 

f inancial st at ement s,  which col lect ively comprise Cit y of  Cordova’ s basic f inancial st at ement s,  

and have issued our report  t hereon dat ed Sept ember 3,  2019.  Our report  includes a reference t o 

ot her audit ors who audit ed t he f inancial  st at ement s of  Cordova Cit y School Dist rict  and Cordova 

Communit y Medical Cent er as described in our report  on Cit y of  Valdez’ s basic f inancial 

st at ement s.  This report  does not  include t he result s of  t he ot her audit ors’  t est ing of  int ernal 

cont rol  over f inancial  report ing or compliance and ot her mat t ers t hat  are report ed on 

separat ely by t hose audit ors.  

 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 

In planning and performing our audit  of  t he f inancial  st at ement s,  we considered Cit y of  

Cordova's int ernal cont rol  over f inancial report ing (int ernal cont rol) t o det ermine t he audit  

procedures t hat  are appropriat e in t he circumst ances for t he purpose of  expressing our opinions 

on t he f inancial  st at ement s,  but  not  for t he purpose of  expressing an opinion on t he 

ef fect iveness of  Cit y of  Cordova’ s int ernal cont rol .  Accordingly,  we do not  express an opinion on 

t he ef fect iveness of  Cit y of  Cordova’ s int ernal cont rol .  
 

A def iciency in int ernal  cont rol  exist s when t he design or operat ion of  a cont rol does not  al low 

management  or employees,  in t he normal course of  performing t heir assigned funct ions,  t o 

prevent ,  or det ect  and correct ,  misst at ement s on a t imely basis.  A mat er ial  weakness is a 

def iciency,  or a combinat ion of  def iciencies,  in int ernal cont rol  such t hat  t here is a reasonable 

possibil i t y t hat  a mat erial  misst at ement  of  t he ent it y’ s f inancial  st at ement s wil l  not  be 

prevent ed,  or det ect ed and correct ed,  on a t imely basis.  A signi f icant  def iciency is a 

def iciency,  or a combinat ion of  def iciencies,  in int ernal cont rol  t hat  is less severe t han a 

mat erial  weakness,  yet  import ant  enough t o merit  at t ent ion by t hose charged wit h governance.  

 

Our considerat ion of  int ernal cont rol  was for t he l imit ed purpose described in t he f irst  

paragraph of  t his sect ion and was not  designed t o ident ify al l  def iciencies in int ernal cont rol  

t hat  might  be mat erial  weaknesses or signif icant  def iciencies and t herefore,  mat erial  

weaknesses or signif icant  def iciencies may exist  t hat  have not  been ident if ied.  Given t hese 

l imit at ions,  during our audit  we did not  ident ify any def iciencies in int ernal cont rol  t hat  we 

consider t o be mat erial  weaknesses.  We did ident ify a cert ain def iciency in int ernal cont rol ,  

described in t he accompanying schedule of  f indings and quest ioned cost s as it em 2018-001 t hat  

we consider t o be a signif icant  def iciency.  

 

 



 

111 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part  of  obt aining reasonable assurance about  whet her Cit y of  Cordova's f inancial  st at ement s 

are f ree f rom mat erial  misst at ement ,  we performed t est s of  i t s compliance wit h cert ain 

provisions of  laws,  regulat ions,  cont ract s,  and grant  agreement s,  noncompliance wit h which 

could have a direct  and mat erial  ef fect  on t he det erminat ion of  f inancial  st at ement  amount s.  

However,  providing an opinion on compliance wit h t hose provisions was not  an obj ect ive of  our 

audit ,  and accordingly,  we do not  express such an opinion.  The result s of  our t est s disclosed an 

no inst ances of  noncompliance or ot her mat t ers t hat  is required t o be report ed under 

Government  Audi t ing St andards.  

City of Cordova’s Response to Findings 

 

Cit y of  Cordova’ s response t o t he f indings ident if ied in our audit  are described in t he 

accompanying correct ive act ion plan.  Cit y of  Cordova’ s response was not  subj ect ed t o t he 

audit ing procedures appl ied in t he audit  of  t he f inancial  st at ement s and,  accordingly,  we 

express no opinion on it .  

 

Purpose of this Report 

 

The purpose of  t his report  is solely t o describe t he scope of  our t est ing of  int ernal cont rol  and 

compliance and t he result s of  t hat  t est ing,  and not  t o provide an opinion on t he ef fect iveness of  

t he ent it y’ s int ernal cont rol  or on compliance.  This report  is an int egral  part  of  an audit  

performed in accordance wit h Government  Audi t ing St andards in considering t he ent it y’ s 

int ernal cont rol  and compliance.  Accordingly,  t his communicat ion is not  suit able for any ot her 

purpose.  

 

 
 

Anchorage, Alaska 

September 3, 2019 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform 

Guidance 
 

Honorable Mayor and Cit y Council  

Cit y of  Cordova,  Alaska 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 

We have audit ed Cit y of  Cordova’ s compliance wit h t he t ypes of  compliance requirement s 

described in t he OMB Compl iance Supplement  t hat  could have a direct  and mat erial  ef fect  on 

each of  Cit y of  Cordova’ s maj or federal programs for t he year ended December 31,  2018.  Cit y of  

Cordova’ s maj or federal programs are ident if ied in t he summary of  audit or’ s result s sect ion of  

t he accompanying schedule of  f indings and quest ioned cost s.  
 

Cit y of  Cordova’ s basic f inancial  st at ement s include t he operat ions of  t he Cordova Cit y School 

Dist rict ,  which received $603,251 in federal awards which is not  included in Cit y of  Cordova’ s 

schedule of  expendit ures of  federal awards during t he year ended December 31,  2018.  Our 

audit ,  described below,  did not  include t he operat ions of  Cordova Cit y School Dist rict  because 

ot her audit ors were engaged t o perform t he audit  of  t he School Dist rict ;  however,  t hey did not  

meet  t he t hreshold for an audit  in accordance wit h t he Uniform Guidance.  
 

Management ’s Responsibility 
 

Management  is responsible for compliance wit h federal st at ut es,  regulat ions,  and t he t erms and 

condit ions of  i t s federal awards appl icable t o it s federal programs.   
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibil i t y is t o express an opinion on compliance for each of  Cit y of  Cordova’ s maj or 

federal programs based on our audit  of  t he t ypes of  compliance requirement s referred t o above.  

We conduct ed our audit  of  compliance in accordance wit h audit ing st andards general ly 

accept ed in t he Unit ed St at es of  America;  t he st andards appl icable t o f inancial audit s cont ained 

in Government  Audi t ing St andards,  issued by t he Compt rol ler General of  t he Unit ed St at es;  and 

t he audit  requirement s of  Tit le 2 U.S.  Code of  Federal  Regulat ions Part  200,  Uni f orm 

Administ rat ive Requirement s,  Cost  Pr inciples,  and Audi t  Requirement s f or  Federal  Awards 

(Uniform Guidance).  Those st andards and t he Uniform Guidance require t hat  we plan and 

perform t he audit  t o obt ain reasonable assurance about  whet her noncompliance wit h t he t ypes 

of  compliance requirement s referred t o above t hat  could have a direct  and mat erial  ef fect  on a 

maj or federal program occurred.  An audit  includes examining,  on a t est  basis,  evidence about  

Cit y of  Cordova’ s compliance wit h t hose requirement s and performing such ot her procedures as 

we considered necessary in t he circumst ances.  
 

We bel ieve t hat  our audit  provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 

maj or federal program.  However,  our audit  does not  provide a legal det erminat ion of  Cit y of  

Cordova’ s compliance.  
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 

In our opinion,  Cit y of  Cordova complied,  in al l  mat erial  respect s,  wit h t he t ypes of  compliance 

requirement s referred t o above t hat  could have a direct  and mat erial  ef fect  on each of  i t s 

maj or federal programs for t he year ended December 31,  2018.   

 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance  

 

Management  of  Cit y of  Cordova is responsible for est abl ishing and maint aining ef fect ive int ernal 

cont rol  over compliance wit h t he t ypes of  compliance requirement s referred t o above.  In 

planning and performing our audit  of  compliance,  we considered Cit y of  Cordova’ s int ernal 

cont rol  over compl iance wit h t he t ypes of  requirement s t hat  could have a direct  and mat erial  

ef fect  on each maj or federal program t o det ermine t he audit ing procedures t hat  are 

appropriat e in t he circumst ances for t he purpose of  expressing an opinion on compliance for 

each maj or federal program and t o t est  and report  on int ernal cont rol  over compl iance in 

accordance wit h t he Uniform Guidance,  but  not  for t he purpose of  expressing an opinion on t he 

ef fect iveness of  int ernal cont rol  over compliance.  Accordingly,  we do not  express an opinion on 

t he ef fect iveness of  Cit y of  Cordova’ s int ernal cont rol  over compl iance.  

 

A def iciency in int ernal  cont rol  over  compl iance exist s when t he design or operat ion of  a 

cont rol  over compliance does not  al low management  or employees,  in t he normal course of  

performing t heir assigned funct ions,  t o prevent ,  or det ect  and correct ,  noncompliance wit h a 

t ype of  compliance requirement  of  a federal program on a t imely basis.  A mat er ial  weakness in 

int ernal  cont rol  over  compl iance is a def iciency,  or combinat ion of  def iciencies,  in int ernal  

cont rol  over compl iance,  such t hat  t here is a reasonable possibi l i t y t hat  mat erial  noncompliance 

wit h a t ype of  compliance requirement  of  a federal program wil l  not  be prevent ed,  or det ect ed 

and correct ed,  on a t imely basis.  A signi f icant  def iciency in int ernal  cont rol  over  compl iance is 

a def iciency,  or a combinat ion of  def iciencies,  in int ernal cont rol  over compl iance wit h a t ype 

of  compliance requirement  of  a federal program t hat  is less severe t han a mat erial  weakness in 

int ernal cont rol  over compliance,  yet  import ant  enough t o merit  at t ent ion by t hose charged 

wit h governance.  

 

Our considerat ion of  int ernal cont rol  over compliance was for t he l imit ed purpose described in 

t he f irst  paragraph of  t his sect ion and was not  designed t o ident if y al l  def iciencies in int ernal 

cont rol  over compliance t hat  might  be mat erial  weaknesses or signif icant  def iciencies.  We did 

not  ident if y any def iciencies in int ernal cont rol  over compl iance t hat  we consider t o be mat erial  

weaknesses.  However,  mat erial  weaknesses may exist  t hat  have not  been ident if ied.  

 

The purpose of  t his report  on int ernal cont rol over compl iance is solely t o describe t he scope of  

our t est ing of  int ernal cont rol  over compl iance and t he result s of  t hat  t est ing based on t he 

requirement s of  t he Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly,  t his report  is not  suit able for any ot her 

purpose.   

 

 
 

Anchorage,  Alaska 

September 3, 2019 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program and 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the State of Alaska 

Audit  Guide and Compliance Supplement  for State Single Audits 
 

Honorable Mayor and Cit y Council  

Cit y of  Cordova,  Alaska 

 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 

 

We have audit ed Cit y of  Cordova’ s compliance wit h t he t ypes of  compliance requirement s 

described in t he St at e of  Alaska Audi t  Guide and Compl iance Supplement  f or  St at e Single 

Audi t s t hat  could have a direct  and mat erial  ef fect  on each of  Cit y of  Cordova’ s maj or st at e 

programs for t he year ended December 31,  2018.  Cit y of  Cordova’ s maj or st at e programs are 

ident if ied in t he accompanying schedule of  st at e f inancial  assist ance.  

 

Cit y of  Cordova’ s basic f inancial  st at ement s include t he operat ions of  t he Cordova Cit y School 

Dist rict  which received $4,673,752 in st at e awards which is not  included in Cit y of  Cordova’ s 

schedule of  st at e f inancial  assist ance for t he year ended December 31,  2018.  Our audit ,  

described below,  did not  include t he operat ions of  Cordova Cit y School Dist rict  because it  was 

subj ect ed t o a separat e audi t  in accordance wit h t he St at e of  Alaska Audi t  Guide and 

Compl iance Supplement  f or  St at e Single Audi t s.   

 

Management ’s Responsibility 

 

Management  is responsible for compliance wit h t he requirement s of  laws,  regulat ions,  

cont ract s,  and grant s appl icable t o it s st at e programs.   

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibil i t y is t o express an opinion on compliance for each of  Cit y of  Cordova’ s maj or 

st at e programs based on our audit  of  t he t ypes of  compliance requirement s referred t o above.  

We conduct ed our audit  of  compliance in accordance wit h audit ing st andards general ly 

accept ed in t he Unit ed St at es of  America;  t he st andards appl icable t o f inancial audit s cont ained 

in Government  Audi t ing St andards,  issued by t he Compt rol ler General of  t he Unit ed St at es;  and 

t he audit  requirement s of  t he St at e of  Alaska Audi t  Guide and Compl iance Supplement  f or  

St at e Single Audi t s.  Those st andards and t he St at e of  Alaska Audi t  Guide and Compl iance 

Supplement  f or  St at e Single Audi t s require t hat  we plan and perform t he audit  t o obt ain 

reasonable assurance about  whet her noncompliance wit h t he t ypes of  compliance requirement s 

referred t o above t hat  could have a direct  and mat erial  ef fect  on a maj or st at e program 

occurred.  An audit  includes examining,  on a t est  basis,  evidence about  Cit y of  Cordova’ s 

compliance wit h t hose requirement s and performing such ot her procedures as we considered 

necessary in t he circumstances.  

 

We bel ieve t hat  our audit  provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 

maj or st at e program.  However,  our audit  does not  provide a legal det erminat ion of  Cit y of  

Cordova’ s compliance.  
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Opinion on Each Major State Program 

 

In our opinion,  Cit y of  Cordova complied,  in al l  mat erial  respect s,  wit h t he t ypes of  compliance 

requirement s referred t o above t hat  could have a direct  and mat erial  ef fect  on each of  i t s 

maj or st at e programs for t he year ended December 31,  2018.  

 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

 

Management  of  Cit y of  Cordova is responsible for est abl ishing and maint aining ef fect ive int ernal 

cont rol  over compliance wit h t he t ypes of  compliance requirement s referred t o above.  In 

planning and performing our audit  of  compliance,  we considered Cit y of  Cordova’ s int ernal 

cont rol  over compl iance wit h t he t ypes of  requirement s t hat  could have a direct  and mat erial  

ef fect  on each maj or st at e program t o det ermine t he audit ing procedures t hat  are appropriat e 

in t he circumst ances for t he purpose of  expressing an opinion on compliance for each maj or 

st at e program and t o t est  and report  on int ernal cont rol  over compl iance in accordance wit h 

t he St at e of  Alaska Audi t  Guide and Compl iance Supplement  f or  St at e Single Audi t s,  but  not  for 

t he purpose of  expressing an opinion on t he ef fect iveness of  int ernal cont rol  over compliance.  

Accordingly,  we do not  express an opinion on t he ef fect iveness of  Cit y of  Cordova’ s int ernal 

cont rol  over compliance.  

 

A def iciency in int ernal  cont rol  over  compl iance exist s when t he design or operat ion of  a 

cont rol  over compliance does not  al low management  or employees,  in t he normal course of  

performing t heir assigned funct ions,  t o prevent ,  or det ect  and correct ,  noncompliance wit h a 

t ype of  compl iance requirement  of  a st at e program on a t imely basis.  A mat er ial  weakness in 

int ernal  cont rol  over  compl iance is a def iciency,  or combinat ion of  def iciencies,  in int ernal  

cont rol  over compl iance,  such t hat  t here is a reasonable possibi l i t y t hat  mat erial  noncompliance 

wit h a t ype of  compliance requirement  of  a st at e program wil l  not  be prevent ed,  or det ect ed 

and correct ed,  on a t imely basis.  A signi f icant  def iciency in int ernal  cont rol  over  compl iance is 

a def iciency,  or a combinat ion of  def iciencies,  in int ernal cont rol  over compl iance wit h a t ype 

of  compliance requirement  of  a st at e program t hat  is less severe t han a mat erial  weakness in 

int ernal cont rol  over compliance,  yet  import ant  enough t o merit  at t ent ion by t hose charged 

wit h governance.  

 

Our considerat ion of  int ernal cont rol  over compliance was for t he l imit ed purpose described in 

t he f irst  paragraph of  t his sect ion and was not  designed t o ident if y al l  def iciencies in int ernal 

cont rol  over compliance t hat  might  be mat erial  weaknesses or signif icant  def iciencies.  We did 

not  ident if y any def iciencies in int ernal cont rol  over compl iance t hat  we consider t o be mat erial  

weaknesses.  However,  mat erial  weaknesses may exist  t hat  have not  been ident if ied.  

 

The purpose of  t his report  on int ernal cont rol over compl iance is solely t o describe t he scope of  

our t est ing of  int ernal cont rol  over compl iance and t he result s of  t hat  t est ing based on t he 

requirement s of  t he St at e of  Alaska Audi t  Guide and Compl iance Supplement  f or  St at e Single 

Audi t s.  Accordingly,  t his report  is not  suit able for any ot her purpose.  

 

 
 

Anchorage,  Alaska 

Sept ember 3,  2019 
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Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 
     

Financial Statements     
     

Type of  audit or’ s report  issued on whet her t he f inancial  

st at ement s audit ed were prepared in accordance wit h GAAP:  Unmodif ied 
     

Int ernal cont rol  over f inancial report ing:      

Mat erial  weakness(es) ident if ied?  yes X no 

Signif icant  def iciency(ies) ident if ied? X yes  (none report ed) 
     

Noncompliance mat erial  t o f inancial  st at ement s not ed?  yes X no 
     

Federal Awards     
     

Int ernal cont rol  over maj or federal programs:      

Mat erial  weakness(es) ident if ied?  yes X no 

Signif icant  def iciency(ies) ident if ied?  yes X (none report ed) 
     

Type of  audit or’ s report  issued on compliance for maj or federal 

programs:  Unmodif ied 
     

Any audit  f indings disclosed t hat  are required t o be report ed in 

accordance wit h 2 CFR 200.516(a)?  yes X no 
     

Ident if icat ion of  maj or federal programs:      
     

CFDA Number Name of  Federal  Program or  Clust er  Agency 
   

10.665 

Forest  Service School and Roads Clust er – 

School and Roads – Grant s t o St at es Depart ment  of  Agricult ure 

 

     

Dollar t hreshold used t o dist inguish bet ween Type A and Type B programs:  $ 750,000
     

Audit ee qual if ied as low-risk audit ee?  yes X no 
     

State Financial Assistance     
     

Int ernal cont rol  over maj or st at e programs:      

Mat erial  weakness(es) ident if ied?  yes X no 

Signif icant  def iciency(ies) ident if ied?  yes X (none report ed) 
     

Type of  audit or’ s report  issued on compliance for maj or st at e 

programs:  Unmodif ied 
     

Dollar t hreshold used t o dist inguish a st at e maj or program? $ 150,000
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Section II - Financial Statement Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with 

Government  Audit ing Standards 

 

  

Finding 2018-001 

 

Journal Entry Review - Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over 

Financial Reporting 

  

Cri t er ia Int ernal cont rols should be est abl ished t o ensure proper and accurat e

f inancial  report ing in accordance wit h general ly accept ed account ing

principles (GAAP).  

  

Condi t ion The Finance Direct or prepares al l  j ournal ent ries,  but  t here is no one

reviewing t hem.  

  

Cause Limit ed account ing st af f  at  t he Cit y.  

  

Ef f ect  or  pot ent ial  

ef f ect  

Journal ent ries could be made in error or inappropriat ely.  

  

Recommendat ion We recommend t hat  someone review and approve al l  j ournal ent ries and 

init ial  t he support  for t he ent ries t o document  t heir approval.  This process 

would improve cont rols over adj ust ment s t o t he general ledger.  

  

Views of  responsible 

of f icials and planned 

correct ive act ions 

Management  concurs.  See t he correct ive act ion plan.  

  

 

 

 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

 

There were no f indings and quest ioned cost s for federal awards (as def ined in 2 CFR 200.516 (a)) 

t hat  are required t o be report ed.  

 

Section IV – State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

 

There were no f indings and quest ioned cost s for St at e awards (as def ined in t he St at e of  Alaska 

Audi t  Guide and Compl iance Supplement  f or  St at e Single Audi t s) t hat  are required t o be report ed.  
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City of Cordova Single Audit Responses (Unaudited)
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Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
 

Finding 2017-001 

 

Auditor-Detected Adjusting Journal Entries and Lack of Account

Reconciliations – Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial 

Reporting (Cordova Community Health Medical Center) 

  

Condi t ion Mat erial  adj ust ment s were necessary t o cash,  account s receivable,  t hird-

part y set t lement s,  elect ronic healt h records revenue,  ot her receivables,

grant  revenue,  capit al  asset s,  account s payable,  accrued payrol l ,  and

not es payable t o properly present  t he f inancial  st at ement s in accordance

wit h general ly accept ed account ing principles.  

  

St at us This f inding is resolved.  

  

Finding 2017-002 

 

Grants Management – Material Weakness in Internal Control over

Financial Reporting (Cordova Community Health Medical Center) 

  

Condi t ion Cordova Communit y Healt h Medical Cent er did not  have suf f icient

int ernal cont rols in place t o ident ify and monit or grant  expendit ures.  

  

St at us This f inding has been resolved.  

  

Finding 2017-003 

 

Journal Entry Review - Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting 

  

Condi t ion The Finance Direct or prepares al l  j ournal ent ries,  but  t here is no one

reviewing t hem.  

  

St at us This is a repeat  f inding for 2018.  

  

Finding 2017-004 

 

Year-End Account Reconciliation Review - Significant Deficiency in

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

  

Condi t ion Cert ain year-end account  reconcil iat ions cont ained errors.  

  

St at us This f inding has been resolved.  

  

  

  

Finding 2017-005 Single Audit Reporting – Material Weakness in Compliance over

Financial Reporting 

  

Condi t ion The audit ,  dat a col lect ion form and t he single audit  report s were not

complet ed and submit t ed by t he deadl ines.  

  

St at us This f inding has been resolved.  
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Finding 2017-006 Single Audit Reporting – Material Weakness in Internal Controls over

Compliance 

  

Condi t ion The audit ,  dat a col lect ion form and t he single audit  report s were not

complet ed and submit t ed by t he deadl ines.  

  

St at us This f inding has been resolved.  

  

Finding 2017-007 Deadline for State Single Audit– Material Weakness in Internal Controls

over Compliance 

  

Condi t ion The audit  and t he single audit  report s were not  complet ed and submit t ed

by t he deadl ines.  

  

St at us This f inding has been resolved.  
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Corrective Action Plan 
 
Name of Contact Person: 
  Alan Lanning 
  City Manager 
  (907) 424‐6200 
 
 
Finding 2018-001 

 

Journal Entry Review - Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over 

Financial Reporting 

  

Correct ive Act ion All  j ournal ent ries wil l  be made by t he Finance Direct or and Assist ant  which 

wil l  be evidenced by dual signat ures or init ials.  

 

Implement at ion The procedure was implement ed January 2019.  

 

 


